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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members of
Gluhend India Private Limited

Your Board have pleasure in presenting their 4" Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS (STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED)

The Standalone financial performance of your Company:

(INR in Millions)
Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
Turnover 3314.30 4468.75
Profit before Finance costs, Tax, Depreciation/Amortization 220.87 398.64
(PBITDA)
Less: Finance Costs 570.29 572.20
Profit before Depreciation/Amortization (PBTDA) (349.42) (173.56)
Less: Depreciation 126.02 155.24
Net Profit before Taxation (PBT) (475.44) (328.80)
Provision for taxation (133.79) (14.59)
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (PAT) (341.65) (314.21)
Transfer to General Reserve 0.00 0.00

Based on consolidated financial statements, the performance of the Group is as follows:

(INR in Millions)

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
Turnover 5007.95 5906.49
Profit before Finance costs, Tax, Depreciation/Amortization 382.27 327.26
(PBITDA)
Less: Finance Costs 851.22 768.42
Profit before Depreciation/Amortization (PBTDA) (468.95) (441.16)
Less: Depreciation 277.60 408.78
Net Profit before Taxation (PBT) (746.55) (849.94)
Provision for taxation (210.59) (126.96)
Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (PAT) (535.96) (722.98)
Transfer to General Reserve 0.00 0.00

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the year under review, your company, on a standalone basis, incurred a loss of INR 341.65
million with a turnover of INR 3314.30 million as compared with a loss of INR 314.21 million with a
turnover of INR 4468.75 million for FY 2019-2020.

During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of the business of the Company. The

affairs of the Company are conducted in accordance with the accepted business practices and within
the purview of the applicable legislations.
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

3.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your company keeping in view the loss incurred during the year decided that
it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend for the year under review.

4.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Considering a loss being incurred by the company during the year, the Board decided not to transfer
any amount to the Reserves.

5.

o
*

*,
*

CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE

Authorised Share Capital

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as at the beginning of the FY 2020-21 was INR
2856.84 Million and was increased twice during the Financial year under review. On 1%t October
2020, it was increased to INR 3128.26 Million, which was further increased to INR 3278.26 Million
on 5™ March 2021.

Issued/ Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

The total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company has been increased from INR 2828.26
Million to INR 3248.19 Million in two tranches of allotment of Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares.

The company has made further issues of shares on rights basis. These were made for general
corporate purposes and for easing the business slowdown conditions imposed by the spread of
the COVID-19 pandemic in the country.

e 18,536,496 (Eighteen Million Five Hundred and Thirty-Six Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-Six)
Class A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten only)
each in October 2020.

e 23,456,268 (Twenty-Three Million Four Hundred and Fifty-Six Thousand Two Hundred Sixty-
Eight) Class A Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten
only) each in March 2021.

Secured Listed Non-Convertible Debentures (Privately Placed)

Your company has issued 6350 Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of INR 0.50
Million each amounting to a total of INR 3175.00 Million to foreign investors during FY 2017-18.
These debentures have been duly listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange.

During the financial year 2019-2020, the company redeemed the debentures partially, which
reduced the face value of the Debentures to INR 0.45 Million each.

The company complies with the provisions of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
other securities laws as applicable to Non-Convertible Debt Instruments and provides all
necessary statements and documents to the Bombay Stock Exchange and other agencies as per
the extant regulations.

The Issue and Listing details of the Non-Convertible Debentures along with the details of the
Debenture Trustee appointed, is provided below:
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

Name of Stock Exchange: Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
ISIN: INE744Z07019

Security Listed: Non- Convertible Debentures
Scrip Code: 957731

Coupon rate: 8%

Coupon Payment: Quarterly

Maturity Date: June 30, 2021

The company has duly paid the Annual Listing fees of BSE Limited for the FY 2020-2021 as well as
for FY 2021-2022.

The contact details of the Debenture Trustee duly appointed for representation of the
Debenture-holders is as follows:

Name of Debenture Trustee:  Vistra ITCL (India) Limited

Registered Address: The IL&FS Financial Centre,
Plot C-22, G Block, 7t Floor,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai — 400 051

Website: www.vistraitcl.com

Email ID: poojan.baxi@vistra.com

Your company has, on the date of this report, made good all quarterly coupon payments and the
scheduled partial redemption of principal amount due on 12" of September 2019, but has
defaulted on the final Redemption amounts on the Debentures which was due on 30" June, 2021.

Due to cash-flow issues arising out of the spread of COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent
lockdowns imposed around the world, your company defaulted on its redemption amounts.
Considering the same, the management has been in constant discussions with the Debenture-
holders for potential restructuring solutions for the Non-Convertible Debentures. Also, to state
that the Debenture Holders and the Company has entered into Standstill Agreement by virtue of
which the Debenture Holders have agreed not to take any enforcement action under the
Debenture Trust Deed.

6. CREDIT RATING

The company has been assigned the following ratings for the Debenture Issue as at 31°' of March 2021:

Credit Facility Name of rating agency Rating
6,350 Non-Convertible Brickwork Ratings India (P) Limited BWR B*
Debentures (Outlook - Credit Watch
(Privately Placed) with Negative Implications)
Bank Loan Facilities CRISIL Limited CRISIL A4**
(Post-Shipment Credit)

(Short Term)

[* This rating was based Audited Financial results for the FY 2018-2019. But after the company defaulted on its
debt-obligations on 30" June, 2021, the rating agency downgraded the company’s ratings. The present rating
being BWR D (Default)

**This rating has also been downgraded to CRISIL D reflecting the default in payment of debt obligations by the
company on 30" June, 2021].
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

7. DETAILS RELATING TO MATERIAL VARIATIONS IN USE OF ISSUE PROCEEDS

As the funds raised through the non-convertible debenture issue have been fully utilised by the
company for the purpose for which they were raised as stated in the objects in the offer document,
and the purpose also been achieved, hence this disclosure is not applicable to the company.

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY, HAVING OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR AND TILL THE DATE OF
THE REPORT

Except as elsewhere provided in this report, there have been no other material changes and
commitments affecting the financial position that have occurred since the end of the year under
review till the date of the report.

9. DEPOSITS

Your company has not accepted any deposits falling within the purview of Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

10. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

» Changes in Board Composition
Your company on 1% day of June 2020 appointed Ms. Prathibha Priya Mysore Raghuveer on
the Board, which was duly approved by the members in the Extra-ordinary General meeting
dated 1% of October 2020. Though, she resigned from the Board of the company citing
personal reasons w.e.f 31 March 2021.

Also, Mr. Vatsal Manoj Solanki, Managing Director resigned from the Board and the
management of the company w.e.f. 31° March 2021 citing personal reasons and his inability
to continue further. The Board placed on record its deep sense of appreciation for the valuable
contribution made by him to the operations and growth of the Company during his association
with the Company.

» Number of Board Meetings
During the year under review, the Board met 14 times during the FY 2019-2020. The following
are the dates of the Board meetings:

27" May, 2020, 15 June, 2020, 15% July, 2020, 1 August, 2020, 30t September, 2020, 9"
October, 2020, 15 October, 2020, 15 December, 2020, 15" February, 2021, 15t March, 2021,
08" March, 2021, 15" March, 2021, 30t March, 2021 and 31% March, 2021.

» Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
During the FY 2020-2021, Mr. Shashank Goswami resigned from the position of CFO on 31*
July, 2020 and Mr. Sandeep Chotia was appointed as the CFO and a KMP on 1°* of August,
2020.

Also, your company duly appointed Mr. Madhur Aneja as its Chief Executive Officer w.e.f 25
February, 2021.
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

11. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The provisions relating to CSR under Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company as the
company has incurred losses in the FY 2020-2021.

As has been stated earlier, Sage Metals Private Limited (SMPL) has merged with your company on
June 20, 2019. The CSR provisions under Section 135, before such merger being effective, were
applicable on SMPL. It had an unspent CSR liability of INR 35.47 Million uptill 31** March 2018 and was
evaluating and identifying specific programmes for incurring the same.

Your company being a law — abiding entity and considering its responsibility towards the society, has
appropriately formed a committee of the Board in the FY 19-20 for devising a CSR policy,
recommending, and undertaking activities as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 for
spending such unspent CSR liability of SMPL. Although the company incurred losses during the year,
it spent an amount of INR 0.15 million (INR 0.69 million in FY 2019-2020) towards CSR activities.

12, BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the Board has
carried the evaluation of its own performance, performance of Individual Directors, including the
Chairman of the Board based on their attendance, contribution, experience, expertise etc. The
evaluation of the working of the Board was conducted considering the effectiveness of Board
procedures, performance of specific duties and obligations, etc. The Directors expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process and outcome of the same and laid guidelines for improving
the Board performance and procedures followed.

13. COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The company being a private limited entity, the provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and framing of a policy relating to Appointment and
Remuneration of Directors are not applicable.

14, RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks
which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your Board
and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures have also
been formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy.

15. SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY

The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary (‘WOS’) in USA namely Sage International Inc. (SlI).

As per the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, your Company has consolidated its Financial Statements
with its WOS for the financial year 2020-2021. A statement in AOC-1 containing salient features of the
financial statement of its subsidiary is attached herewith as Annexure-1.

16. AUDITORS
e STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No: 117366W/W-
100018), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the company for a second term of 5 years i.e.
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

from FY 2019-20 up till FY 2023-24 on 31° December 2020 in the 2" Annual General Meeting of
the company.

e SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
As required under provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder, the Board appointed M/s Arun Kumar Gupta and Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, for conducting the Secretarial Audit for the FY 2020-2021. Secretarial Audit Report in
Form MR-3 issued by the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the year ended on March 31,
2021, is attached to the Director’s Report as Annexure- 2.

e INTERNAL AUDITORS
Pursuant to the provisions of section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
appointed Mr. Saurabh Kumar Agarwal, Chartered Accountant as the Internal Auditor of the
Company for the Financial year 2020-2021. He is employed with the company on full-time basis,
which helps in effective and efficient audit of various internal procedures and processes followed
by the company.

° EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON THE QUALIFICATIONS/ ADVERSE REMARKS IN STATUTORY
AUDITOR’S REPORT
In respect of the Qualified Opinion on the Internal Financial Controls of the Company in the Audit
report of the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements, your Board hereby provides that
it accepts its responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting. It also recognises its responsibility for taking steps proposed for the rectification and
correction of any deficiencies in its design or operation.

The Board after considering the weakness in the Internal financial controls relating on the issue
of inventory for production and its consequent impact on inventory records, states that the
management is introducing a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system, i.e., SAP, which is
under implementation process. This ERP system would not only remove all such weaknesses but
also would bring in more transparency, enhancing data security, improved business efficiency
and easy scalability. This system will closely track the materials including movement between
each process at the respective plants and the management is confident that this step will help in
addressing such gaps going forward.

The Auditors have also drawn out some matters under emphasis requiring consideration of the
Board. The Board duly considered and noted that statutory compliances, under the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, that have been made with a delay were due to
reasons beyond control, including the operational challenges that arose due to spread of COVID-
19 pandemic in the world. Though the consequential impact of the above being not ascertainable,
the Board hereby assures of taking appropriate corrective measures in the future.

Also, w.r.t to debit and credit notes received and issued in foreign currency outstanding as at year
ended 31°* March, 2021, the Board duly noted the management’s view wherein it is not being
considered as a non-compliance under the Foreign Exchange Management Act. Also, to state that
for them to be duly noted and regularised under the above-mentioned Act, approvals need to be
procured from the authorities concerned, which the management is assured to receive in near
future.
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

° EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON THE QUALIFICATIONS/ ADVERSE REMARKS IN SECRETARIAL
AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Secretarial Auditor has in its report considered the delay in the submission of the Financial
Statements at some instances with the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Board provides that the
members have been accordingly apprised as this being due to reasons beyond control and also
due to operational issues that arose due to spread of COVID-19 pandemic around the world.
Also, to state that the company being a law-abiding entity is suo-moto applying to the Registrar
of Companies, Mumbai for reducing the penalties that may be imposed for the said delay in
submission of the financials considering the offence being un-intentional.

On matters raised w.r.t to debit and credit notes, received and issued, in foreign currency, the
Board duly noted the management’s view wherein it is not being considered as a non-compliance
under the Foreign Exchange Management Act. Also, to state that for them to be duly noted and
regularised under the above-mentioned Act, approvals need to be procured from the authorities
concerned, which the management is assured to receive in near future.

17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The are no existing loans, guarantees or investments covered under the provision of under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

18. SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the year under review, no significant and material orders have been passed by the regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.
Though, SEBI had levied a penalty of INR 0.10 million for alleged violation of Regulation 52(1) of the
SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 for the FY 2018-19 on 26" February, 2021.

19. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. Further, internal audit procedures monitor and evaluate the efficacy and adequacy of
internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating procedures, accounting
procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the audit reports, the units
undertake corrective action in their respective areas and strengthen the controls. Significant audit
observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Board periodically.

20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All the related party transactions (RPTs) entered during the financial year were on an arm’s length
basis and in the ordinary course of business. In compliance with applicable provisions of the Act, for
the RPTs which are foreseen and repetitive in nature, omnibus approval of the Board has been
obtained. All the RPTs undertaken during the year are disclosed in the notes to Financial Statements.
There are no materially significant Related party transactions made by the Company which have a
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Further the Company did not undertake any transaction falling within the purview of Section 188(1)
of Companies Act, 2013 and thus disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required.
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

21. ANNUAL RETURN

As required, pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the company is placed on the
website www.sagemetals.com.

22. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under
this policy. The Company did not receive any complaint during the year 2020-21 and no complaint is
pending for redressal as at March 31, 2021.

23. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained,
and pursuant to clause (c) of Sub- section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your
Director’s hereby confirm that:

e in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures:

e they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year, i.e. March 31, 2021 and of the loss of the
company for that period;

e they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

e they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively.

e they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

24. PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

I. Conservation of energy

e the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:
The Company has always been particular for conservation of energy on continuous basis by
closely monitoring the energy consuming equipment.
Solar Rooftop Plants have been set up in all the units and have started generating solar
electricity.
This would reduce the cost of power to a considerable extent to the company and is also
environmental-friendly.
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25.

e the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:
The company has been continuously striving to optimize energy consumption levels by
selecting energy efficient and environment friendly technologies for its plants. Solar panels on
rooftops and LED lightings have been installed at various places to be energy efficient at low
costs.

e the capital investment on energy conservation equipment's:
Energy conservation measures have been taken by process optimization without any major
capital investment. Purchase power agreements have been entered with vendors for
providing solar energy without major capital investment by the company.

Technology absorption

There has been no absorption of new technology whether imported or otherwise during the
financial year under review.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

During the year, the total foreign exchange used was INR 120.01 Million and the total foreign
exchange earned was INR 3546.59 Million.

PARTICULARS OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the following details forms part of the Board
Report:

26.

Pursuant to Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rule, 2014, a statement containing the names and other particulars of top ten employees in terms
of remuneration drawn by them is annexed as Annexure-3.

Disclosure under Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rule, 2014 applicable to listed entities annexed as Annexure-4.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The directors place on records their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation extended
by its Bankers, employees, investors, and all other associates and look forward to continuing fruitful
association with all business partners of the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/-
Satish Kumar Rustgi

Chairman
(DIN - 08574594)

Date: 31.12.2021
Place: Delhi

4™ ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021



GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
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ANNEXURES TO BOARD’S REPORT

Form AOC-1

Annexure-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of the subsidiary

Sl. No. Particulars Details

1. Name of the subsidiary Sage International Inc., US

2. The date since when subsidiary was 13" March 2018
acquired

3. Reporting period for the subsidiary FY 2020-2021
concerned, if different from the
holding company’s reporting period

4, Reporting currency and Exchange usD
rate as on the last date of the Buying rate 73.16 INR/USD
relevant financial year in the case of Selling rate 73.07 INR/USD
foreign subsidiaries

5. Share capital INR 1.64 million

6. Reserves & surplus (INR 164.61 million)

7. Total assets INR 2293.66 million

8. Total Liabilities INR 2456.63 million

9. Investments Nil

10. | Turnover INR 3282.15 million

11. | Profit before taxation Loss of INR 311.93 million

12. | Provision for taxation (INR 63.76 million)

13. | Profit after taxation Loss of INR 248.17 million

14. | Proposed Dividend Nil

15. | % of shareholding 100%

Notes:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - Nil
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year — Nil
3. Part B of the Form - Not Applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Satish Kumar Rustgi
Director
DIN: 08574594

Sd/-
Isha Gupta

Company Secretary
Mem. No. 22178

Date: 31.12.2021
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Director
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Sd/-
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Sd/-
Madhur Aneja

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

Annexure-2

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
23, FLOOR-2, PLOT-59/61, ARSIWALA
MANSION NATHALAL PARIKH MARG,
COLABA, MUMBALI 400005

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of all applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED’s books, papers,
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder except as mentioned there and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. Other material compliances are listed in
Annexure A attached to this report.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED for the financial year ended
on 31st March, 2021, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
(if) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iif) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable
b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable
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c¢)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulation, 2014; Not Applicable

e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; Not Applicable

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; Not Applicable

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2016; Not Applicable; and

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations,
2018; Not Applicable.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Debt Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited as prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except as mentioned
below:

The Company has conducted the Annual General Meeting for the Financial year 2019-20 after the due
date specified under the Act and even after the period of extension as granted by the Registrar of
Companies. Accordingly, Company has also committed default in filling its financial statements under
Section 137 and Section 92 of the said act with the ROC within specified Time.

Also, since the Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on BSE Limited, the Company
has failed to submit the financial results for the year ended March 31, 2020 under regulation 52(1) of
SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 within the prescribed timelines pursuant to the regulations.

It has been observed that the Company has also failed to submit the financial results for the half year
ended September 30, 2020 under Regulation 52 of SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 within the prescribed
timelines.

Further, the Company has received /issued debit and credit notes in foreign currency amounting to Rs.
335.69 million and Rs. 119 milion respectively which are outstanding as at year end, for which the
Company will need to get regulatory approvals under the Foreign Exchange Management Act.

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and
on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check
basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the
Company:

(@) The Income Tax Act, 1961;

(b) Goods and Service Tax (GST) Laws ;

(c) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (Chapter I1IB) read with the extant Master Circular
and prudential norms issued by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI’).
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

Based on the information received and records maintained by the Company, I further
report that:

1.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. I further report that the
Company has been sending agenda notes to Directors as per the provisions contained in
its Articles of Association, which is in compliances with the provisions of the Act. Majority
decision is carried through while the dissenting member’s views, if any, are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For ARUN KUMAR GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-

(ARUN KUMAR GUPTA)
Proprietor

Membership No: F5551
Certificate of Practice No: 5086
UDIN: F005551C001999721

Place: Delhi
Date: 31.12.2021
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

Annexure ‘A’

Annexure to the Secretarial Audit Report

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the examinations
carried out by us and explanations furnished and representations made to us by the
Company, its officers and agents, I report that the Company has, during the financial
year under review, complied with the provisions of the Act, the Rules made there
under and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company with regard

to:

=N

12.

13.
14.
15.

Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary
entries therein;

Contracts, Common Seal, Registered Office and Publication of name of the
Company;

Forms, Returns, Documents and resolutions required to be filed with the
Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Central Government, and such other
authorities;

Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Directors, Auditors and
Registrar of Companies;

Disclosures requirements in respect of their eligibility for appointment,
compliance with the code of conduct for Directors of Gluhend India Private
Limited;

Related party transactions which were in the ordinary course of business and at
arm’s length basis;

Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors;

Notice of the meetings of the Board thereof;

Minutes of the meeting of the Board thereof;

Minutes of General Meeting(s);

Approval of the Members, Board of Directors and Government Authorities,
wherever required;

Form of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 as prescribed under part I of
schedule IIT of the Companies Act, 2013 and requirements as to Profit & Loss
Account for the year ended on that date are as per Part II of the said schedule
and the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2020 is in conformity with the format prescribed under schedule V of the
Act;

Report of the Board of Directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2020;
Borrowings and registration of charges;

Investment of Company’s funds and inter-corporate loans and investments.

4™ ANNUAL REPORT 2020-2021



GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

15

Annexure-3

The particulars of the employees who are covered in the provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and Rule
5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are:

A. Names of Top Ten Employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn in F.Y. 2020-

2021:
i i i Yearly Gross .
s.no Employee Designation/ Qualification | Age Joining Fiperience Remur‘:eration EmPrﬁ)Vl;uesnt_
1° | Name 9€ | pate (INR in > p "’1 tion
Nature of (in years) Million) esignatio
Duties
SLMG Beverages
B.com(H), R
1 Mr. Sandeep CASMP IIM 4 09- 19 5.86 Pvt  Ltd(Ladhani
Kumar Chotia el Mar- group) as
CFO Y 20 Director- Finance
Sigma Electric
B.E., M.Tech, Manufacturing
2 SMP IIM Calcutta B 24- - 4.88 Corporation  Pvt.
Mr. Rajesh Goel VP Feb-20 Ltd. as GM
X 02- M/s D.C.Jain&
3 | Mr. satish DW?,:ZCSM- B.com(H), CA 61 | May- 37 4.09 Associates s
Kumar Rustgi 88 Audit Manager
Cummins India
4 GM B.Tech, PGEMP 50 14- 26.5 3.86 Ltd. as Sr. GM
Mr. Sanjeev Jain Feb-20 Sourcing
Diloma in 01- M/s Controls and
5 Mr. V.K. Panchal DGM p 62 41 3.14 Switchgear as DY.
Mech. Engg Aug-97
Manager
Mr.S. 17- Bahe_ Gupta &
6 . GM B.com, AICWA 55 30 2.88 Associates as
Gopalakrishanan Aug-92 . .
Audit Supervisor
. . . Endurance
7 J'\‘");‘h?ha”a”’ay GM "\3/:22“1;'“ 47 Aorl—-ls 26 2.62 Technologies
8y P Limited as AGM
M/s  Remington
Diploma (Mech.), Rand of India Ltd
g | Mr Romeshkr. DGM AMIE, Dip in 61 o7- 39 2.55 as Executive Tech.
Paruthi Feb-94
Mgmt. Development &
Tool Room
Tata Cummins
9 Mr. Babu GM B.E,MBA,MS 52 10- 30 2.42 India Pvt. Ltd. as
Duraisamy Feb-20 Sr. GM Quality FE
Endurance
01- Technologies
10 Mr. Sanjay AGM B.E,MBA 47 Nov- 23 2.08 Limited as AGM
Saproo 19 Operation
A. Details of Employees who were employed throughout the Financial Year 2020-2021 and in receipt of an
aggregate salary of not less than INR 10.2 million only p.a.: (Refer the above table)
B. Employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at the rate
of not less than INR 0.85 million per month; (Refer the above table)
C. Employees Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that

year which, in the aggregate, was in excess of that drawn by the managing director and whole-time director
and manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two

percent of the equity shares of the company: NA
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

Annexure-4

Pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the following
disclosures should be made in the Board’s (Applicable to Listed Company)

The Board hereby noted that the below-mentioned details are applicable to Listed companies. Even though the company is
a private entity, is required to provide the following as its debt being listed. Hence the below disclosure for the FY 2020-
2021.

(a) No remuneration was paid to Non-Executive Directors on the Board. The ratio of the remuneration of the following
Executive Directors to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial year is as follows:

Mr. Satish Kumar Rustgi — 6.8

Mr. Vatsal Solanki—2.2

(b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year is NIL.

(c) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year is in the range of 1%.

(d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company is 675.

(e) The average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration has been in the range of
1'%. Due to COVID-19 and its effects on the business of the company, the increase in remuneration is much low during the
relevant financial year.

(f) The Board hereby affirms that the remuneration as well as the increase is as per the policy of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Date: 31.12.2021
Place: Delhi
Sd/-
Satish Kumar Rustgi
Chairman
(DIN - 08574594)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Gluhend India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Gluhend India Private Limited (“the
Company"”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements,

Emphasis of Matters
We draw attention to :

a) Note 45 to the standalone financial statements, which describes matters relating to non-compliances with
certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to presentation and adoption of audited
financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, before the shareholders in
the respective Annual General Meetings within the stipulated time as prescribed under section 96 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and submission of audited standalone financial results for the year ended 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020 and unaudited standalone financial results for the six months ended 30
September 2020 and 30 September 2019 to the stock exchange within the prescribed time pursuant to
Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended. Accordingly, the Company could be liable to certain penal provisions for the said non-
compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. The consequential impact of these non-compliances,
including the liability for penal charges, if any, on the standalone financial statements is presently not
ascertainable.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 - 2021



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

18

b) Note 46 to the standalone financial statements, wherein it is indicated that the Company has received /
issued debit and credit notes in foreign currency aggregating to Rs. 119.77 million and Rs. 335.69 million
respectively which are outstanding as at year end, for which the Company will need to get regulatory
approvals under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999. The consequential impact of this matter,
including liability for penal charges, if any, on the standalone financial statements is presently not
ascertainable,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the 'Basis for Qualified
Opinion” section of our report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in Annexure A to the Independent
Auditor’s Report, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

(Refer Notes 2.3 and 3D of standalone
financial statements)

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has
goodwill of Rs 2,177.72 millions.

The management of the Company assesses
the impairment of goodwill annually at the

year-end. The impairment assessment
performed by the Management involved
significant  judgements and estimates

including future performance and short and
long-term growth rates and discount rate.

Accordingly, the impairment assessment of
goodwill was considered as a key audit
matter.

Sr. | Key Audit Matter | Auditor’s Response
No.
1. Impairment assessment of goodwill: Principal audit procedures performed:

We performed testing of design and operating
effectiveness of internal controls and substantive
testing as follows:

Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the management’s internal
control around the impairment assessment
process.

Understood the key assumptions considered in
the management’s estimates of future cash
flows.

We evaluated the short-term and long-term
growth rates considered in the estimates of
future cash flows and the discount rate used in
the calculations by involving our valuation
specialists.

Compared the historical cash flows (including
for current year) against projections of the
management for the same periods and gained
understanding of the rationale for the changes.

Performed sensitivity analysis on the key
assumptions within the forecast cash flows and
focused our attention on those assumptions
we considered most sensitive to the changes;
such as revenue growth and profitability
during the forecast period, the terminal growth
rate and the discount rate applied to the future
cash flows.
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Sr. Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

No.

- « We ascertained the extent to which a change
in these assumptions, both individually or in
aggregate, would result in impairment, and
considered the likelihood of such events
occurring.

We further assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

2. Accounting and valuation of Compulsory | Principal audit procedures performed:

Convertible Preference Shares ('CCPS’)
(Refer Notes 2.16.C and 16 of standalone
financial statements)

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
("CCPS’) of Rs. 2,855.80 millions (including
embedded derivative).

Considering the terms of the CCPS, the
accounting is complex and involved
significant management judgement. The fair
value of CCPS is determined through
application of valuation techniques and the
use of assumptions and estimates.

Where observable data is not readily
available, as in the case of level 3 financial
instruments, then estimates need to be
developed which can involve significant
management judgement.

The effect of fair value adjustments has
material impact on the loss of the Company.

We identified application of appropriate
accounting and assessing the fair value of
CCPS as a key audit matter because of the
degree of complexity involved in accounting,
valuing financial liabilities and the degree of
judgement exercised by management in
determining the inputs used in the valuation
models.

We performed testing of design and operating
effectiveness of internal controls and substantive
testing as follows:

« Evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of management’s internal
controls over accounting and valuation
process.

o Evaluated the management’s accounting

assessment of CCPS by reading the terms of
CCPS in the framework agreement.

« Obtained the fair valuation

management’s expert.

report of

e Evaluated the objectivity, competence and
independence of the management expert.

» Evaluated the valuation model, assumptions
relating to future cash flows, growth rate and
discount rate by involving our valuations
specialists.

« Performed arithmetic check of the valuation
model used.

We further assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

* Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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« In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

» If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management.
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s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our
report expresses qualified opinion on the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting for the reasons stated therein.
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company being a private company,
section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. ~ The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - Refer Note 41(a) of the notes forming part of the standalone
financial statements.

il. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 35 of the notes forming part of the standalone
financial statements.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company- Refer Note 36 of the notes forming part of the standalone
financial statements.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

-

Satpal Singh Arora

Partner

(Membership No. 098564)
UDIN : 21098564AAAAEI3122

Place : New Delhi
Date : 31 December 2021
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gluhend India Private Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting (the “"Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, a material weakness has
been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting with respect to issue of inventory for production and consequent impact on inventory records. This
could potentially result in a material misstatement in the recording of consumption and year-end inventory
account balances in the Company’s standalone financial statements.

A‘material weakness'is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, maintained adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting as of 31
March 2021, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”, and
except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as of 31 March 2021.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing,
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2021, and this material weakness does not affect our opinion on the said standalone
financial statements of the Company.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

==[ Chartered |®
= Accountants

Partner

(Membership No. 098564)
UDIN : 21098564AAAAEI3122

Place : New Delhi

Date : 31 December 2021
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

i In respect of its property, plant and equipment:

d.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment to cover all the items
once in two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, property, plant and equipment were physically
verified by the Management in the previous year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
immovable properties of land and buildings whose title deeds / conveyance deeds have been pledged
as security for current and non-current borrowings are held in the name of Sage Metals Private
Limited (erstwhile subsidiary company), based on the confirmations received by the Company from
custodian (Debenture Trustee) as at balance sheet date, details of which are as follows:

Particulars of the land Gross Block Net Block Remarks
and buildings (as at 31 (as at 31
March 2021) March 2021)
(Rs. in (Rs. in
millions) millions)

Freehold land and building 100.69 99.46 | The conveyance deeds/ sale
located at 346, Functional deeds are in the name of
Industrial Estate, Sage Metals Private Limited
Patparganj, Delhi-110092 that was merged with the
admeasuring 450  sq. Company under Section 230
metre. to 232 of the Companies Act,

—— 12013 in terms of the
Freehold land and building 295.21 249,73 | approval of the Mumbai
located at Plot no. 192-D, Bench of National Company
Sector-4, Phase II, Growth Law Tribunal.
Centre, Bawal, Haryana
admeasuring 19,181.25
sg. metre.
Freehold land and building 253.62 242.44
located at 123, Sector-24
Faridabad, Haryana
admeasuring 14,318.091
sq. yard.
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In respect of building constructed on leasehold land (leasehold land is disclosed as Right-of-use
assets), based on the examination of the lease agreements, we report that the lease agreements
are in the name of Sage Metals Private Limited (erstwhile subsidiary company), details of which is

as follows:

Particulars of the land Gross Block Net Block Remarks
and building (as at 31 (as at 31
March 2021) March 2021)
(Rs. in (Rs. in
millions) millions)
Leasehold land and 528.79 459.37 | The lease agreements are

in the name of Sage Metals
Private Limited that was
merged with the Company
under Section 230 to 232 of
the Companies Act, 2013 in
terms of the approval of the
Mumbai Bench of National
Company Law Tribunal,

building thereof, located
at Plot no. B-7 and B-8,
Site-4, Sahibabad
admeasuring 7,693.14
sq. meters and 7,781.58
sq. meters respectively.

il. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories were
physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals other than goods in
transit for which subsequent receipts have been verified. Material discrepancies noticed on physical
verification during the year have been properly dealt with in the books of account. In case of inventories
lying with the third parties, confirmations have been received by the management for stock held at the
year-end and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations. (Also refer ‘Basis
of Qualified Opinion’ section of Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report).

ii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans,
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

V. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year. Also, according to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no unclaimed deposits, hence the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act do not apply to
the Company.

vi, The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not
made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

-
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vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty,
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. Also refer note
41(c) to the standalone financial statements regarding management assessment on certain matters
relating to the provident fund.

b. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable other
than dues related to Income-tax, the details of which are given below:

Name of | Nature Amount | Period to which | Due date Date of
Statute of dues (Rs. in the amount subsequent
! millions) |  relates y | payment |

Income Income 1.60 2002-2003 31 March 2003 Payment
Tax Act, | Tax Dues |- — pending
1961 1=7s 2007-2008 31 March 2008

i 0.73 2010-2011 31 March 2011

1 0.11| 2016-2017 31 March 2017

c. There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty and Value Added Tax as on 31 March 2021 on account of disputes.

viil. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and dues to debenture holders. The
Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions and government.

ix. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

% To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year.

Xi. The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
do not apply to the Company.

Xii., The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.
xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in

compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv, During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is not
applicable to the Company.
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XV, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding,
subsidiary or associate company, as applicable, or persons connected with them and hence provisions
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

XVi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934.

Q
[ Chartered
= \ Accountants

Place : New Delhi
Date : 31 December 2021
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For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

( g
Satpal Singh Arora

Partner

(Membership No. 098564)
UDIN : 21098564AAAAEI3122
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(All amaounts are In Rs. Millions, Unless otharwine stated)

Particulors HMate Mo, As at As ot
31 March 2021 A1 March 20320
I. ASSETS
Non-current aseats
a. Property, plant and egulpment ST BHi.71 403.70
b. Capital warkin:progrous ip 54,28 7083
€. Right-of-iin agsnts i 434,10 431.48
d. Goodwill an 2,172,712 217272
&, Other intangibile assets a .09 60
f. Intangible asyets under devalopmsnt 20,h6 i6.81
g. Tnvestmiril in subslilinry company % 4481 651,13
h. Financial asssts
{i] Loana [ Q.67 1.9
(ii) Other financial aasets 7 .10 24,33
i. Nom curfent Lax assels (nel) ] 209,69 204,50
{. Other noni-cuifent Bamets a 171 10408
Total nan-currant assets 4,688,098 4, 758,70
Current assols
2. Inventorios in 1,0681.00 P84.35
b, Financial assats
(i) Invesimants : | - 1,00
(i} Trade recolvablin 11 057,47 1,153,061
(lif) Cash and cash egulvalents 12 7,96 HE
(iv} Bank balances other tian (1) above 13 4,00 1.4
{v) Loans [ 47 .53
{vi) Other fnanclal astels 7 0,43 1110
0. Other cuffenl assels 9 1aths
Total currant sssats 3,082,823 2;611.09
Total assnks 'J'Iﬂllﬂi 7,370.58
II. EQUITY AND LIADILITIES
EQUITY
a. Equity shaie capital 14 156,97 356,92
b, Cther eqiiily if {1,150.86) {47 56)
Tatal squity (7v3.09) (490.64]
LIABILITIES =
Non-current labilitins
a. Financial liabilities
(1) Compulsorily canvertible prefererce shares 16 2.055.80 2.548.27
(i} Berrowinns 17 . 311875
{iil) Lease flability 432 4,21 .
{iv) Othar financial ok ities 1 . 416,84
b. Provisions n 78,032 7064
¢, Deferred tax liahilities {net) an 34,87 iaAi
d. Other non-current llakilities 14 sy 1,67
Tutal non-currant linbilities FRFER GA00,65
Current liabilltion
a. Flnancial labilitics
(1} Borowings 17 3,13%,GH 4] .54
{ii} Lease lakility 42 .08 -
{id@) Trade payablan u
-total putstandinag dies of MICro enterorisds and wmill enterifises 297,19 290,64
-tatal sutstanding duss of creditors other than micro enterpfises o small 1,201,865 (A4 1
AL s
{Iv) Other financial hati|litiss 21 nH4. 12 10,07
b. Provisions 18 13,80 114,75
. Cufrent tax liabilities [} a,0n 4,19
.d. Other currani liabilities 1% L4111 55,99
Total current llabilitiaa BAZRAR 1,500,50
Total labilities 1,A0%,15 AT
Toral equlty and llabilities B X T T - T
Sec accompanying notes Lo the SLAndalene fnancial stalemsnls 1isdg

In terms of our reéift of @van date altachid

For Deloitte Haskins & Salls LLP
Chartered Accountant

Partaci
{Membership No.: (G564 |

Charlarad | @

Accountants o

Placet Mew Delhi
Date: 31 Decembar, 2021
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h

W

/Z’“’{K’ Pt AA Lk

il vy Michani Rakiter
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LN aFudi00n

Lilva Gupti
Company Secietary
Masmbership No. 22170
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Particulars Nota No. Far the year For the year anded
anded 31 March 2020
31 March 2021

1. Income

(a} Revenue from aperations 22 3,314.30 4 4068.75

(b) Other income 23 364.80 165.49
2 Total income 3,679.10 4,634.24
3. Expenses

(2} Cost of materials consumed 24 1,887.64 2,017.81

(b) Changes In inventaries of finished goods and wark-ln=progross 25 (134.54) 238 .40

(c) Employee benefits expense 26 630,01 gh2.17

(d) Finance costs 27 570.29 572.20

(e) Depreciation and amorligation expeanie 20 126.02 155.24

(f) Other expenses 29 1,066,132 1,297.22
4, Total expenses 4,154.54 a‘_'_ﬂﬂﬂ .04
5.  Loss before tax (2-4) (475.44) (328.80)
6. Tax expense;

(a) Current tax A0A(s) 12,949 51.01

(b) Deferred tax 30AlR) {146, 78) (65,60}

Total tax expania {133,79) {.I-I.!I!
7.  Loss for the ymar (5-8) {341.65) (314.21)
8. Other comprehensive incame

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 34

(a) Remeasuramant of post employiment benefit abiligations 731 1.21

(b) Income tax relating to above item (2.13) (0.26)

Total other comprehensive income 5.18 0.87
9. Total comprehensive loss (7+8) ﬂ;ﬁ,d‘,!-) (313.34)
10. Earnings per equity share 4

(&) Basic (in Rs.) {1.29) (1.32}

(b} Diluted (in Ra,) {1.29) {1.32)
See accompanying notes te the standalone financial statements 1to 49

In terms of our repart of aven date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Salls LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.!117366W/W-100018)

Satpal Singh Arora
Partner
(Membership No.: 098564

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31 December, 2021
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Madhur Anaja
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Michaal Rakiter
Director

DIN: 07995000

N: QB574594

P
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Company Secretary
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a. Equity share capital

Particulars Amaount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 321.23
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Issue of equity shares (Refer note 160D) 35.69
Balance as at 31 March 2020 356.92
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Issue of equity shares "
Balance as at 31 March 2021 356.02
b. Other equity

Particulars Reservas and Surplus Total
Retalned earnings Deemad capital
contribution

Balance as at 1 April 2018 (602,00} 34.76 (567.24)
Loss for the year {314.21) = {314.21}
Other comprehensive loss, net of income tax 0.87 - 0,87
Expense recognised during the year s 302 33.02
Balance as at 31 March 2020 {215.34) H.?_! {aa7.56)
Less far the year {Jd41.65) - {341.65)
Other comprehensive income, nil of income Lax 5.18B = 5.18
Expense recognised during the year . 3317 3317
Balance as at 31 March 2021 {1,251.81) 100.95 (1,150.88)

See accompanying notes ta the standalone financial statements
In terms of our report of even date sttached
For Deloitte Haskins & Salis LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registratigg No.:117366W/W-100018)

Satpal’Singh Arora
Partner
{(Membership Mo.: 098564)

harterag |

countania

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31 December, 2021
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Madhur Anaja
Chief Executive Officer
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Chiel Financial Officer
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Company Secretary
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Particulars

For the year

A Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Interest incoma

Gurantee Premium income

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation axpanse

Pravision for doubtful balances with government authorities
{Profit)/Loss on fair value of derlvative eomponent of CCPS
(Profit)/Loss an sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision for doubtful trade receivables and advances (net)
Provision for onerous contract

Operating profit befora working capital changes

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in lfade recolvablos
(Increase)/decrease In other financials assets - current
(Increase)/decrease in ather financlals assets - non = current
(Increase}/decrease In other curfent assets
(Increase)/decrease in other non - current assets
Increase/(decrease) in provisions - current
Increase/(decrease) in provigians - Ao - durrént
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities - current
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in ather non - current llabilities
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Cash flow from operating activitias

Income taxes paid

Net cash flow fram operating activities

B Cash flow from investing activities

Capital expenditure on praparty, plant and equipment and Intangible assets including capital
advances

Proceeds from sale of praperty, plant and equipment
Sale of current investments

Loan given to employees

Interest received

Investrnents In fixed deposits

Met cash used in investing activities

€  Cash flows from finanging activities

Proceeds from shart term borrawlings

Repayment of short term borrawings

Praceeds from long term barrowings

Repayment of jong term borrowings

Proceeds from issue of compulsarily convartible preference shares
Finance charges paid

Net cash flow (used in) financing activitias

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash eguivalants (A+B+C)
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalernts &t tha and of the year

For the year

andad andad
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020
(475.44) {328.80)
{1.27) {0.77)
{6.75) (5.47)
570,28 572,20
126.02 155.24
- 2.68
(240,00} 130.00
(1.18) 5,69
1.03 .85
. 79,31
(127.30) 613.93
{116,83) 309,75
204,158 {421.83)
10,73 (5.72)
(1.82) (7.07)
(629.42) 6694
157.58 (158,37)
(93,64} 147
0,18 6.75
152.01 (1.33)
52,59 40,45
(18.57) 8.71
545,50 274,80
332.36 109.56
(18,23) (32.09)
186.83 691.40
(75.19) (143,52)
1.84 4.28
1.05 3,74
1.48 {0.17)
1.52 0,74
(1.4%) 8.21
{70.35) (126.72)
= 341,54
(341,54) (608.11)
‘ 0.80
(1,02} (0.94)
647,51 ¥
(421,13) (328,07
(116.16) (594.78)
0.32 (30.10)
87.64 112,74
B7.96 87.64
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Particulars

As at
31 Marech 2021

A at
31 March 2020

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Rafer note 12)

Cash in hand
Balances with scheduled banks:
- in current accounts

Notes:

Q.40 0.15
87.56 07.49
A7.96 A7.64

1 The Cash Flow Statement has bean prepared in accordance with ‘Indirect method' a8 set out in Ind AS - 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows', ag notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relovant rules lssued thereunder.

2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars

Man-cash
Changes

An at Cash
31 March 2020 Flaws

As it
31 March 2021

Non-current borrowings 3,118.75 {1.02) (3,117.73) -
Current borrowings 341,54 ‘341,54} 3,135,68 3,135,680
Closing balance of secured loans 3,460.29 {342.56) 17.95 3,135.68
Particulars As at Cash Non-cash As at

31 March 2019 Flows Changas 31 March 2020
Mon-current borrowings Z,838.61 (0.14) 280.28 3,118,75
Current borrowings 290,61 50,93 . 341.54
Current maturities of long term barrawings 30316 {317.50) 14,34 .
Closing balance of securad loans 3,432.38 {2686.71) 294,62 31,460,249

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statemaents 1to49

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's RegistratiomNo.: 117366 W/W-100018)

Satpal Singh Arora
Partner
(Membership Mo.: 098564)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31 December, 2021
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RING 07995000
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Date: 31 December, 2021
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Gluhend India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts are in Rs, Millians, unleéss etharwise stated)

1

General information

Gluhend India Private Limited {'the Company'} Is a Company domiclled in India and was incorporated on 22 December; 2017 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') applicable in India vide CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216, Its debt securities are |isted on
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in India, The Company is having its registered office at Arsiwala Mansion, Nathalal Parikh Marg, Colaba, Mumbal
- 400005.

The Company is primarily engaged (n the business of manufacturing of electrical wiring accessories and fittings. The Company mainly caters to
international markets, During the period ended 31 March 2018, Sage Metals Private Limited ('SMPL' - erstwhile Subsidiary Company) got
merged with the Company with eifect from appointed date Le, 13 March 2018,

Significant accounting palicies

2.1 Statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements comply In all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind A3) prescribed under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting

principles generally accepted in India.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly Issued accounting standard I5 initlally adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting palicy hitherto in dse,

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

The standalone financial statements have hean prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financlal Instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reparting perlod, as explained in the accounting policles balaw,

Historical cost is generally based an the fair value of the consideration given In exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price s directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigque. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a labllity, the Compary takes into account the characteristics of the asset or llability If market participants would
take those characteristics Into account when pricing the asset or liabllity at the measurement date, Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these financlal statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 102 Share based payments, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ingd AS 116 Leases, and measuremnents that
have some similarities (o fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial réporting purposes, fair value medsurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measuremant in (ts entirety, which are

described as follows!

s Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or llabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

= Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

+ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assets or liabllity.

2.3 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable asseis, liabllitles and contingent liabilitles less accumulated Impairment losses, If any, Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or when events or drcumstances indieate that the implied fair value of goodwlll is leas than Its carrying amount,

2.4 Investment in subsidiary

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has power over the entity, |8 exposed, or has rights te
variable returns from Its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retumns by using its power over the entity. Power |s
demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity's returns,
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment. Cost comprises price pald to acquire the nvestment and directly attributable
cost. -
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2.5 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised once the entity satisfled that the performance obligation and control are transferred to the customers,

Sale of products

The Company derives revenue from Sale of Goods and revenue s recognised upon transfer of contral of promised goods o customers In an
amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive In exchange for those goods, To recognise revenues, the Company apply
the following five step approach; (1) identity tha contract with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3)
determing the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognise revenues
when a performance obligation is satisfied.

The Company accounts far varlable considerations like, volume discounts, rabates and pricing ncentives to eustomers as reduction of revenue
on a systematic and rational basis over the period of the contract, The Company estimates an amount of such variable consideration using
expected value methad or the aingle most likely amount In a range of possible consideration depending on which method better predicts the
amount of consideration to which we may be entitled.

Revenues are shown net of allowances/ returng, guads and services tax and applicabile discounts and allowances.

Sale of services
Revenue from rendering of services |s recagnised on accrual basls in accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts.

Interest income
Interest income on financial assets (including deposits with banks) s recognised using the effective intérest rate methad on a time
proportionate basis.

Export benefits

Expart entitiements are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to recelve credit as per the terms of the scheme s
established in respect of exports made and when there & no sigiificant uiicertalinty regarding the ultimate collaction of the relevant expart

proceeds,

2.6 Leases
The Company as a lessea

The Company assesses, whither the caontract |s, or contains, a lease, A Contract s, or contalns, a lease if the Contract Involves:

(&) The use of an identified asset,
(b) The right to chtaln substantially all the econamic benefits from use of the identifled asset, and
(c) The right to direct the use af the identifiad assat,

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessoe,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 menths or less) and leases of low value assets, For these leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis aver the term of the lease,

The lease liability includés the net present valie of the following lease paymaents:

= Fixed payments (including in-substance flxed payments), less any lease incentives and reécelvable and
» Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, If the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also Included in the measurement of liability, The lease paymaents
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, 1T that rate cannot be readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate, baing the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary ta obtain an
asset of similar value to the rlght=of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, securlty and conditions,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit af loss over the lease perled so as to
produce a constant periadic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability for each period.

The lease liability is subsequantly measured by Increasing the carrying amount to reflect Interest on the lease lability and by reducing the
carrying amount to reflact the lease paymaents made,

The right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the Inltlal measurement of the lease lability, any lease paymaents made
at or before the commencemaent date of the lease less any lease incentives received, any Initial direct costs and restaration costs,

The right-of-use assels are meadured atb cost less any accuimulated depreciation and accumulated impalrment losses, if any. The right-of-use
assets are depreciatied over the sharter of the asset's useful life and (he lease tepm on a straight-line basls, If the Company Is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, tha right-of-use asset |s depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life,

The Company applies Ind AS 36 ‘Impalrment of assets’ to determine whether a right-of use asset |s impalred and accounts Tor any ldentifind
impairment loss as specified in note 2,14 of the significant accounting paolicies, :
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2.7

2.9

Foreign currency transactiens and translations

Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency af the primary economic envirenmant in which the Company operates |.e., functional currency,
to be Indian Rupees (Rs.). The standalone financial staternents are presented In Indian Rupess, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency, All amounts have been rounded to the nearest millions up to two decimal places, |f otherwise stated,

Transactions and Balancas

Monetary and non-manetary transactions |n forelgn currencles are initlally recorded in the functional currency of the Company at the exchange
rates at the date of the transactions or at an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting date are transiated at the rates of exchange prevalling on
reporting date. Gaing/{losses} arising on account of realisation/settlement of fareign exchange transactions and on translation of monetary
foreign currency assets and llabilities are recognised n the Statament of Prafit and Loss.

Foreign exchange galns / (losses) arlsing on translation of forelgn currgncy monetary loans are presented In the Staterent of Profit and Loss on
net basis. However, forelgn exchange differences arising from foreign currency monetary loans to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
borrowing costs are prasentad in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance casts.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs direct!v attributable to the acqulsitlnn, coanstruction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of timie to got ready for thelr intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, untll such time as the assels are
substantially ready far their intended use or sale,

Interest income earped on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualilying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in prafit or loss in the period In which they are Incurred,

Employee benefits

Short-term employae banafits

Employee benefit such as salaries, wages and bonus, ete, that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employoes render the related service are recognised as an expense unless another Ind As requires or permit the incluslan of
the benefits in the cost of agsets in raspact of employess' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at an undiscounted

amount expected to be paid when the labilities are settlad,
Post-employment benefit plans

Defined contributian plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to the appropriate government suthaorities. The Campany has ne further payment obligations
once the contributions hayve been pald, The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributiens are recegnised as
employee henefits expense when they are due ar In thee year i which actual services are incurred by emplayees.

Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans of the Company compnse gratulty,
The Campany has an ohligation towards gratulty, a defined benefit retirement plan cavering eligible employees, Tha plan provides for a lump

sum payment to vested employees ot retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment, of an amount based on the
respective emplayee's salary and the tenure of émployment. Vasting occurs upon completion of five years of service,

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined henefit abligation at
the end of the reporting periad, The defined benefit abligation is calculated by actuary uging the projected unit credit method,

The present value of the defined benefit abligation Is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting perlod on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related abligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benufit obligation. This cost and ather costs
are included in employes benefit expense in the Statement of Frofit and Loss.

Remedsurement gains and losses arlsing frum experience adjustments and changes (0 actuarial assumptions are recognised (n the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive Income, Thay are included in "other equity” in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
Balance Sheet.

Changes In the present value of the defined benefit abligation resylting from settlement or cortailments are recognised Immadiately in
Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost,
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Compensated absancas

Short-term obligations

Accumulated leaves which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months |s treated as a short-term employee bepefit. The Company
measures the expected cost of such absences sy tha additional amount that it oxpects to pay 85 & resull of the unused antitlement that has
accumulated at the regporting date,

Long-term obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be sottled wholly within 12 maenths after the and aof tha period In which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method, The benefits are discounted using
the market yields at the end af the reporting periad that have térms approximating to the terms of the related uhllqatinn. Remeasurements as a
result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised In profit or loss,

2,10 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises af current tax and deferred tax. 1L is recegnised In the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the mxtent that |t
relates to items recognisad in ather comprehensive Income or der’-'ﬂlY In equity.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment ta the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current Lax reflects the best estimate of the Lax amount expected to be pald or
recelved after considering the ungartainty, If any relating to Income taxes. [t s measured using tax rates enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax agsets and current tax llabilities are offset anly If there Is a legally snforceable right ta set off the recagnised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the Hability an a net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temparary dilferences bhetween the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financlal reporting
purposes and the corretpanding amounts uded [of taxatian purposes,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unuged tax losses, unused tax
credits and deductible tamparary differences to the extent that is probable that future taxable prafits will be avallable against which they can be
used. Deferred tax assets unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced Lo the extent that it |s
prabable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. Significant management judgement 18 reguired to
determine the probability of deferved tax asset,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the panad when the asset (s realised or llability is settled, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and labilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax "MAT") credit entitlement under the proyvigions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 Is recognisad as a deferred tax asset when
It s probable that future gconomic benefit associated with it in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will flow to the Company
and the asset can be measured reliably, MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed (0 the year in which the Company becormes lable
to pay income taxes al the enacted tax rates, MAT credit entitlement is reviewad at each reporting dat@ and |s recognised to the extent that |s
probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be used. MAT credit entitlement has been presented as deferred tax
asset in Balance Sheet, Significant management judgemaent is required to determine the probabllity of recognition af MAT credit entitlement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only If there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabllities and assats
levied by the same tax duthorities,
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2.11 Property, plant and squipment

Recognition and measurement
All items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairfmant losses, if any,

The cost of an item af proparty, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of aperating in tha manner Intended by managament.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipmant have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate companant
of property, plant and equiprient.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part Initlally récogniged (s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected fram its uge or dispesal, Any gain or loss arlsing on derecognition of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment) is included In the Statement of Prafit
and Loss when property, plant and equipment Is derecognised. The carrying amount af any component accounted ag a separate component s
derecognised, when replaced or whan the property, plant and equipment to which the component relates gels deracaghised,

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are Included in the asset's carrylng amount or recagnised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the
future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the itern can ba measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement af Prafit and Loss at the time ol Incurrence.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognisad o as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land) less their residual values over thelr useful lives, using
the written down value method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes In estimate accounted for on a prospective pasja,

Estimated useful lived of the assets are as follows:

Asset head Uszaful lifa in years
Factory buildings 15-30

Other buildings (other than tamporary a0
structure)

Plant and machinery 15
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 3

Vehicles B

The useful lives have been determined based on internal evaluation done by management and are in line with the estimated uselul lives, to the
extent prescribed by the part € of Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the technalogical obsolescence and actual usage
of the asset. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset,

Depreciation is calculated on @ pro-rata bagis for assets purchased/sald during the year,

Capital work-in-progress
Cost of property, plant and equipmant not ready far use as at the reparting date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress,
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2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised oply IF It is probalile that the expectad future economic banefits that are atiributable te the
asset will flow to the Campany and the caost of assets can be measured rellably. The other intangible assets are recorded at cost of actuisition
including incidental costs related to acquisition and Installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impalrment losses, (f

any.

Gain or losses arising from derecognition of an other Intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the othgr intangible asset and are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset |s derecognised.

Subsequent costs

Subseguent costs is capitalised only whan it Increases the futura economic benefits embaodiad in the specific assel to which It ralates, All other
expenditure on other intangible assets is recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, as incurred,

Amortisation

The Company's intangible assets are armortised under straight line bagis over the following uselul lives
Asset head Usaful life in yaars

Computer Software [

Fawvourable lease assets {representing fair During the balance lease term (43 years)

value of lease rights In leasehold land)

Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Impairment ~ non<financial assats

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of |ts non=financial assets to determine whether there s any Indication of
impairment. If any such indication of impairment exlsts, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated, For impalrment testing, assets are
accompanied together into the amallest comipany of sasets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or cash generating units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, Value |0 use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using 4 pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU, An impairmaent loss (s recognised If the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its estimated recovarable amaunt. Impalifment losses are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss,

An impairment loss is revaraed I there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the assel's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have bheen determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if na impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Raw Materials and Storas and Spares (inﬂllﬂlﬂﬂ packing mntm‘iaf) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. However, matarials
and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost f the Tnished productg in which thay will be
incorparated are expected to he sold at or above cost, Cost s determined on welghted average basis,

Wark-in-progress and finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost includes direct materials and labour and a
propertion of manufacturing everheads based on normal oparating capacity, Cost i determined on weighted average hasis.

Net realisable value |s the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ol business loss the estimated costs of completion and the astimated
costs necessary to make the sale,

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result af a past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying sconomic benefits will be Fequired to settle tha obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

If the effect of the Lima value of money is materlal, provisions are discounted using B current pre-tax rate that reflocts current market
assessments of the time value of money and the rigks specific to the liability. When discounting 18 used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a tinance cost,

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract (s considered to exist
where the Company has a contract under whieh the upavoldable coasts of meating the obligations under the contract excend the econamic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Contingent liabilitiez and contingent assats

Contingent liabilities are possible olligations that apise from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence oF nons
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingant labllity, unless the
probability of outflow of ecanamic banefits s rerriote,
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2.16 Financial instruments

A financial instrument 15 any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity,

A. Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are Initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at falr value through profit or loss, transaction codts
that are attributable to the acquisition of the linancial asset,

Classification and subsequent maasuremant

Classification

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company classifles financial assets in fallowing categories:
* Financial assets af amortised cost

+ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT)

» Financial assets at fair value threugh profit ar loss (FYTPL)

A financial asset being 'debt instrufent’ |8 measured at the amartised cost if both of the follawing conditions are mat:

« The financial asset s held within a business model whose objective 1 to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

« The contractual terms of the financial assat glve rise on specifled dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and
Interest (SPPI) on the principal amaunt outstanding.

A financial asset being ‘debt instrument’ Is measured at the FYTOCT IF both of the following criteria are mat:

« The asset is held within the business model, whose objective s achieved both by collecting contractual eash Nows and selling the
financial assets, and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash laws that are SPPL on the principal amount
outstanding.

A finanicial asset being equity Instrument is measured at FYTPL,
All financial assets not classified a5 measured at amort|sed cost or FVTOC] as described above are measured at FVTPL,

Subsequent measuremant

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Financial assets carried at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methad, The amartised
cost is reduced by impairment losses, (F any. Interest income and impairment dra recognised (n the Statoment of Profit and Loss,

Financial assets carried at FVTPL

Financial assets carried at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and lesses, including any interest income, are recagnised in
the Statement of Profit and Lass,

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial assel when the contrsetual rghts to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or t transfers the
rights ta receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction (n which substantially all of the flsks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or In which the Campany neither transters nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retaln cantrol of the financial asset, Any gain or loss an derecagnition IS recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reclassification of financial assats

The Company determines classification of financial assets and llabilities on initial recognition, After initial recognition, no reclassification is made
for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial labilities. For financial assets which are debt instrumaents, a reclassification is
made only if there is a change In the business model for managing those assets, Changes to the business model are expected to be Infrequent,
The Company's seniar managemant determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to
the Company’s operatlans, Such ehanges are avident to external parties, A change In the business model occurs when the Campany aither
begins or ceases to perform an actlvity that is significant to lts operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in
business medel. The Company does not réstate any previously recognised gains, losses (Including impalrment gains or lodges) or intefest,

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair valua)

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not falr valued through
prafit or loss. Loss allowance for trade recelvables with no significant finaneing carmpenent is measured at an amount equal ta lifetime ECL. For
all other financial assets, expected eredit losses are measurad at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from Initial recognition, In which case these financial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. The changes {incremental of
reversal) in loss alfowanece computed using ECL model, are recognised as an [mpairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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2.17

2,18

B. Financial liabilities

Recognition and initial maasuramant
All financial liabilities ara inltlally recognised whan the Company bocomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial

liabilities are initially moasurad at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities net recorded at fair value through profit o loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the liability.

Classification and subsequaent measuramant
Financial liabilities are classified as messured at amartised cost ar FYTPL,

A financial liability is classified as FVTPL If It |5 classilied as held-for-trading, or it Is a derlvative or It (5 designated as such on initial recognition,
Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured al Tair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recegnised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities other than classifled as FVTPL, aré subsequéntly measured at amortised cost using the effective (nterest methad, Interast
expense are recognised In Statermant of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on dereécognition (s also recognised n the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financlal liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different, In this case, a new financlal liability based on modified terms 5 recognised at fair value, The difference between the careying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the now financial lability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financlat llabilities are offset and the net amount présented n the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company
currently has a legally anforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultangausly,

C. Hybrid contracta

A hybrid contract is a financial Ingtrument that contains both a non-derivative host contract and an embedded derivative. The non-derivative
host contract is classified as linancial llability and Initially measured at fair value, Subsequent measurement of the financial "-'-‘b”“'}' Is done in
accordance with Ind AS 109,

The derivatives embedded (0 a host contract that is an asset within the scopa of Ind AS 109 are not separated, Derivatives embedded In all
other host contract are separated only If the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the
host contracts are not sepafated,

D. Deemed Capital Contribution

Deemed Capital Contribution has been recognised based on the cost of the premium of the financlal guarantee given by the Holding Company to
the lenders of the Company.

Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted sarnings per share (EPS) for Its equity shares,

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding durlng the period,

Diluted EPS is deterimined by adjusting profit or lass attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity sharas, Patential equity shares aro desmed to be dilutive only If thelr conversion ta
equity shares would decrease thie net praflt pier share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been lssued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted lor
the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the putstanding shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined (ndependently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and patentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for employee share options and bonus shares, if any, as appropriate,

Current - non-current clagsification
All assets and liabilitles are classified into current and nonscurrent,

Assets

An asset is classified a8 currant whan it satigfies any of the fellewing criteria;

+ it is expected to be realised In, or is Intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal aperating cyela;

= itis held primarily for the purpase of being traded;

s |t is expected to be realised within 12 montha after the reporting period; or

e it is cash or cash equivalent unless it Is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a labllity for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

Current assets include the currant portion of non=current tinancial assets, All other assets are classified as non-current,
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Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

+ itis expected to be settled (n the Campany's normal operating cycle;

+ itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

» |tis due to be settled within 12 maonths after the reporting perlod; or

« the Company does not have an unconditianal right to defer settlement af the lability for at least 12 manths after the reporting
period. Terms of a llabllity that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlemant by the issue of equity Instruments
do net affect its classification.

Current liahilities include the current portion of nan-curréent financial labilities. All other labilities are classified as nan-current,
Deferred tax assets and liahilities are classified as non-currant asseis and liabilities.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle Is the time betwaen tha acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash of cash equivalents, Based on the
nature of operations and the time between the acguisition of assets for processing ond their realisation (0 cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle being a period of 12 months for the purpose of classification of assets and labilities as current and
non- current.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of ¢ash at banks and on hand, eheques on hand and sharl=term deposits with an ariginal rmaturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.20 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect methad, whereby Profit/{loss) after tax reported under Statement of Profit and loss s adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash npature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments, The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on avallable information,

2.21 Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities.

2.22 Segment reporting

The Company determings reportable segment based on information reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) for the purpases of
resource allocation and assessment of segmental performance, The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based
on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments, The accounting principles used in the preparation of the standalone
financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in indlvidual segments.

2.23 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowings are subsequantly measured at amartised cost. Any
difference between the procesds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amaunt & recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss over the

period of the borrowings.

Fees pald on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised ds transaction costs of the loan to the extent that |t is probable that same or all
of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee 1s deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there s no evidence that it s
probable that some ar all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee |5 capitalised as o prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
pericd of the facility to which it relates,

Borrowings are removed fram the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract 4 discharged, cancelied or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial lability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any noncash assets transfarred or llabilities assumed, is recognised in Statemant of Profit and Less as ather gains/{losses),

Borrowings are classifiod as current liabilities unless the Company has an ungonditional right to defer settlement of the llability for at least 12
months after the reparting perlod. Where there s a breach of 4 material provision of a long-lerm loan arrangament on or before the and of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payabie on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classily the liability as
current, if the lender aqreed, after the reporting perlod and before the approval of the standalone financial statements for Issue, not to demand
payment as a consequence of the breach.
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{All amounis are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated}

2.24 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting poficies and the reported amount of assats, iabilities, income, expenses and disciosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financlal staterments and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the years

presented. Actuaf resuits may differ from the estimates.

2.25

Estimates and underlying assumptlions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Ravisions to accounting estimates are racognlsed n the period in
which the estimates are revised and fiture periods affected.

In particular, Information about significant areas of estimation uncertalnty and critical judgements n applying accounting policies that have the
maost significant effect on the amounts recognised In the standalone financial statements are included in the following notes:

Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment ('FPE’}

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of PPE at the end of each reporting period. The factors such as changes in the
expected level of uysage, technelogical developments and product life-cycle, could significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residual
values of thase assets, Consequently, the future depreciation charge could be revised ang thereby could have an impact on the profit of the future
years.

Definad henefit plans

Fhe cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obfigation {"OBO'} are based on actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method. An actuartal valuation involves making various assumptiens that may differ from actual developments in the future,
These include the determination of the discount rate, fulure satary increases and morlality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitlve to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

Incame taxes

Provision for tax liabilitles require jJudgements on the Interpretation of tax legisiation, developmenis in case law and the potential outcomes of tax
audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty.

Therefore, the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax
settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Staternent of Profit or Loss.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits. The amount of total deferred tax assets could change if estimates of projected future taxable income
or if tax reguiations undergo a change.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair valugs of financlal assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices 1n active
markets, their fair value s measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow {DCFY madel. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing Tair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as llquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of inancial instruments, Refer Note 16 and 32 for further disclosures.

Impairment of Goodwhi

Goodwill with indefinite life are tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the recoverable amount of 2
cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount based on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, future cash flows
and economic conditions, The recoverable amount of cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost
to sell. The goedwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit which are benefiting from the synergies of tha
acnuisition and which represents the towest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Market related information
and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which management has based its determination of recoverabla
amount Include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections taks
inta account past experience and represent management’s best estimate about future developments.

Recent Accounting Developments

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA") through a notification, amended Schedute 111 of the Companies Act, 2013, The
amendments revise Division I, II and 111 of Schedule {11 and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating te Division T1 which
relate to companies whose financial statemants are required to comply with Companies (indian Accaunting Standards) Rules 2015 are :

Ealance Sheet:

{a) Lease liabilities shauld he separately disciased under the head “Anancial liabilities”, duly distinguished as ¢urrent or non-current,

(b} Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in aquily such as changes in equity share capital due to prlor period errors and
restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

(c) Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of pramoters.

(d} Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangiole asset under development.
(e} If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed From banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of
details of where it has baen used,

(f}  Specific disclosure under "additional regulatory requirement” such as compliznce with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance wil
number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, leans and advances to promoters, direcrors, Key
Manageriasl Personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held ete.

Statement of profit and loss:

{2} Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Rezponsibility (CSR}, undisclosed Income and crypto or virtual currency specified under Lhe

head "addtional information” in the notes forming part of inancial statements. L
quirAppents are extensive and the Company wil evaluate the same to give effect to thent as raguired by Iavy{g%?. {
¢ ﬁff}'\'e’_ *
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iR LR RULE R

35 Capital work in Progress{CWIP)

"""""" e Blan B Mockiney m'_h_ Frrnitues Tantal
Bakanti as at 1 April 2019 1212 82.67 = 94,79
Additions 35 150.51 1.55 155.41
Transfer lo Property, plant and eguipment {35.29) {154,600 131,52} IATLI?)
Ealinie as at 31 March 2020 0.22 78,58 0,03 7E.83
Additigns 19.58 67.31 1.25 88.14
Transfer 1o Praperty, plant and equipment 0. 43F {105.34) 114823 4107 65)
Balance as at 31 Maech 2021 19.37 39,65 .26 59,328

3C Right-of-use assets {AOU assets)

Particulars Asat As at

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Carrying amounts of ;

31 March 2021

Leasehoid fand 421.03 431,66

Vehicle 7.07 “

Total 428,10 431.66

Vehicle Leasehold land A Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 . %
Recognition en implementation of Ind 4% 116 {Refer note 42) # 442.32 442,32
Agditions = * -
Disposals 4 G -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - 442 32 442,32
Additions 7.07 2 7.07
Disposals ¥ =
Balance as at 31 March 2021 7.07 442,32 449,29
Accemuiated depreciation
Balance as at 1 Aprll 2019 - »
Deprecistion expense 10.66 10.66
Elimination on dispasals of assets i = L]
Balance as at 31 March 2020 166 10.66
Depreciabion expense B 10.63 10,63
Elimination on disposals of assets - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 = 21.28 21.29
Carrying amount (net block)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 7.07 421.03 428.10
Balance as at 31 March 2020 * 431,66 431.68
30 Goodwil
'Particulars Tre As at As at )

31 March 2020

Carrying amounts of :

Goodwill 17772 219772

Totzl 2,177.72 2,177 T2
Particulars Amount
Goodwill as at 31 March 2019 2,177.72
Additions ¥
[mpairment loss ot
Goodwill as at 31 March 2020 2,177.22
Additians "
Impairment loss -
Guodwill as a1 31 March 2021 2,477.937

The Company has only one Cash Generating Unit {"CGEUY congiderin
accordingly the above Goodwill has been allocated to the Company,

Impalrment assessment of goodwill :

The Company have perlormed sanual impairment assessment of the goodwill by determinin
cash Mow projections covering a five year perdoed and the tesminal vaiue. Determination of
the reporting CGU's expected futhire cash fows, These estimates and assumptions,
dunng the forecast period, the discount rate and the terminal growth rats.

Based on the forword looking estimales, the cash flows are discounted using & pest tax discount rate of 14,
impeirment assessment cartled gut 35 on 31 March 2020). The terminal value of cash genarating unit fs arrived
year to perpetuity using a constant long term grewth rate of 2% as on 31 Mar
which is cansistent with the industry forecasts for the generic bearing market During the year ended 31 March
in the carrying amount of goodwill { Impairment for 31 March 2020 © Rs. NiT)

gyFabte armounts of gogdwiil are higher than thair
\unts of gaodwill,

ch 2021 (4% used in the impairm,

mpairment testing as above, the managemant D
respective carrying amounts and hence no amounts are required to be recorded Tor impafp
e

g the interdepandency between the operating locations, managerment raview aystem ste. and

4 Lhe "value in use™ of the CGU as an aggregate of present valye of
value in use invalres significant estimates and assumptions that affect
primarily include, but are not limited to, the revenus growth and profitabikity

00% as on 32 March 2021 {13 00% used in the
at by extrapelating cash flaws of latest forecastad
ent assessment cairied oul as on 31 March 2020)
2021, the testing did net result in any impairment

%_management- befi that any r bly pessible change in the key assumplions on which recoverable amount is based would nat €auce the aggregata,.
PR arneunt to excewd the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. Based on
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4 Othar intangibla nssats
As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Carrying value af |
Computer Siftw ra 2.09 2,80
1,02 2,60
Particulars = Far lo laasd Tatal
Softwara T
Gross Block
Balance at 31 March 2018 1us 48380 487,38
Reclassified on agcount of advption of ind AS 116 (lefer nule 42) = 451,50 41250
Additions 1.07 * 1,07
Disposals .02 . 0.0z
Balance at 31 Merch 2020 4,90 T 4,90
Additions .47 s o857
Disposals 4 3
Balance at 31 March 2021 5,47 - 547
Accumulated amoriisation
Balance at 31 March 2018 1.14 1118 12,92
Reclassified on actainl of adaption of 1id AS 116 (Meler fiote 42] = 11,18 11,18
Amortisation expenna 117 . 117
Elimination on dispisaki of asiets s 3 001 + 0,01
Balance at 31 March 2020 2,30 - 130
-Amortisation expunse 1.08 . 1.00
Elimination on disgpoaals of asseis . =
Balance at 31 March 2021 3.8 - 3,38

Carrying value {net block]
Balance at 31 March 2021 _1.00
Balance at 31 March 2020 2.80
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Particulars

Az at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

5 Investments

Non-current
Unaquoted investmentd in aaulty sharas (fullv pald) of whollv owned Subsldiary Company

24,594 (As at 31 March 2020: 24,594) equity shares of % 1 each fully paid up In Sage International Inc,

Total

Current
Investment in mutual funds (quoated)
(Carried at FVTPL)

Union Capital Protectian Oflanted Fund - Growth = Face valug Rs, 10 per unit
Wil units (As at 31 March 2020 : 100,000 units)

Tatal
Aggregate value of unquated invastmant

Aggregate value of quotad Invastmant
Market value of quoted Invastmant

6 Loans (Unsecured, considered guod)

Non-current
Loan to employees
Total

Current
Loan to employees
Total

7 Other financial assets {Unascirad, considarad good)

Non-current

{a) Security deposits

(b} Deposits with bank with more than 12 manths remalning maturlty®
(c) Interest accrued on hank deposits

Total

* Includes deposits under lien as margin money against bank guarantees

Current

{a) Security deposits

(b) Interest accrued on bank deposits
{c} Unbllied revenue

{d) Other receivables

Total

8 Income tax .

Non current tax assets

Advance tax including tax deducted at source {net of provision for tax)
Total

Current tax liabilities

Provision for tax
Total

4TH ANNUAL REPORT

659,86 653,12
659.86 683,12
- .03
= 1.03
650.86 653,12
s 1.03
- 1.03
0.67 1.19
0.67 1.19
117 JT.E...
1.17 2.53
24,70 22.88
& L1l
- 0.4
24.70 24.33
- 0,40
0,35 1.04
0,08 0,02
2 0.08
. 9.96
0.43 i1.10
209,69 284,56
209.69 264,596
4,08 4.19
4.08 4.19

2020 - 2021
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Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

9§  Other assets (Unsecured, considerad good, unless otharwise stated)

Non-current
(a) Capital advances 6.92 2581
(b) Balances with government authorities (Refer nete (1) below) - 158,37
{c) Prepaid expenses 0.79 .
Total " 7.71 i84.18
Current
{a) Prepaid expenses 47,37 28.48
(b) Balances with government authorities (Refer note (i) below) 456,61 255,09
Less: Provision fef doubtful balancas (5.38) (5.38)
851.43 249,71
(c) Advances ta suppliers 15.44 18,64
(d) Export benefit recelvable 91,57 70.25
(e) Other advances 5.13 5.87
(f) Right to return good azsets (Refer note (i1} below) 9.97 18,34
Total 1,020.71 391.29
Note :

(i) Balances with government authorities reprasents, Goods and Services Tax (GST) input credit recelvable and GST refund receivabie
aggregating to Rs, 851,23 (previous year: Rs, 408,08}, net of provision Tor doubtful balances, In previous year GST refund receivable
amounting to Rs. 158,37 was expected to be received after one year and was accordingly classified as non current and balance of
Rs,255.09 being GST Input credit recelvable which was expected to be adjusted within one year against future cutput tax liability of
the Company was classified as eurrent. For current year, the company expect to recelve credit/utilise the entire GST balance within
one year and accordingly s classifed ag eurrent,

(il) The right to return goods asset represents the Company's right te recover preducts from customers where customers exercise
their right of return,

10 Inventories (Lower of cost or net realisabla valua)

(a) Raw materials (Rafer note [{I) below) 243,12 267.98
(b) Work-in-progress 193.85 266,60
(c) Finished goods (Refer note I{i) below) 572.64 365.35
(d) Stores and sparos 71.47 64,32
Total 1,081.08 964.25
Notes:
I. Includes goods in transit;
() Raw materials 11.13 10.38
(ii) Finished goods 484,49 310.54
II. Cost of inventories recognised as expensa during the year 1,947.99 2,464.,47

i1 Trade receivables (unsecurad)

(a) Considered good

- Receivables from subsidiary company (Refer note 38) 540.87 624.59

- Others 316,60 528.02
B57.47 1,152.61

(b) Caonsidered doubitful 9.21 8.18

Less: Allowance for doubtful trade recelvables {(expected credit loss allawance) (9.21) (8.18)

857.47 1,152.61
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Notes:

a) The average credit period on sale of gooads |5 0-90 days. No Interest Is charged on any averdue trade recelvables.

b) In determining allowance for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used the practical expedient by computing the
expected credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix, The provision matrix takes Into account historical credit loss
experience and Is adjusted for forward looking Information. The expected credit loss allowance |s based on ageing of the
receivables and rates used in the provision matrix,

For trade recelvable balances from related parties, there are no Indicators at the period end for default In payments,
Accordingly, the Company does not anticipate risk of recovery and expected credit loss In respect thereof,

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross af provision) after considering the credit period extended to customers s as

under:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Age of receivables
Within credit period 713.30 871.55
1 - 90 days past due 87.84 212.67
90 - 180 days past due 4,45 37.06
More than 180 days past due 61.09 319,51
BGG.6GB 1,160.79
c) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
Balance at the beginning of the yaar 8.18 4,33
Movement in expécted eradit loss allowance (net) 1.03 1.85
Balance at the and of the yaar 9.21 B.18
d) Of the trade receivables balance as at the year end, the Company's largest
customers who réprésents more than 10% of the total balance of trade recelvables
are as follows (Refer note 31(b){vi) and note 33},
Trade receivables
Customer A 540,87 624,59
Customer B 86.72 212.41
Customer C 83.24 99.72
Customer D 45,37 a3.17
760.20 1,029.89
e) Contract balances
Trade receivables (net balances) 857.47 1,152.61
Contract assets {(Unbilled revenue)(Rafer note 7) - 0,08
Contract liabilities (Advance from customers)(Refer note 19) 13.57 G6.85
12 Cash and cash equivalants
(a) Cash on hand 0.40 0.15
(b) Balances with banks
- in current accounts 87.56 87,49
Total B87.96 B7.64
13 Bank balances other than cash and cazh equivalants
(a) In deposit accounts - arlginal maturity more than 3 months 4,00 1.14
(b) In earmarked accaunts
- Balances held as margin money against guarantees = 0.30
Total 4,00 1.44
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Particulars Am at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

i4

Equity share capital

Authorised shares capital {(Rafer Nota 16C):

35,692,264 (As at 31 March 2019: 34,373,038) equity shares of Rs, 10 each with voting rights 356,92 343,73
Add: Increase in authorised share capital{31 March 2020: 1,319,226 equity shares of Rs, 10 each) . 1313
35,692,264 (As at 31 March 2020; 35,692,264] equity shares of Rs, 10 each with voting rights 356.92 356.92

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: ;
35,692,264 (As at 31 March 2020; 35,692,204) equity shares of Rs, 10 each [Rafers note 16(1)] 356,92 A56.92
356,92 356.02

Numbaer of shares  Share capital

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting perlod :

Balance as at 1st April 2019 3,21,23,038 321.23
Add: Issue of shares (Refar note 160) 35,69,226 35.69
Balance as at 31 March 2020 3,56,02,264 356.92
Add: Issue of shares i =
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3,56,02,264 356.92

Terms and rights attachad to aguity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ks, 10 per share, Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held and
dividend as and when declared by the Company. Interim dividend 18 paid as and when declared by the Board, Final dividend Is paid after obtaining
shareholder's approval. In the event of liguidation of the Company, halder of equity shares will be entitled to recelve remalining assets of the Compary
after distribution of all preferential amaunt, The distribution will ba in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharchalders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% sharas in the Company

Name of Shareholder As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Mumber of shares % holding Number of shares % holding

Fully paid equity sharas

Delos Sage Holdco Coaperatief ULA,, the Holding Company (including 1 3,21,23,038 90%, 3,21,23,038 0%
share held by nominee}

Ramakrishnan Krishnan 15,609,226 10% 15,69,226 10%
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Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

15 Other equity

Reserves and surplus

(i) Retained earnings (1,251.81) (915.34)
(ii) Deemed capital cantribution 100.95 67.78
Total (1,150.86) (847.56)

(i) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year (915.34) {602.00)
Add: Loss for the year (341.65) (314.21)
Add: Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 5.18 0.87

Balance at the end of the year {1,251.81) (915.34)

(ii) Deemed capital contribution (Refer note below)

Balance at the beginning of the year 6/7.78 34,76

Add: Expense recognised during the year 33.17 33.02

Balance at the and of the year 100.95 67.78
Notes:

(a) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the undistributed profits of the Company.

(b) Deemed capital contribution

Delos Sage Holdeco Cooperatief U.A (Holding Company) has given a financial guarantee for the Non-
convertible Debentures issued by the Company. Deemed capital contribution of Rs, 100,95 (As at 31 March
2020 : Rs. 67.78) reprasents year till date cost of the premium of the financial guarantee recelved by the
Company.
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PR s . et e pogm
33 March 2021 31 March 2020

35  Cempulsortly copvertibie graferenca sharas {CCRE)

Authorized share capital

237,196,934 (A5 at 31 March 2020: 192,196,934} 0.0001% Class A CCPS of Bs. 19 each 2,371.97 1,921.97
8a5,547 (A &t 23 March 2024 B4S, 5473 0 0D01% Class B CCPS of Rs 10 each fully peid vp B 4h 3.4k
4,144,147 (bs at 31 March 2020: 4,146,147} 0,A00L1% Class © CLPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 41,45 dq1.44
21,900,848 (A5 at I3 March 2020 21,909,645) 0009011 % Class 0 COPS of Ra, 10 each 21540 219.10
2,648,590 2,190,593
Eswuwd and subscribad capital
234,185,696 {As at 31 March 2020; 142,196,934} 0 DGQ1% Class & CCPS of R, 10 each fully paid up 2,341 90 1,921.97
845,547 (As 30 31 March 2020 845,547) 0 0007 % Closa B CCPS of Ps. 30 each fully paid up 8.9 .46
4,146,147 {Ag 3t 31 March 2020: 4,146,147) 0.60011% Class £ CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 41,46 41,46
21,909,843 (A5 at 31 March 2020: 21,909,545} $.00001 1% Class B COPS of A 10 each Fully pato ug 21910 219.10
1,610.92 2,290.%5
Add:
Securities premium on ssue of CEPS (Refer note D below} 259 88 32.2B
(Gain}/Loss on falr val of o e of CCPS recognised in statement of pralit and loss {1500} 325,084
[Refer note F{II) below)
2,855.80 2,548.27
A R liation of bar of CCPE ding a: the baginning and end of 1he reporting year :
Number of shares Amounl
RADLSG Chass & CCRS
Belance 25 at 1 April 2619 192,196,934 1,221.97
Add! [ssue of COFS . .
Balsnce a5 at 31 March 2620 192,196,934 1,911,097
Add: 1530e of TCPS 41,952,764 419.93
Balance as at 31 March 2021 234,189,596 1,34190
2.0004% Ciazs BSLPS
Balapcw ax at 1 April 2012 845,547 X ]
Add: Issur of CCPS . '
sslance as at 11 March 1620 D45 547 #.44
Add: Issue of LCRS . -
Bzulance as at 31 March 2021 . BAS, 547 A.96
B.O0RIA%, Cinss C CCRS
Balance na at 1 April 2019 4,146 147 41,45
Add: 1ssue of CCPS - .
Balance as at 31 March 2620 4,146,147 4146
Judd: Issue of COPS - .
Balance as st 31 Harch 2021 4,146,147 £%.46
DANIRLLYS Cinss QCCPS
Balance as at 1 Aprid 2019 - +
Add. [asue of CCPS (Refer note D below) 21,909,448 21940
Balanes ax at 31 March 2010 11,809,848 21939
Add: 1gsue of CCPS . B
Balance 95 at 3t March 2021 21,509,348 219.30
B Details of ahareholders helding more than 5% of CCPS in the Campany
Particulars A at Af at
31 March 2021 31 March 020
Number of sharas % holding Kumber of shares =0 holding
T.o001% Class A CCPS
- Pelgs 3age Holdeo Cooperatief W A, the Holding Company 234,189,598 100 192,196,934 100,
D.0DD1% Llass B COFS
- BAZLLC 845,547 1005 445,547 9%
E.O0011% Clags € COPS
- Fortress Megals LLE 4,145 147 100% 4,146 147 100%:
G.000011% Class D CCRS
- Ramakiisinan Krishnan 21,909 843 100% 21,504,848 100%

€ {henge in suthorised share capital

i} Eecabs wea moded 0 Heren IRy
The Board of Birectors of e Company i its meeling held en 30 September 2020 approved the increase and redlassificadion of the authorised share capital of he
Company Lo Rs. 3128.26 The increase and reciassification in aulhorised share capital was approved by the sharelolders in the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company held on 3 Oclober 2010, Purseant to Lha above, the Company offered a rights issue of compulsarily cenvertible preference shore capital to Itz Equily
sharehaiders
The Brard of Cirectars of the Campany in ifs meeling hekd on 1 March, 2021 approved Lhe increass aod reciansiflestbnn of the authorsed share capilal of the Company 1o
K3, 270,26, The increase and reclassification in authorised share capital wag approved by the shareholdars in the Extraprdinary General Meeting of the Cainpany held
on 5 March, 2021. Pursuant Lo he abova, the Company offered a rights istue of campufsarlly converlible preference share capital to ity Equity shareholders,
‘The revised authorised equily and preference share capilal of tha Company a5 at 11 March 2071 is & under:

fa) 35,692,264 equily shares of Rs. 10 pach [Refer nole 14}

{B} 237,106,034 Class & compulsonly convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 23ch

(€] 845,547 Clags B comp ily © ible praf e shares of #5, 10 gach
{d} 4,146,147 Class C comip ily o tie preferance sharez of As 10 gach
{e) 21,909,848 Class D plilsordy G bie g e shares of ks, 10t each

£7; 78,054,419 Redgemable Oprlonally Convertibh Preference shares of Rs. 10 each {Refer aoig 17)
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iy

Yegr onded 31 March 2020

The Board of Rirecters of the Company in its meeting held on 1 Octaber 2019 approved the Increase and rectassificabion of the authortsed
equity and preference share ¢apital of the Company to Rs. 2,856.84. The increase and reclassification b authotised share capital was
approved by the shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 19 October 2019, Pursuant ko the change,
Equity Share capital has been increased and there is an Increase/decrease and reclassification amagng the varipus classes of preference

‘share capital. The revised suthorised equity and preference share capitai of the Company as at 31 March 2029 is as under:

2} 35,694,464 equity shares of Rs. 10 each {Refer note 14)

(B} 453,196,934 Class A compulsonly convertible preference shares of fts. 10 each
(€} 845,547 Class B computsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each

{d} 4,146,147 Class C compulsorily convertible preference shares of #3, 10 each
{2} 21,909,848 Olass D compulsorily convertible preference shares of s, 10 sach

{f) 30,893,134 Redeemable Optionally Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10 each {Refer note 17

During the current year, the Company has issued 41,992, 764 shares of Class A CCPS at a premium of RS, 5.42 per COPS. In previous yer, the Company had issued the
following securities to settie the consideration payable to erstwhile SMPL's shareheiding artsing out of merger/business cambination.

Particulars Number of shares Face Value Amount

Equity sharas 3,569,226 16 3569
Class b CCPS 21,908,848 10 21910
Redgemable Cptional Convertible Preference Shares (ROCPS) 28,035,419 10 280.38
Total ’ 535,15

€1 - Terms of Convearsion

The Company entered into an ‘Framework Agreement’ with Delos Sage Holdeo Cosperatief U A, AR2 LLC, Fortress Metals LLE and Ramakrishpan ¥rishnan or 11 March
2018 which was amended on 31 lanuary 2020 to incorporate the terms of Class O CCPS and Redeemable Qptionally Convertible Preference Shares (RDCPS). The
*Amiended and Restated Framework Agreement’ supersedes the earlier "Framework Agreement’ dated 11 March 2018 entered among the parties and geverns the rights
and obligations, matters incidental to and connected with the issuance of Compulsorlly Convertibla Preference Shares which are as follows:

Terms Class A Class B | Class C ] Ctass b

Unless converted in accordance with the Conversion clzuse (iil) below, the term shall mot exceed 15 years from the
date of Issuance thereof,

(i} Term (Same for al? classes of CCPS)

Non-cumulative Q.O001%
D, a.

Non-cumulative
0.000011% p. a.

Hon-cmmufative
2.00011% p. a

{ii) Blvidend Non-cumulative 0.0001% p. a.

The Class A CCPS shall be
converted into equity shares at
the time of Liquidity Event.
Addilionally, the Class & CCPS
may be convertible into aquity
shares, at the oplion of the Board
of the Company or at the option
of the holder thereof, ar any time
prior Lo a Liguidity Event.

The Class B8 CCPS shalt be
converted into equity
shares at the Hme of
Liguidity Event.

The Class D CCPS shall he
converted inte 2quity
shares al the time of
Liguidity Event.

The Class ¢ CCPS shal be
canverted Into egquity
shares at the time of
Liguidity Event.

{ili)} Conversion

CCPS shall be convertible IRty the number of equity shares ontained by dividing (x) the Subseription Price of LCPS
glus 2t unpald dividend as of the conversion date, by (y) the then prevailing Conversion Price of CCPS.

(iv] Np, of equity shares issuable vpan
conversion (Same for all classes of CCPSY

{v} Coversion price “Conversion Price” wilh respect to Class A CCPS, Class B CCPS, Class C CCPS or Class D CCPS, as apphcable, means
the price al which such Shares are conyerted Into Equlty Shares as deterinined by the Board based on the then fair

market value of such Shares,

Ay CCPS that has not been converted into Equity Shares in accordance wilh abgve shab, if required under Apphicable
Law, compulsorily convert into Equity Shares on the 15th {fifteenth) anniversary of the date of issuance thereof

(vi) Automatic conversion (Same for =i
classes of CCPS)

The key definitions and interpretations of the "Framework Agrearsent’ are as under:

- 'GIPL Equity Securities’ means equity shares, Class A CCPS, Class B CCPS, Class C CCPS and Class [ CCPS.
- 'Liquidity Event' means (a) an IPC, (b) Third Party Sale, {¢) 3 Liquidation Event, or (d) any Other Liqultity Event.
<. 'Distributable Antounts’ means the cash that is distributable to the Sharehalders pursuant to any Liquidity Event

o

E2 - Distribution of Distributable Amounts post conversion to the holders of GIPE Equity Securlties shall be as under

irt case of a Liguidity Event that is not an PO or a Liquidation Evert, Distributable Amounts shall be distributed in the following marner:

Step i: To the holders of Redeemable Optionally Convertible Freference Shares (ROCPS}, payment of any Agreed Return to the extent not already paid prior to such
Liquidity Event, -

Step 2: To the holders of ROCPS, payment of Lhe redemption or repurchase amount represented by the aggregate face value of the putstanding ROCPS, to the extent
not already paid prior e such Liquidity Event. .

Step 3: To the holdsis of all the GIPL Equity Securities, the Remaining Distributable Amounts b the holders of all the SI18L Equity Securities an 3 Pro Rata Basis up to
the followlng amounts: ’

- I the Liquidity Event occurs prior ta the filth Anmiversary of the Ciosing Crate, then an amount af least equal to the respective Investment Amount, ar

- If the Liquidity Event accurs on or after the fifth Anniversary of the Closing Date, then the respective Tnvestment Amount along with a mimmum 1RR of 15%.

Remaniitg Dstributalie Amouns" ineans an amonal equal (o {2} the Disteibutabie Antoonls minus (B) e grounts, if any, pal o
e =

e MT TN
0N
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20202021

k
i
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Step 4: To holders of Class & CCPS, any taxes payabile by holders of Class & CCPS pursvant to the Translar of Clase 4 CCPS on the difference between (&} the DSHC
Iavestmant Amaount, and {y) the DSHC Fnvestrment Amount, as reduced to the extent of the Intermediate Payment Amount.

Step 5: If the Distributable Prafits is sufficient to provide the respective Relevant Preferred Return to the holders of GIPL Equity Securlties pursuant to the following
distribution, then such Distributable Profits shall be distributed o the holders of GIFL Equlty Securlties In the fallowing manner:

Liquidity Event ->

Before 5™ Annivarsary
of Clasing Date

After 5™ Anniversary of
Cloging Date

Class B CCPS Remaing GIPL Eqguity Ralevant praferred Ralevant preferred

Securities holders return return

105, 90% 2 Umes of invested Invested amount plus IRR
amourt of 20%

k.

15% 85% 2.5 tienes of invested Invested amount plus IRR
amount of 20%

20% 80% 3 times of Invested lnvested amount plus IRR
amounk of 25%

25% 75% 4 times of Invested Inwested amount plus IRR
ameunt or more of 32%

For the purposes of Step 5 above, 'Distributsble Profits' means an amount equal ta (3} the Remaining Distributable Amounts minus (i) the
amounts paid o the hofders of GIPL Equity Securities. i

After conversion of CCPS into equity shares, as agreed between the share-holders, the resulting equity shares aliocated to the CCPS
holders wilt have differential rights and will be entitied to "Distributable Amounts™ as specified in D2 abave. This will be notwithstanding the
number of ordinary shares allocated to them.

F  Cariying amount of financial lability and falr value of derivative component are sat out below:

I The Compulsory conversion of preference shares Into equity shares of the Company as at conversion date has been treated as a fnanclal llabltty and carrfed at
amortised cost, as ther converston will be in variable number of equity shares.

it As per the ‘Oistribution of Distributable Amounts post conversian 1o the holders of GIPL Equity Securities' {Refer note E2 atove), the distributable amounts at the time
of liquidity event (post conversion to enuity shares) ta the CCPS holders will be different fram the normal equity distribution. Accordingly, the value allocated to CCPS
over and above theln normal equity distribution IS considered as the embedded derivative component in the hybrid financial instrumient. The embedded derivative has
been fair valued using Monte-Carle simulation model based on a Genmetrke Brownian Motion function. The galn/loss arising on fair valuation ef derivatwe component
has been charged Lo statement of profit and 10ss account, As enumerated below, fair value of derivative component using Mente-Carle simulation maode} a5 at 31 March
2071 is Bs, (15.00) {As al 31 March 2020: Ps. 325.00).

CLPS Categories Ciass A Class 8 Class € {lass D Total

Total fair value of CCPS 2,462.08 147.58 39.04 207,310 2,855.80
Less @ Liability value (at amaortised cost) 2,601.08 B8.58 42.04 219,10 2,870.80
Fair value {Derivative componant) as at 31 {139.00) 139.00 {3.00) (12.00} {15.00)
March 2621

CCPS Categories Class A Class B Class € Class D Taotal

Total fair value of CCPS 2,083.55 185.58 45 .04 33410 T2 548,37
Less 1 Liabitity value {at amortised cost) 1,953.55 8.58 42,04 219.10 2,223.27
Fair value {Darivative component) as at 31 130.00 177.00 00 15.00 325.00

March 202¢

a Subsenuent events.
The Company on Novernber 9, 2021 (effective date) entered into a "Confidentiat Settlement Agreement and Release Agregrnent™ with hofder of dass B Compulsery
Convertible Preference Shares {CCPS). As per the agreement the Company wouid buy back the CCPS for a sum of LIS$30,000 (the *Buy back payment™).
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Particulars As at RS Bt
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

17 Borrowings {at amortised cost)

Non-current

(3} 6,350, 12.90% Secured, Non-convertible Debentures of Rs. 450,000 each [As at 31 - 2,834.13
March 2020 . 6,350 Mon-convertible Debentures of Rs. 450,000 each] (Rafer note A
below)

{b] Other foans - vehicia loan - 4.26

{Secured by hypothecation of vehicles and payable in 60 equal monthly instalfments.
Rale of inlerest is 8.51% to 9.50% per anAum)

{c) 28,035,419, 15%, Redeemable Optionally Canvertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each : 280.36
[As at 31 March 2020 : 28,035,419} [Refer note B beiow and note 160)
Total - 3,118.75
Lugrent
(a} 6,350, 12.90% Secured, Non-convertible Debentures of Rs, 450,000 sach [As at 31 2,852.08 .
March 2020 : 6,350 Mon-convertible Debentures of Rs. 456,000 each] (Refer note A
below)
{b) Loans repayable on demand (Secured)} {Refer note C below)
- From banks : 341.54
{c) OCther lpans - Yehicle lgan
(Secured by hypothecation of vehicles and payable in 60 equal monthly instatiments. .24 -

Rate of interest is 8.51% to 9.50% per annum)

{d} 28,035,419, 15%, Redeemable Optionally Convertlble Preference Shares of Rs. 10 =sach 280.36 -
[As at 31 March 2030 : 28,035,419] [Refer note B below,and note 160]

Totat 3,135.68 341,54
Notes:
A Non-convertible Debentures
€,250, 12.90% Non-convertible Debentures of Rs. 450,000 each : 2,857.50 2,857 .50
Transaction cost - Opening balance (23.37) {37.64)
Add: Transaction cost amortised 17.95 14 37
Closing liabiiity 2,852.08 2,834.13

Ternts of Debentures

(i} Debentures are secured by first ranking exclusive fixed charge on;

{(a} all its present and future rights, title, interest and benefit in all and singular movable assets, including movable plant and machinery,
spares, toois and accessories, furniture, fixtures, wehicles, other fixed assels, movable fixed assels and all other movable assets of the
Campany whether Installed or not and whether affixed Lo the earth oF not and whether lying loose in cases or which are lving or are stored in or
to be stored in or to be brought upon any warehouses, stockyards and godowns of the Company or any of the Company's agents, Affillates,
associales or representatives or at various work sites or at any place or places, wherever else sitvated or wheraver eise the same may be,
whether now belonging to or that may at any time during the cantinuance of this Geed, belonging ta the Company and/or that may at present
or hereafter be held by any party anywhere to the order and disposition of the Compsany, or in the course of transit or delivery, and all
replacements thereof and additions thereof, whether by way of substitution, replacement, conversion, reslisation or otherwise, howspever,
together with all benefits, rights and incidentals attached thereto which ara now or shall at any tirme hereafter be owned by the Company and
all estate, right, title, interest, property, claims and demands, whatsoever, of the "Company unto and upen the same;

(b} all intangible, tangible and current assets of Lhe Company, both gresent and fulure, together with all rights, titles, inlerests, benefits,
daims, demands and incidentals in them and attached thereto of the Company;

() all present and future rights, titfe, interest, benefits, claims and dernands whatsaever of the Comipany in, to and under, the Share Purchase
Agreement to the fuliest extent permitted under Applicable Law and the terms of the Share Purchase Agreement:

{d} ali ils present and future rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims, demands in the Account Assats; and

(e} ali rights, title, interest, benecrlts, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company, whether presentiy in existence or acguired hereafter, in,
to, under and/or in respect of the Company Receivahles, the profits of the Cormnpany, whether or not depasited in any Company Account (as
maybe relevant), the book debts of the Company, the eperating cash Rows of the Company and all other commnssions and revenues and cash of -
the Company, both present and future,

excluding, in each case, the Escrow Account and any amoeunt standing to the credit of the Escrow Account.

{ii) Debentures are also guarantead by the Holding Coropany (Delos Sage Holdco Cooperatief u.a.3.

{wm) Debentures carry an interest rate of 12.90%. Further, all paymenis to be made by the Company Lo the secured parties under the debenture
nent shafl be made free and clear of and without any tax deduction. Out of 12.90%, 8.00% siall be payable on a quarterly basis to the
i the balance interest will be deferred and added Lack to principal amount on quarterly basis. e
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{w} Debentures representing 10% of face value armounting to 317,50, were redeemed on 12 September 2019 along with proportionate deferred
Interest amount. The balance grincipal amount along with deferred interest shall be redeemed on 30 June 2021 and accordingty are classified
as current barrawing as at 31 March 2021.

(v) Debenture Redemption Reserve has nor heen created by the Company as the Company does not have any profits during the current/previous
year.

(vi) Compliance with Debt Covenants

As per the Debenture Trust Beed, the Company and Delos Sage Holdco Cooperatief U A, {the "Parent*} are requited to ensure the Following
finrancial cavenants:

(3} the Ratie of Consolidated Met Debt to ERITDA of the Company as on 31 March 2021, shall not be greater than the ratio 4,00:1. {As
on 31 March 2020 the said ratio shalt not be greater than the ratic 4.00:1).

{h) The agyregate capital expenditure of the Company along with its subsidiary in respect of financial year ended 31 March 2023 shail
not exceed Rs, 60.00 milllon. {for the financial year ended 31 March 2020 Rs, 60.00 mitlion)

The actuai ratle of Consolidated Met Debt ko EBITDA of the Company as at 31 March, 2021 and 31 March 2020 exceeded the ratio as mentioned
under clause {a) abeve. Further, the actual consolidated capital expenditure for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 exceeded
the amount as mentioned under clause {(b) above. The same has resulted in breach of 'financial covenants' as enumerated in the Debenture
Trust Deed.

The lenders, in current year, have aqreed not to take enforcement action due to brezch of financial covenants. In previous year, the lenders
had waived off the breach of 'financial covenants’ with raspect to the excess of Conselidated Net Debt to EBITDS and capital expenditure.
Consequently 'Event of Default’ as mentionad in Debenture Trust Deed dows not get triggered and the debenture facility wilt not be recailed.

(vil} Subsequent events.
As per the Debenture agreement, NCD's [6350, 12.9% secured, Mon-convertibie debentures of Rs. 450,000 sach] amounting to Rs. 2,852.08
willigns and accrued interest of Rs. 52542 millllons as at 31 March 2021 respectively were due for re-payment on 3¢ June, 2021, The Company
in Septernber, 2021 has entered inte a "Restructuring Term Sheet” with lenders whergin along with other changas / modificatlons fram the
original debenture agreement, the maturity date of NCDY's has been extended to 30 June 20823, with no extension option, As the Restructuring
Term Sheet has been executed after the reporting period and before the financial statements are spproved for Issug the same has been
ciassified as current financial borrawings. .

B. Terms of Redeemable Cpticnally Convertible Preference Shares {ROCPS)
1 The term of ROCPS shall not exceed 42 {forty-twa} months from the Appointed Date 12 March 2018.

2 The ROCPS shall carry an anpuat dividend or similar permissible returns in such manner such that each ROCPS is enbitted to ger a return equal
to a 15% interest on the face value thereof. As ot 31 March 2021, accrued Interest amounting ko Rs. 150.81 and due on Ock. 2021 is classified
as other current financials Ligbilities.

3 Redemption Terms - ROCPS shalt be redeemed or repurchased annually within a peried of 42 (forty-two) months from the Appeintad Date ie. by
October 2021, in such manner as may be determined by the Company. From the first anniversary of issuance of the Final ROCPS, Finat ROLUPS
shall be redeemed or repurchased, in accordance with Applicable Law, out of the profits of the Company annually In such manper that the
principal amount paid or payable pursuant to such redemption or repurchase along with the Agreed Annual Return results In payment of a
minimum of Rs. 50 million{gn an annual basis) to Ramkrishnan Krishnan,

4 Conversion Terms - All putstanding ROCPS raay be convertible inte equity shares of the Company i determined by the Board of the Company at
the time of a Ltiquidity Event that occurs prior to the expiry of the term of the ROCPS; provided howewver, that such conversions sha¥l not
adversaly affect any rights of the holders of ROCRS; provided, further, that such conversion shall take place at the then fair market value of the
equity shares of the Company as may be determined by the Board of the Company at such tirhe.

5 Subsequent events,
The Company subsequent to year end has started tha process of renegotiating / restructuring the terms of the ROCPS (including interest
thereon) and the ROCPS holder has confirmed that the amount of ROCPS will not be called for the next twelve months.

C Lleoans repayable on demand

Loan is securad by First charge on the current assets of the Company present and future and second charge on fixed assets of the Company
present and future. The loan is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 6.10% :

4TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020 - 2021



Gluhend India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2021
1

57

Particulars

As at Am at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

18 Provisions
Non-current

Proivision for employee benefits
- Compensated absences

- Gratulty (Refer note 34}
Total

Current

(a) Prolvision far employee benefits

- Compensated absenges

- Gratuity (Refer note 34)
{b) Provision for Onerous contracts (Refer note belaw)
Total

Nate:

Provision for onerous contracts
QOpening balance

Provision made during the year
Provision settled during the year
Closing Balance

14,10 13,84
64,72 65,80
78.82 78.64
24,76 4,48
9,04 30,96
- 79,31
13.80 114.75
79,31 -
- 79.31
(79.31)
x 79.31

Provision for onerous contracts represents excess of cost as estimated by the management expectad to be incurred to fulfill the obligation under the
sales arders over and above the contracted price, has been finalised and settled during FY 2021.Provision for onerous contract created In previous

year was settied during the year.

19 Other liabilities

Non-current

Statutory dues payable
Total

Current

(a) Advances from customers

(b) Statutory dues payables

(c) Refund liability for expected sales return (Refer note below)
Total

18.67
- 18.67
13.57 #.85
50,09 27.41
24.92 21,73
88,58 55.99

Other current liabllities include refund liability relating to customars right to returnproducts, At point of sale, a refund Nability and a corresponding

adjustment to revenue is recognised for those products expected to be returned.

20 Trade payables
{a) Qutstanding dues to Micre enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 37)
(b) Outstanding dues of creditars ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total

21 Other financial liabilities

Non-current
{(a) Interest accrued but not due on Debentures (Refer note 174 and note 43)
(b) Interest accrued but not due on ROCFS (Refer note 178 and naote 43)

Total

Current
(a) Interest accrued but nat due an Debentures (Refer note 174 and note 43)

(b} Interest accrued on trade payables (Refer Note 37)
(c) Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment
(d) Security deposits

297.89 298,68
1,201.65 655.36
1,499.54 954.04
% 323.20
= 23,64
= 416.84
525,42 11.87
5.81 2,70
0.88 13,72
1.20 1.74
150.81 -
684,12 30.07

2020 - 2021
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{All amounts are in Rs. Miltions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2028

22 Revenue from operations

{a} Sale of products
Sale of goods 3,154.10 4,192.89

(b} Sale of services
Development charges 14.59 11.41

{e} Other operating revenus

Scrap sales 61.04 72,75
Export incentives 24.57 191.70
Total 3,314.30 4,468,75

(i} Disaggregate revenusg information
The Company disaggregated the revenue based on geograptical locations and it is disclosed under note 33 "Segment Reporting”, Applying

the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Cormpany has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures
for contracts that have original expected duration of one year or jess.

{ii] Trade receivables and Contract Balances
The Cornpany classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as a trade receivable. A receivable is a right te consideration
that is uncanditional upon passage of time. Revenue are recognised at a point in tme when the Company transfers control over the
product to the customer.

Trade receivable are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

(iii} Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price for sale of goods :

Contract price 3,187.22 4,209.16
Adjustments for: .

Discaunts (33.12) (16.27)
Revenue from sale of goads 3,154.10 4,192.89

23 Other income

(3} Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost

- on bank depoesits 0.54 0.24

- on security Deposit 068 0.46

- oh laan to employees 0.05 0.67
{b) Profit on salé of nvestment 0.01 -
{c) Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 15.33 159.25
{d) Profit on salefdispasal of property, plant and equipment 1.18
(2} Guarantee Premium income 6.75 5.47
(F)  Galn on fair valuation of derivative component of CCPS (Refer note 16) 340.00 -
{fal Miscellangous income G.21 ' -
Total 354.80 165.49

24 Cost of materials consumed

{a) Inventory at the beginning of the year 257.60 322.61
(b) Add : Purchases during the year* 1,862.03 1,952.80

. 2,119.63 2,275.41
(e} Less: Inventory at the end of the year 231.99 257.60
Taotal 1,887.64 2,017.81

* including job work charges : 140.08 186.78

e E
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statemants for tha year anded 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in Rs. Milliong, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the yaar anded For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

25 Changes in inventory of finished goods and work-in-progress

Inventory at beginning of the vear
(a) Finished Goods 265.35 541.29
(b) Work-in-progress 266.60 329.06
631.95 870.35
Inventories at the end of the year
(a) Finished goods 572,64 365,35
(b) Work-in-progress 193.85 266,60
766.49 631.95
Net (increase) / decroease (134.54) 238.40
26 Employee benefits axpansa
(a) Salaries, wages and banus 587.86 624.69
(b} Contribution to provident fund 18,51 19,82
(c) Gratuity expense (Refer note 34) 13,44 13.10
(d) Staff welfare expenses 19,20 24,56
Total 639,01 682.17
27 Finance Costs
{a) Interest expense gn;
- Borrowings 521,09 499.81
- Consideration payable ta SMPL's sharehalder arfiaing out of business - 26.05
combination (Refer note 160)
- Others 13.67 5.9
(b) Corporate guarantée premium expense 33.17 33.02
(c) Bank charges 2.36 7.41
Total 570.29 572.20
28 Depreciation and amortisation expense
(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment {Refer note 3A) 114,34 143.41
(b) Depreciation on Right-of-use nssets (Refer note 3C) 10,63 10,66
(c) Amortisation of ather intanglble aszets (Refer note 4) 1.08 1.17
Total 126.02 155.24
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Notes forming part of the standalone financial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year anded For the year anded
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

29 Other expenses

() Consumption of stores and spares 112,87 117.42
(b} Consumnption of packing materials a82.02 90,84
(c) Power and fuel 163.27 176.47
(d) Rent (Refer note 42) 15.56 14.42
(e} Repairs and maintenance :
- Building 11.82 15.67
= Plant and machinery 45,14 48.33
- Others 40,79 52.37
(f) Rates and taxes 7.66 38,67
(g) Provision for onerous contract (Refer note 18) - 79.31
(h) Travelling and canvéyance 8,93 19.87
(i) Legal and professional fees (Refer note (1) below) 230.31 167.80
(i) Insurance 3.21 3,32
(k) Freight 329,58 115,18
(1) Provision for doubtful trade receivables and advances (net) 1.03 3.85
(m) Provision for doubtful balances with government authorities - 2.68
(n) Loss on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment - 5.649
(o) Corporate Social Responsibility{CSR) expenditure {(Refer note (i) below) 0.15 0,69
(p) Loss on fair valuation of derivative component of CCPS (Refer note 16) - 130,00
(q) Miscellaneous expénses 13,78 14,64
Total 1,066.12 1,207.22
MNotes:
(i) Legal and professional charges includes payment to statutory auditors (excluding indirect taxes):
Fees for statutory audit 20.24 10.00
Fees for limited review 2.00 2,00
For other audit services 6.00 6.00
Reimbursement of expenses 0,35 0,13
Total 28.59 18.13

Current year audit fee includes R, 10.24 towards additional effarts pertaining to earlier years,

(i) The Company has spent Rs, 0.15 (previous year : Rs. 0.69) on C5SR activities and the unspent CSR labliity as at 31 March 2021 is
Rs. 34.48 (As at : Rs. 34.63). The unspent C5R liability represent those of erstwhile Sage Metals Pyt, Ltd, (SMPL) which got merged
with the company vide NCLT order dated 20 June 2019 with the appointed and effective date of 13 March 2018,

Expenditure on CSR

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Campany during the year ended 31 March 2021 §s Rs, NIl (Previous year ; Rs, NH)

b. Amount spent;
Particulars Poid (A)  Yet to be paid (B) Total (A+B)

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset = &

(=) (= ]
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 0.15 - 0.15
{0.69) # {0.69)
0,15 = 0.15
(0.69) - (0.69)

*Figures In brackel relates to previous year

c. Details of related party transactions:
- Contribution during the year = Rs. Nil (Previous year @ Rs. Nil)
- Payable as at 31 March 2021 - Rs. NIl (As at 31 March 2020 Rs, Nil)

EPORT 2020 - 2021
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(All amounts are in Rs. Milliang, unless atharwise stated)
Particulars For the year For the year
anded endad
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
30 Income taxes
A Income tax recognised in profit and loss
{(a) Current tax
In respect of current year 0,19 18,59
In respect of prior years 12.80 12.42
12.99 51.01
(b) Deferred tax [Refer note 30C]
In respect of current year {146,78) (91.19)
In respect of prior years * 25.59
(146.78) ({65.60)
Total tax expense chargad/{credited) in Staternant of Profit and Loas (133.79) (14.59)
{c) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Loss before tax (475.44) (328.80)
Income tax expenseé calculated at 29.12% (Prévious period | 29.12%) (138.45) {95.75)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit (B.14) 67.56
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation Lo the current tax of prior years 12.80 12.42
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the deferred tax of prior years . 25,59
Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change in income tax rates . {24,41)
Income tax expense charged/(credited)in profit or loss (132.79) {14.59)
B Income tax recognised in other comprehengive incoma
(a) Deferred tax [Refiér nata 30C]
Arising on income and expenses recoynized (n other comprehensive Income
-Remeasurement of defined benelit cbligation (2.13) (0.36)
Total tax expense/(Income) racognised in othar comprahensive incomae (2.13) (0.36)

Tax rate used for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 29.12% being the rate at
which tax is payable by corporate entities in India who have not elected the lower tax rate on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.

4TH ANNUAL REPORT
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charge/{credit)

rwise statadl
30 Income taxes
C Movement in deferred tax
(i) For the year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars Opaiilng Balanca Recogniaed in Recagnised In Other Clasing balance
profit ar loss comprehensive
charge/{credit) incoma
charge/{cradit)
Tax effect of ems constituting dafareed tox labilies
Property, plant and equipmant and ather intangibla assels {186.368) {3.38) " {182.94)
Goodwill (332,81) (322,81) = 3
(509.17) {326.19) = {182.98)
Tax effect of Wems constituling defarred tax sisots
Pravision for employee benefits 34.08 5.82 2.13 26.13
Business loss and unabsorbed digpraciation . {114.13) - 114,13
Other items 294,61 .72 in 109
119,69 179,41 %13 148,15
Deferred tax assets / (liabilitias) (nat) (179,40) {146.78) 2.13 {34.83)
(ii) For the year ended 31 March 2020
Opaning lllll.ﬂtl_ Recognigad in Racognisad in Other Eiﬂll!l balance
profit or loss comprehensive
charge/{credit) Income

Tax affect of tems constituting defarrad tax Uabilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangible asrets {211.33) {24.97) . (186.36)
Goodwil (261.59) 61.22 . (322.81)
(472,93) 36,35 - (509.17)
Tax effect of items consttuting defaired Lax assels
Provision for employee benafita 38.08 3o 036 34.08
Business loss and unabsorbed depreciation G159 1,99 . -
Other ltems 97.06 {197.75) - 295,61
228,30 {101.85) 0.36 329.69
Deferred tax assets / (Nabilities) (net) (244.72) (65.60) 0.36 {179.48)

The Company does not have any unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unusad tax crodits on which deferred tax asset (s not creatod.

Deferred tax expense far the previous yrar was determined considering Goodwill acquired from business combination is o depreciable asset under section 32 of the Income

Tax Act, 1961. The Finance Bill 2021, ammendad whareby no depreciation on goodwill shall be allowable from April 2020 (e, financial year 2020-21), Accordingly, defarred

tax liability created in earlier year has been reversed In current year.
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(All amounts are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

31 Financial Instruments

(a) Capital Management

The Company's management reviews the capital structure of the Company on periodical basis, As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risks assoclated with each class of capital. The Company monitors the capital structure using gearing
ratio which is determined as the proportion of net debt to total equity,

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detalled in notes 17 and 21 offset by cash and bank balances in
notes 12 and 13) and total capital {Including Compulsorily convertible preference shares) of the Company.

The Company sets the amaunt of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans,

The funding requirements are met through & mixture of equity, internal fund generation, non-currént and current borrowings. The
Company's policy is to use non-currént and current bDI‘I‘Oquﬂ to meet HF‘ItICipELEd fLIl‘I-dil'lU rﬁqulrﬁmhrlti.

Seari :

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as lollows

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Debt
Borrowings- non current {Refer note 17) - 3,118.75
Borrowings- current (Refer note 17) 3,135.68 341.54
3,135.68 3,460.29
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 12) 87.96 #7.64
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalants (Refer note 13) 4.00 1.44
91.96 89.08
Net debt 3,043.72 3,371.21
Total equity (793.94) {490.64)
Compulsorily Convertible Preforence shara capital (Refer nota 16)* 2,855,480 2,548.27
Total capital 2,061.86 2,057.63
Net debt to equity ratio 147.62% 163.84%

* As CCPS will mandatorily be converted Into equity shares, accordingly the same has been considered as part of total capital and not debt
for the purposes of computation of net debt to equity ratio, .
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L1

31 #Financial Instruments (contd.)

(B} Bishmanagsment amevionk
The Company is exposed ta markat risk {including currancy risk, interest rate risk and ather price risk), credit risk and lquidity risk.

The obiective of the Company's risk management framework is to manage the above risks and aims to -
- improve financial risk awareness and risk ransparency

- kdentify, control and monitor key risks
- pravide management with reliable information on the Company’s risk exposurg
- imprave financial returns

(1) Market risk

Markat risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instrument will fuctieate becauss of changs in markst price, Market risk comprizes af - interest Fisk, foreign currency, other
price risk {such as equity price risk) and credit risk.

The Company's activitles expose it primarily to interest rate risk, cerrency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. The financial instruments affected by market risk
includes : Fixed deposits, current investments, borrowings and other current financial liabilities,

i) Liquidity risk

The Company requires funds both for short-term operational needs as well as for long-term investment naeds.

The Company remains committed o maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening the balance shest. The maturity profile of the Company's
financial liabiities based on the remaining pariod from the date of balance sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflect the contractual
undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.

As at 31 March 2021

<1 year 1-3 Years = 3 Years - Totel
Non turrent
- Lease lizbility 3 4.21 4.21
Current
- Borrowings 3,135.68 s - 3,135.68
- Lease liability 2.69 v - 2.69
- Trade payables 1,499.54 g - 1,499.54
Other financial Habilitizs 684,12 - - 684 12
Total 5,322.03 4.2 o 5,326.24

The Company has access to fund based facilities of Rs. 350.00, out of which Rs. 350.00 were undrawn as at 31 March 2021. Also refer note 17(AMvii) and 17(B}v) wor.t
restructuring of debentures and extention of ROCPS

As at 31 March 2020

<1 year 1-3 Years = 3 Years Total
 BOrmowings J 3,118.75 - 3,118.75
- Other financial liabilitias . 41684 - 416.84
Lurrent
- Borrowings 341.54 + . 341.54
- Trade payables 854.04 = = 954.04
+ Other finanaal liabilities 30.07 » . 3007
Tetal 1,325.65 3,535.59 - 4,861.24

The Company has access ta fund based facilities of Rs. 350 00, out of which Rs. B.46 were undrawn as at 31 March 2020,
(i} Earsian eurveney risk

Foreign exchange risk camprisas of risk that may arise to the Company because of fluctuations in forelgn currancy exchange rates. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates
may have an impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss As at the year end, the Company was exposed to foréign exchange risk arising from foreign currency payables and
receivables

The carrying amounts of the Company foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

As at 31 March 2021 As ak 31 March 2020
Particulars currency Financial assets Financial liabilities Financial assets Financial liabilities
Trade receivables uso 11 49 15.24 -
Eguivalent INR 544.83 1,152.61 +
Tratle payables use 53 Hi .00
Y Eguivalent INR * 386.25 0.3¢

* Amount less than Rs. .01 milkon

Mote: the above foreign currency receivable & payable were unhedged as at year end
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(iv}

(v)

{vi)

unts are in Milli

The results of Company's operations may be affecied by fluctuations in the exchange rales belween the Indian fupes againat the LS dollar, Tha foreign exchangs rate sensitivity (s
calculated by the aggregation of Lhe net foreign exchange rate exposure with a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the currencies by 1% against the functinal
currency of the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 Mareh 2020, eveéry 100 baslh palili depreciation/ approclatian i the gxchange rate between the Indian rupee and U5, dollar will
decrease/Increase the Company's lopses before tax by Re. 4.58 (31 March 2020 1 Rs. 11.52),

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to intarast rate risk on current and non-current borrowings and fixed depouits outstanding as at the yanr end. The Campany's pelicy s 1o maintain a
balance of fixed and floating Intereil rate barrowings and the proportion of fised and floating rate debt |5 delarmingd by current market intarest rates. The botiawings af the
Company are princlpally denominated in Indisn Rupaes, Theis exposurad bre raviewad by appropriote levaly of managament an a monthly basls, The Company invests in fixed
deposits to achieve the Company's goal of imaintaining hquidity, carfying manageable riak and achliving satifaclary raturne,

The exposure of the Company's financial linbilities as at 31 March 2021 to Interest rate risk is as follows:

Fluating rata Fixad rata Taotal
Current
Borrowirigs = 3,135,808 3,135 40
= 3,135,608 3,135,.68
Fixed deposits 4,40 - 4.00
Weighted average inlerest rale (Bof annuil Fioating rata Fixad rata
Loans repayable on demand . 10% -
Debenlures = 12.00%:
ROCPS 15.00%
The exp e of the C yafi lal llabllitios an at 31 March 2020 tao interest rate risl is as follows:
Flaating rate Figad rata ?om

Mon current
Borrowings - 3,118.7% 3,118.7%
Current
Borrowings* Ad1.54 » 341.54

3d41.5a 3,118.75 3,480.29
Fixed deposits 2,258 = 2.2%
Weiahted average interest rate (per annum) Flaating rate Fixad rata
Loans repayable on demand 6.10% =
Debentures = 12.90%
ROCPS * o 15,00%

* including current maturities of long Lerm barrawings
Interest rate sensitivity analysis on borrowings:

If interest rates had been 100 basin points higher/lower and all ather variables were held conatant, the Company's losses before tax for the year ended 31 March 2021 would
Increase/decrease by Rs. 31.35 {(Period ended 31 Mareh 2020: Ba, 34.60), This is mainly attributable to the Campany’s exposure to interast rabes on its variable rate barrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis on fixed daposits)

If interest rates had been 100 Badis peinte higher/lower and all ether varlablas were held constant, the Company's losses before tax for the year ended 31 March 2021 would
decrease/increase by Rs. 0.04 (Period endad 31 Mareh 2020: Ha, 0.02). This l8 malaly attributable (o the Company's expaiure to interest rates an its variable rate borrowings,

QOther price risk

The Company was exposed to price risks arising from fair valuatien ef Company's invastment in mutual fundd, The investments in mutual fund were held for short lerm purposes.
The sensitivity analyses below have baen delermined based on thie @xpasurd Lo aquilty price risks al the and of the reporting year,

If prices had been 100 basis points higher/lower, logs before (ax for the year ended 31 March 2021 would decreasefincrease by Re, Ml (for the year anded 31 March 2020 : 2y,
0.01) as a result of the changes In falr value of thase investmants which have haen doslgnated as at FVTPL,

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations fesulting in finarelal oss 1o the Campany. The Company's exposure o cradit risk primarily
arises from trade receivables, halances with banks and sicurity deposits, The credit risk on bank balances bs imited because (hi counterparties are Banks with good credit rating,
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, Ongoing credit evaluation s performed on the financial condition of accounta recalvable. The Company's polieies an
assessing expected credit lossti In ditailed in noted to accounting pelicien (Refer nate 2,16), For details of exposure, default grading and expected credic loss as on the reparting
year (Refer note 11{b}).

Apart from the customers as disclosed in note 11{d), tha Campany does not havae significant cradit risk sxposurs Lo any single sounterparty, Concentration af cradit risk as
specified in note 11(d) did not excesd 50% of gross monetary assets at the end of reparting period.
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(a) The following tables presents the carrying value and fair value of each categary of financial asdats and lsbilities

(b

As at 31 March 2021
Financial nzseis Meanursd at Mensurad st Mensurad At Tatal carrying
amaortisad cost FVTOET FVTPL value
Cash and cash equivalents B7,90 . B n7.un
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4.00 = - 4,00
Trade recelvables 857,47 . . BS7.47
Loans - current 1,17 . . 117
Loans - non-current a.67 - 0.67
Other financial assets - fign=currant 24,70 - - 24,70
Other financial assets - current 0.41 . . 0,43
976,40 - - 976.40
Financial liabilitias Measured at Measiirad at Maasurad at  Total carrying value
amortisad coat FVTOCT FVTPL
Compulsorily convertibla praference sharos x - 2355.9& 2,855.80
Barrowings - current 3,135,608 - . 3,135.68
Lease liability - non-currint 4,21 . ® 4,21
Lease liability - current 2.60 = - 4,689
Trade payables 1,499, 54 = ¥ 1,499.54
Other financial liabilities - currant G412 . 4 4,12
5,326.24 - 2,855,00 T 8,182.04
As at 31 March 2020
Financial nasata ‘Measured at Maasured at Measurad at Total carrying
amartised cost FVYTUCT FVTPL walua
Cash and cash eguivalents e B7.64 - - 87.60
Bank balances other than cash and cash equlvalents 1,44 - - 1.44
Trade receivables 1,152.61 = = 1,1582.61
Loans - current 2,53 - = 2.53
Loans - non-current 1,19 - . 1,18
Investrments in mutual funds b . 1.03 1,03
Other financial assets - RaR=currant 24,33 = ¥ 24.33
Other financial assets - current 11.10 . . 11,10
1,280.84 ; 1.03 1,281,87
Financial liabilitlas Measured at Maasurad at Measurad at  Total carrying value
amaortined cost TOCK FYTPL
Compulsarily convertible praference shares . B 2,548,27 2,548,27
Borrowings - non-current 3110758 - B 3,118,748
Borrowings - current 341.54 . - J41.54
Trade payables q54.04 - - 954,04
Other financial liabilities - pan-current 416,04 . . 416,04
Other financial liabilities - current 10,07 . . 30.07
4,861.249 - 2,548.27 7,400.51

Carrying values of financial assets and Mnancial liabilitles are approximation of thelr respective Tair values.

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financlal instruments that are (4) recognised and measurad at fair
value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair valies ore disclosed i the financial statements, To provide an indication abaut the reliability of the
inputs used In determining fair value, the Company has clagiificd [ts finsncial instruments into the three lavels preseribad under the seounting standard,

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instrumants messured using quated prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have queted price, The fair
value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the clasing price as at the reparting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in 80 sctive market (s determined using valuation technlgues which maximise the usa of
observable market data and rely A% little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all gignificant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the

Instrument is Included in leval 2,

Level 3: If one or more of that algnificant inputs is nat based on observable market dats, tha instrurment 9 neluded in level 3, This is the case for unlisted eguity

securities, security deposits Included in level 3,

Particulars Level As at 31 March As at 31 March
021 2020
Financial assets
Investments in mutual furds Lival 2 - 1.03
Financial liabilities
Compulsorily convertible priferance ahares Level 3 2,0585,00 2,548,27

Notes:

(i} Fair valie of unquoted mutual funds Is based an Net Asssts Value (NAV) at the raperting date,

(i) Fair value of the CCPS j& éstimated based on discounted cash flow projections using Moate-Carle simulation model based on a Geometric Brownlon Motian

function.

key Inputs for the level 1 financlal labilitigs as of 31 Mareh 2021 nnd 11 March 2020 are (1) Discount rate (WACC), (i) Growth rate for leng term g
(1) Future cash flaw projactions and (v) Volatility.
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a.

b.

<

Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged In the business of manufacturing of electrical wiring accessories and Nttings. The Beard of Directors of
the Company, which has been identified as being the Chief Operating Decislon Maker (CODM), evaluates the Company's performance,
allocates resources baged an the analysis of varous performance Indicators of the Company as & single unit, Therofore, there |8 na
reportable segment for the Company, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - 'Operating Segments Reporting’ notified under

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,

Geographical Segnmients

The Company is domiciled in India, The amount of t8 révenue from operations fram external customers broken down by location of

customers is stated below:

India
Qutside India
Total

Information regarding geographical non-current assets® is as follows:

For the ysar
endad
31 Mareh 2021

For the year
endad
31 March 2020

225.84 243,61

3,088.46 4,225.14

3,314.30 4,468.75
As at As at

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

India 4,240.33 4,448,632
Qutside India - -
Total 4,240,33 4,448.62
* Non-current assets exclude non current-financial assets and non-current tax assets (net),
Customers contributing to more than 10% of revenua !
Particulars For the yaar For tha year
ended ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Customer A 1,620,37 2,039,358
Customer B 331,70 465,54
Customer C 273,93 447,44

There are no other customer who contributed 10% ar more to the Company's revenue individually.
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34 Employee benefit plans

(i} Defined contribution plans
The Company makas contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retiremant banafit plan for qualifying employeas, Tha Company's contribution o
the employees provident fund [z deposited with the reglonal provident fund commissionar, Under the scheme, the Company s required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll éout ta tha retiramant benafit seharma to fund thi Banafits,

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Ry, 18,51 milllon (Previous year | Rs. 19,82 million) for provident fund.
{ii) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity plan

Gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation, and death of an employes, The aforesaid liability Is calculated on thi basls of 19 days salary (e, last
drawn salary plus dearrais allowanc) for each complaled yaar of service or part thareol In exceis of & monthe, subject o a maximum of 2,00, Vésting ccurs dpen
completion of 5 years af kérviea,

The present value of the gefined bapafit ebligation and thi ralated currant Servics CoSL GFe MEARLIGD UsING the Prajected Unit Cradit method with actuarial valuations
being carried out at esch Dalance shiel date.

The gratuity plan typicilly @xposas tha Company Lo ACTUEFIE] fisks SUCh 851 INlarest rate risk, longevily risl and salary Fisk.

Intérest risk The defined banefit obligation calculated usey o discount rate based on gavernmant bands, If bond yields fall, the defined banant
obligation will tend ta increase,

Longewity risk The presenl value of the defined benefit plan labllity is celculsted by reference to the best estimale of the monality of plan
participants both during and after thelr employmaent. An increase in tha (ife expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability,

Salary inflation risk Tha prasant value af thé defingd Bepafit jplan llability |8 calculated By refarence (6 the fuluis salaries of plan participantsa. As sueh, an

Ineragka IR tha salary of the plan partielpants will ingfease thi plan‘s Nability.

In respect of the plan, thi most recent aetuaiial valuation of the present valua of the defingd banafit sbiigation was caried oul 8 at 31 March 2021 by Willls Towers
Watson; Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The presant valua of the defined banafit obligation, and the related cuirenl senrdce cost B past sorvice cost,
were measured using thi projecled unit credic method.

a) The principal assumptions Wsad for the purponas of Lhe actuarial valuations were o follows,

Particulars Valuatians

A at As ot
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Discount rate(s) B.70% 6.70%
Expected rate(s) of salary Increass B8.00% £.00%
Retirernent age {years) 58 58
Maortality Table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Livies Mortality Lives Mortality

200&-08 2006-08

Withdrawal rate In % n %
20 years to 24 years .00 5.00

25 years to 29 yaurs 3,00 .00

30 years to 34 yoars 2.00 .00

35 years to 49 years 1,00 1,00

50 years to 54 yoars 2,00 <.00

55 years to 58 years 3,00 4,00

The following tables sel ayt (e unfufded itatus of tha defingd Bengfit schefma and amaunts regognlied In the Company's standalone Ninanclal sLatarments as at 31
March 2021:

b} Amounts recognised in Statemant of Profil and Loss are as follows:

Particulars Far the year Far the year
wrid anda
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Service cost

= Current service cost 704 6.56
Net interest expensa 5.50 .54
Components of definéd bénefit casts recagnlaed In prafit or loss 1344 i3.i0

Remeasurement on the net defingd bansnt labiity

- Actuarial (gains) / lastui ariging fram changas in financlal astumptiang 3 5.02
- Actuarial (gains) / loased rising from axperlence adjustments (7.31) (6.25)
Components of defined banafit costs racogniiad In other compréhanilve Incoma (7.31) (1.33)

:2020- 2021 ~.
A M ""\.ﬁ'
i
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¢} The amount included In the Balance Shaet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benafit plans 15 a8 faliows.

d)

€)

Particulars AB at

31 March 2031 31 March 2020

Present value of defined benefit obligation ¥3.76 96,76
Net liability arising from definad hanafit obligation 73.76 96.76

Movement of definad banafit obligation:
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements i1 the net defined benafit obligation owar the year are as follows;

Particulars Far the yaar Far the year
andad andad
31 Mareh 2021 31 March 2020

Opening defined benefit abiligation 96.76 81,70
Current service cost 1.94 6,56
Interest cost .50 i, 54
Remeasurement (gains)/lonsig

- Actuarial (gains) / losian arlalag fram changes in fnaRcl assumptians = 5,02

- Actuarial (gains) / losken AHEING rom exporiense adjusLments (7.31) {6.25)
Benefits paid {20.14) <607
Closing defined beneliL abligatian 73.76 96.76
- Current portion of the abova 9.04 30.96
- Non current partion af thit dbove 64,72 65,860
Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary incraase and mortality, The sensitivity analyses
below have been determined basad on ressonabily possiblE changss of the réspective @ssumptions occurting at the end of the reporting periad, while holding all othar
assumptions constant.

13 If the discount rate |& 100 basis points higher (lowar), tha defined banent abligation would decreasa by Ry, 8,95 {(Increasa by s, 1,24) [Previous yeer ; decrease
by Rs. 7.00 (increasa by Rs. B,29)]

ii) If the expected salary growth decreases (Increases) by 1.00%, the defined baneft obligation would deciease by Rs. 5.94 (increase by Rs, B.05) [Previous yaar |
decrease by Rs. 6.97 (Increasa by is. 8.10)]

i) If the withdrawl rate decroases (incréasas) by 1.00%, the defined banefit obligation would decreans by Rs, 9,32 {ingrease by R&, 8,29) [Pravious yobar | decrasse
by Rs. 9.14 (increass by Rs, 8,14]]

The sensitivity analysis prasentad above may not be repreésentative of the actusl change in the defined benefit obligation os |t i unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur |n isolation of one anothar a5 some of the assumptions may be correlsted.

f) The average duration of the benafit obligation represents average duration for active mambars as ot 31 March 2021 10 yaars (Previous year | 8 yaars).

g)

ad]

1} The gratuity plan is unfundad.

The discount rate is genorally based upon the markaet yiglds available on Governmaent bonds at tha accounting date with a term that matches Lhat of tha liabilities,

The estimates of future sslary Increases conslderied Lakes Into sccolint the inflatlon, seniority, promotion and other relevant Tactors.
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35

36

37

Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)

There were no amounts which ware required to ba transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fung by the Company.

The Cempany did not have any long=term coateacts including derivative contracts for which thers werg any materlal faresesable losses,

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises had issued an Office Memarandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommaends that the Micro
and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondance with its customars the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of
the Memorandum. Based on Information recelved and available with the Company, thera are na amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterpridges ps

at 31 March 2021 except b8 follows:-

No.

Particulars

As at
31 Mareh 2021

As at
31 March 2020

The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any suppller as at the end
of accounting year,

- Principal amount
- Interest therean

The amount of intereést pald by the buyer in terms of Section 16, of the Micro Small and

297.89
a2.81

0.92

298,68
2.70

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond thie appointed day during the year.

3 |The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making paymant {which - -
have been paid but beyond the appalnted day during the vear) but without adding the
interest specified under Micre Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006,

4 |The amount of intérast acerusd and Famaining unpaid at the and of each accounting yasr, 5.81

5 |The amount of further intorest remaining dus and payable aven In the succeeding years, - .
until such date whan the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small antarprise for
the purpase of disallowsnce as & deductible expenditure undér Section 23 of the Micra Smiall
and Medium Entérprise Davelopment Act, 2006, l

Dues to Micrp and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have baen (dantified on the hasis of information collacted by
the Management, This has been relied upon by the auditars,

38

Related party disclosuros
L. List of related parties

a. Ultimate Holding Entity
Delos Investmerit Fund I, LP

b. Holding Company
Delos Sage Haldco Cooperatief U.A

c. Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company
Sage International, Inc.; USA

d. Firm exercising significant influence on the Company
AR2 LLC

e. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Vatsal Manoj Solankl {upto 31 March 2021) Managing Director

Madhur Aneja (w.e.f 25 February 2021) CED

Michael Rakiter Director
Sanjay Kumar Sanghoee Directar
Matthew Constanting Director
Satish Kumar Rustygl Diraclor
Pratibha Priya Mysare Raghuveer (from 1 June 2020 to 31 March 2021) Directar

Isha Gupta
Sandeep Chotia (w.a.f. 1 August 2020)

Company Secratary
Chief Financlal Qfficer
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(Figures in brackets relate to previous period}

Particalars Haolding Wholly Dwnad Firm exercising Key Grand total
[ Subsidiary significant infi & g
Company onthe Company  Personnal (KMP)
Ir, . Transactlons/ outstanding balances with related parties during the year
A, Transachions during tha year
I Salke of products® ~ 1,620.37 . 162037
> {2,039.35) ) {2,039.45)
il. Other operating revenue - Development charges - 10.59 - = 10.5%
- (7.92} “ (7.92)
iii Gurantee Premium Income and investments in subsidiary 4 675 - . 675
i (5.47) . - (5.47)
v Issue of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Class A 647.53 . + - 647 53
(=) - () 1] '
v Corporate guarantes commission expensa 3317 - - 33.17
(33.02) {-) -3 &) {33.02)
vi Loss on fair valuation of de;rrvative instruments {Refer note 16) - . u
[129.00) - -} {129.00)
vii Gain on fair valustion of derlvative instruments (Refer note 16) 269.00 - 38.00 307.00
154} () (-17) (= (=17}
vill Legal and professicnal fees " 42.32 0 . 42.32
(=) ) X (=) )
ix Fraight = 0.58 0.56
-} {33.07) -3 ) (33.07)
% Remuneration paid?*
Vatsal Manoj Solanki . - - 132 1.33
(-3 =) {3 (1.32) 11,323
Satish Kurnar Rustgi . . - 4,09 &.0u
=) =) -3 (2.085) {2.65)
Rupai Jain ' > 5
-1 {=) (-} (0.04) {0.04)
Isha Gupta 7 & 0.62 0.62
-3 (=3 -] (0.46) {0.4€]
Shashi Kurnar Nayar - -
Q] {=) -] {4.01) (4.01)
Suraj Jalswal . 2 o . 2
-2 =} ) (.34) (0.34)
Sandeep Kumar Chotia - = = 5.92 5.92
=} -3 =y (&3] -3
Madhur Aneja - - 1.76 1.76
-] {-} ) -} -3
Total = > - 13,71 13.71
{-} {-) (-} (8.21) {8.21)

* Also refer note number 46 with respect to debit and credit notes received { Issued from / to whally owned subsidiary company.
** boes not include expense towards gratuity and compensated absences as the same is determined on actuarial basis.
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{Figuras in brackets ralate to previsus pariod)

Farticulars Helding Whn]ly Owned Firm exercising Key Grand tetal
Company Subsidiary significant infl e M ent
Company on the Company  Personngl {KMP}

II.  Trensactions/ outstanding balances with related parties during the year

B. Outstanding balances at year end

i, Trade receivables = 540.87 . . 540.87
) {624.58) -) ) (624.55)

ii. Equity share capital 356.92 . : . 356.32
(356.92) =) -} (=) (356.92)

1 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Class A '2,482.08 . - ¢ 2,462.08
(2,083.55) -} -} =} {2,083.55)

v, Compulsory Convertible Praference Shares - Class B . - 147.58 147.58
=) -} {185.58) =) [185.58)

v, Investment in subsidiary . 659.86 - - 659,86
{=) (653.12) (&3] -) (653.12)

vi. Trade payables : 332,20 332.20

-} 1] ) ) z

vii, Debentures issued amounting to Rs. 2,857.50 (Previous year ; Rs. 2, 857,50) are also guarantead by the Holding Company (Delos Sage Holdoo Cooperatief ULA. ) (Refer note 17)

viil, The Company and the Holding Company had granted a corporate guarantee of US $20.00 miilion for a term loan taken from tenders by wholly owned Subsidiary Company, Sage
International Inc., USA, As at 31 March 2021, 511 has drawn $16.00 million (Rs. 1,170.56 million) [As at 31 March 2020, drawn $16.00 milkion (Rs. 1,211,36 million}] out of the

original principal amount sanctioned.
be. Figures in bracket relates to previous year ended 31 March 2020.

T
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39

40

41

The Company had closed all its manufacturing plants and offices with affect from 24 March 2020 following countrywide lockdown due to Covid-
19. Subsequently, the Campany has gradually resumed (ts aperations across ol the plants adhering to the safety norms prescribed by the
Government of India,

The Company has assessed the impact of Cavid-19 pandemic on Its business aperations and has consldered relevant Internal and extarnal
information available up to the date of approval of these standalone financlal statemants, in determination of the recoverability and carrying
value of praperty, plant and agquipment, goodwlill, inventories, and trade recelvables. Based on current estimates, the Company expects the
carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. Further, the management balieves that thers may not be significant impact of Covid-19
pandemic on the financial position and performance of the Company, in the long-term. The Company will continue to monitor any material
changes to future economic conditions.

Commitments
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execoted on capital account and not £.18 17.57

provided for (net of advances)

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company disputed and not acknowledged as debts: 0.59 {31 March 2020- 1.08)

. Guarantees

The Company had granted a corporate guarantee of US $20.00 miilion for a term loan taken from lenders by wholly owned Subsidiary
Company, Sage International [nc,, USA, As at 31 March 2021, SIT has drawn $16.00 millien (Re, 1,170.56 million) [As at 31 March 2020,
drawn $16.00 million {(Rs. 1,211.36 million}] out of the original principal amount sanctioned.

The guarantees have been glven in the ordinary course of business and the obligations are expected to be discharged accordingly and no
liability is anticipated In these respects,

. Contribution to provident fund under the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous provisions Act; 1952

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, there are varous |f1l&fpr&!hﬂﬂ" Issues and thus managemant g in the process of
evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgement in relation to non-exclusion of certaln allowances from the definition of "basic
wages" of the relevani employeas for the purpose of determining contribution fo provident fund under the Employees Provident Fund &
Miscellaneous provisions Act, 1952, Pending Issuance of guidelines by the regulatory authorities on the application of this ruling, the impact on
the Company, if any, can nat be ascertained,

. Claims towards non-campliances with laws and regulations, the amounts for which is presently unascertainable. (Refer note 45 and 46)
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(i)

o)

{iik})

{iv)

(v)

{wi}

Leases

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2049 using the
modifled retrospective method by reconising 2 lease Habiliky at the date of initial application at the present value of the remaintng lease payments,
discounted using the company's Incremental borrowing rate and recognising a Right-of-use assets at an arnount equal to the zase Nabllity, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments refating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application.
Comparatives as a3t and for the year ended 33 March 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted and therefore witl continue to be reported under the
accounting poticies laciuded as part of the standalone Anancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognitlon af ‘Right-of-use assets' of Rs. 442.32 from the reclassification of favourable lease
assels under other intangible assats.

The follewing is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
{a) Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in sirnlar economic environment with s similar end date.

(b} Relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as ao alternative to performing an Impairment revlew - there were 0o onerous
contracts as at t Apiil 20159,

{c) Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-yse assets and Babllities for leases with less than 12 months of izase term on the date of initial
applicaticn.

(3} Excluded the initiat direck costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial spplication.

fe}]  Using hindsight in detecmining the lease term where the contract contains gptions to extend or terminate the lease.

Tha Company has also elected not to reassess whether a conltract is, or contains 3 lease at the date of {nltial application. Instead, For contracts entered into
befora the transition date the Company relied on its assestment made applylng Ind AS 17 and Appendix © to Ind AS 17, Determining whether an
Arrangement containg a Lease.

Extension and termination aptions

Extension and termination options are included In a number of groperty and equipment leases across the Company. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Company's operations.

The majority of extension and terminztion opticns beld are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respective lessor,

Residual value guaranteeas

To optimise lease costs during the contract perled, the Company may sometimes provide residual velue guaranlees in refation to property lsases, There was
rig impact, in respact therecf on the standatone financial statements.

Changes in the carrying value of righ! of use assets for the year ended:

ROW assests are amertised on straight lne basis over the {ease term. Lease tesm is 5 years, The agaregate depreciation cxpense on ROU assets is included
under depreciation expense in the Statement of Profit and Luss.

Movement in lease liabilities:

Year ended
31 Mmarch 2020

Year ended

Pasticulars 31 March 2021

Balance as at 1 Apri 2020 :

Additlons 7.07 -
Finance cosls accrued during the period 0.08 -
Fayment of lease llabilities (0,22} -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 6.90 -

Break-up of current 2nd nan-cusrent lease Jiabilities:

Year ended
31 March 2021

Yeqr ended

Particulars 31 March 2020

Cutrent 2.69
Mon - current 4.21
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 6.90 -

Contractual maturities of lease labilities on an undiscounted basis:

Particars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Lass than one year
{ne to five years

2,69
4,121

Mora than five years . -

Company does not [ace 3 significant liquidiby risk with regaed to its [eace Habllitiss as the current assets are sufficlent o meet the obligations related to loase
hzbilities &5 and when they fall due.
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Operational Outlook

The Company has incurred loss of Rs. 336.47 (pravious year e, 313.34) during the year ended March 31, 2021 and has accumulated losses of Re, 1,251,081
{previous year Rs. 915.34) as of that date resulting In complete erosion of the net worth of the Company, Further as at 31 March, 2021, the Company's current
lizbilities exceeds its current assets by Rs. 2375.67, These conditions cast a slgnifieant daubt on the Company's abliity to continue as o going concern and the
Company may be unabile o realize iLs assets snd discharge Ibs llabilities In the normal course of business. The abllity of the Company to continug as a golng
concern is dependent on the Improvement of the Company's future operations, continuad financial support from Deloy Investrment Fund 11, LP, the Uitimate
Holding Entity and defermant of barrowing,

Hawever, the financial staterments of the Company have baan preparad as golng concern as :

(a) Delos Investment Fund 11, LP, the Ultimate Holding Entity, has conflrmed to pravide financial support as and when the need ariges:

(b)  Current liabilities as at 31 March 2021 includes NCD's amounting to fts, 2,852,08 millions (as at 31 March 2020 Rg, 2,634.13 millions and Included under
non current borrawings), Radeemable Optlonally Convertible Prefeence Shares (ROCPS) amounting to Rs, 280.36 millions (as at 31 March 2020 Rs.
280.36 mililons and Included under non current borfgwlngs) and interest on NCD'W and ROCPS amounting to Re, 525,42 millions and 150,81 miliions
respectively (as at 31 March 2020 Rs. 335.07 millions and Rs. 93.64 millions respectively included in other current and nan current labibities).
Subsequent to year end, for the NCD's sutstanding (Including Interest), the Company has entéred nto a restructuring term shest with lenders wherein
along with other changes / modifications from the original debenture agresment, the maturity date of NCD's has been exlonded to 30 June 2023, with no
extension aption. Further, the Company has slso commanced the process of ranegotiating the terms of the ROCPS (Including Interast) with the ROCPS
holder and the ROCPS holder has confirmed that the amount of ROCPS will not be called for the Hext tweleve months [Rafar nate 12{A)vI] and
17(B)(v).

(c) Compulsorily Convartible Praforence Sharas (CCPS) amounting to Re, 2,055,080 millions (as st 31 March 2020 Re, 2,548.27 milllons) disciosed 85 non
current financial labllity in the standalone financial results will be copverted into sguity share capital in the Ruture; and

(d) Based on future projections, the management of the Company |s confident of generating profits (0 the near future,

Accordingly, the financial results do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts of to the
classification of liabilities that might be nacessary, should the Company ba unabla to continue as s golng concarm,
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—

Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Basic earnings per share {in Rs.} (A/B} (1.29) (1.32)
Diluted earnings per share {in Rs.) {A/B) {1.29) {1.32)

Caiculation of Basic and Dilutaed earnings per share

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

For the year
ended
31 March 2020

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the
calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share are as follows:

.Loss used in the calculation of baslc and difuted earnings per share (A) {341.65) {314.21}
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of computation of basic 35,692,264 33,371,292
and diluted earnings per share (Face value of Rs, 10 each}

Weighted average number of potential equity shares (CCPS} 228,864,833 204,065,085
Weighted average number of aquity shares and potential equity shares 264,557,097 237,436,377

(CCPS) used in the calcuiation of basic and diluted earnings per share (B)

Regulatory Compliances

Pursuant to section 96 of the Companies Act, 2613 the Company had obtained extension to hold its Annual General Meeting
{"AGM") up to 31 December 2019 for the year ended 31 March 2019. The audited financial statements of the Company for the
vear ended 31 March 2019 could not be presented at the AGM held on 31 December 2019, Consequently, the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, were presented in the adjourned Annual Genersl Meeting held on 20 July 2020.
On 16 December, 2020 the Company had filed a petition under section 441 of the Companies Act, 2013, for compounding of
offences before the National Company Law Tribunal which was subsequentyly cancelled due to defects or incompleteness noted
in the application,

Furtber, for the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company was required to hold AGM by 31 December 2020 (as per the provision
of Section 56 of the Companies Act 2013 and further as extended by ROC order Mo. ROC/Delhi/AGM £xt./2020/11538 dated 08
Septernber, 2020). The Cornpany was not able to hold the meeting within the prescribed time. The financia! statemnents for the
year ended 31 March 2020, were presented in the Annual General Meeting held on 05 April, 2021,

The Company is in process of filing petitions under section 441 of the Companies Act, 2013, for compounding of above offences
for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 before National Company Law Tribunal.

{b) The Cornpany is in non—compliance with respect to submission of standaione audited financial results for the years ended 31

46

March 2020 and 31 March 2021 and standalone unaudited financial results for the six months ended 30 September 2019 and 30
September 2020 to stock exchange within the prescribed time pursuant to Regulation 52 of the SEBI {(Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (*SEB! LODR'"), as amended. The Company had submitied the standalone audited
financial results for the year ended 31 March 2020 and stendalone unaudited financial results for the six months ended 30
September 2019 an 31 March 2021.

Accordingty, the Company could be liable to certain penal provisions for the aforesaid non compliances under the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI {Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. The canseguential
impact of these non- compliances, including the liability for penal charges, if any, on the standalone financial statements is
presently not ascertainable and have accordingly not been recorded in the standalone financial statements.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has received / issued debit and credit notes in forelan currency amounting to Rs, 119.77
millions and Rs, 335,69 millions {including debit and credit notes armounting to Rs. 108.49 millions and Rs. 331,00 millions
respectively from wholly owned subsidiary company) respectively which are outstanding as at year end, for which the Compahy
will need to get regulatory approvals under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999. The consequential Impact of this
matter, including Hability for penat charges, i any, on the standalone financial staterments is presently not ascertainable and
have accordingly not been recorded in the siandalone financial staternents.
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Gluhend India Private Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial stataments for the yoar anded 31 March 2021

(All amounts are In Rs. Millians, unlass atharwise stated)

47

a) Particulars of Investmants mada:

77

Full particulars of investment made, guarantees given together with purpose in terms of section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

4TH ANNUAL REPORT

Name of the Investas Az at Investmant madae/ Investment Az at Purpose
31 March Daemad capltal redeamed J 31 Maieh 2021
2020 eantribution during axtingulghad
the year
Investment in equity sharas of
Sage International, Inc. 651.12 6.74 659,86 | Strateglc investment as
part of business expansion
Name of the Investon Ag at Invastment made/ Invastmant [ As at Purposs
31 Mareh Daamad capltal radanmud / 11 March 2020
2019 contribution during axtinguished
tha yaar
Investment in equity shares of
Sage International, Ing, G4 7,65 5.47 653.12 | Strategic investment as
part of business expansion
b) Particulars of Guarantaa glven:
Name of the Entity Guarantae Guarantee glven Guarantes Guarantee Purpose
given as at 31| during the year dischargad during | givan as at 31
March 2020 (Amount In 8 the yaar March 2021
{Amaount In % mililon) (Amount In % millien)| (Amount In %
miillian} i 8 miltion)
Sage International, Inc. 16,00 16.00 | Loan taken for business
BEpANSIOn
Name of the Entity Guarantee Guarantea glven Guarantee Guarantee Furpose
glven as at 31 during the yaar discharged during plven as at 31
March 2019 {Amount In § tha yaar March 2020
(Amount In $ millllan) (Amount In % milllen)| (Amount in $
miilian) mlllion)
Sage International, Inc. 14,00 2,00 16,00 | Loan taken for business
pEpaANSIan
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Gluhend India Private Limitad
Notes forming part of the gtandalona financial statamants for tha year endad 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in Rs, Milllons, unless otherwise stated)

48  The figures for the previous year have bean regroupod wharevar necessary, to make tham comparable,

49 The standalone financiol staterments for the year ended 31 March 2021 were approved by the Board of Directors and suthorlsed for lssue on 31
December 2021,

For and on bahalf of the Board of Diractors of
Gluhend India Private Limited

Pl B> g foe

Mtd r Amljl Michaal Rakiter
Chief Executive Offlcer Diractor
DIN: 07995000

.\l ‘ :
" ( Ilhl Euptl
) // Company Secretary
/ Membership No, 22178
Pl }-‘_I"N'W D#Ill
311 =c&nanr"zuz|
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il Chartered Accountants
DEIOItte 7tn Floor Building 10
Tower B

Haskins & SellsLLP S

Gurugram-122 002
Haryana, India

Tel: +81 124 679 2000
Fax:+91 124 679 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Gluhend India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Gluhend India Private Limited
(“the Parent” / “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company, (the Parent and its subsidiary company
together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021,
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in cenformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Aet read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended (Ind AS’), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consalidated state
of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 202 1, and their consolidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive
loss, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to :

a) Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes matters relating to non-compliances
with certain provisions of the Companies Act; 2013 with respect to presentation and adoption of audited
financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, before the shareholders in
the respective Annual General Meetings within the stipulated time as prescribed under section 96 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and submission of audited standalone financial results for the year ended 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020 and unaudited standalone financial results for the six months ended 30
September 2020 and 30 September 2019 to the stock exchange within the prescribed time pursuant to
Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended. Accordingly, the Company could be liable to certain penal provisions for the said non-
compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Requlations, 2015, as amended. The consequential impact of these non-compliances,
including the liability for penal charges, if any, on the consolidated financial statements is presently not
ascertainable.
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b) Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements, wherein it is indicated that the Helding Company has
received / issued debit and credit notes in foreign currency aggregating to Rs. 119.77 million and Rs.
335.69 million respectively which are outstanding as at year end, for which the Holding Company will
need to get regulatory approvals under the Forelgn Exchange Management Act, 199S. The conseguential
impact of this matter, including liability for penal charges, if any, on the consolidated financial statements
is presently not ascertainable.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the “Basis for
Qualified Opinion’ section of our report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Sectlon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in Annexure A to the
Independent Auditor's Report, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

Sr. Key Audit Matter “Auditor’s Response

No.

1. d!‘r;'lpairrnent assessment of gob;:iT\r_i-l_l:— T Principal audit procedt'l-!"-gsafl_e_r?a}‘ﬁ:i_ea_:_ -
(Refer Notes 2.4 and 3D of consolidated
financial statements) We performed testing of design and operating

effectiveness of internal contrels and substantive
As at 31 March 2021, the Group has goodwill | testing as follows:

of Rs. 2,381.27 million.
« Evaluated the design and tested the operating

The Group assesses the impairment of effectiveness of the management’s internal

goodwill annually at the year-end. The control around the impairment assessment

impairment assessment performed by the process,

management involved significant

judgements and estimates including future | «  Understood the key assumptions considered in

performance and short and long-term the management’s estimates of future cash

growth rates and discount rate. flows.

Accordingly, the impairment assessment of [ = We evaluated the short-term and long-term

goodwill was considered as a key audit growth rates considered in the estimates of

matter. future cash flows and the discount rate used in
the calculations by invelving our valuation
specialists.

» Compared the historical cash flows (including
for current year) against projections of the
management for the same periods and gained
understanding of the rationale for the changes.

» Performed sensitivity analysis on the key
assumptions within the forecast cash flows and
focused our attention on those assumptions we
considered most sensitive to the changes; such
as revenue growth and profitability during the
forecast peried, the terminal growth rate and
the discount rate applied to the future cash
flows.
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Sr. | Key Audit Matter | Auditor's Response

No.

= We ascertained the extent to which a change in
these assumptions, both individually or in
aggregate, would result in impairment, and
considered the likelihood of such events
oceurring.

We further assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

s Accounting and valuation of | Principal audit procedures performed:
Compulsory Convertible Preference
Shares (‘CCPS’) We performed testing of design and operating
(Refer Notes 2.16.C and 16 of | effectiveness of internal controls and substantive
consolidated financial skatements) testing as follows:

As at 31 March 2021, the Parent has |« Evaluated the design and operating
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares effectiveness of management’s internal controls
('CCPS’) of Rs. 2,855.80 million (including over accounting and valuation process.
embedded derivative liability).
» Evaluated ‘the management’s accounting
Considering the terms of the CCPS, the assessment of CCPS by reading the terms of
accounting is complex and involved CCPS in the framework agreement.

significant management judgement. The fair
value of CCPS is determined through |« Obtained the fair valuation report of
application of valuation techniques and the management’s expert,

use of assumptions and estimates.
» Evaluated the objectivity, competence and
Where observable data is not readily independence of the management expert.
available, as in the case of level 3 financial
instruments, then estimates need to be |« Evaluated the valuation model, assumptions

developed which can involve significant relating to future cash flows, growth rate and
management judgement. discount rate by involving our wvaluations
specialists.

The effect of fair value adjustments has
material impact on the loss of the Company. | » Performed arithmetic check of the valuation
model used,

We identified application of appropriate
accounting and assessing the fair value of | We further assessed the adequacy of the
CCPS as a key audit matter because of the | disclosures made in the consaolidated financial
degree of complexity invelved in accounting, | statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
valuing financial liabilities and the degree of
judgement exercised by management in
determining the inputs used in the valuation
models.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

» The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements,
standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

¢ Ouropinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do nat
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,
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= In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information, compare with the financial information of the subsidiary company, to the extent it
relates to the entity and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiary company is
traced from the financial information of the subsidiary company being prepared by the management of
the Parent.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 3 material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consalidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professicnal
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invalve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures mads by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repott to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infarmation entities or businese
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities or business activities included in the consoclidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained, all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the baslis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on 31 March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the directors of the Group companies,
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A” which Is based on
the auditors' reports of the Parent. Our report expresses qualified opinion on the operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting for the reasons stated therein.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Parent being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration not
applicable.

H)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group - Refer Note 41(a) of the notes forming part of consolidated financial
statements.

(i) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts - Refer Note 35 of the notes forming part of consolidated financial statements.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Parent - Refer Note 36 of the notes forming part of consolidated financial
statements.

For Deloitte Haskins 8 Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

-

v

‘Satpal Singh Arora

Partner

(Membership No. 098564)
UDIN : 21098564AAAAELS403

Place : New Delhi
Date : 31 December 2021
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gluhend India
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent”) as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Parent is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Parent’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness: of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial infermation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Parent’s internal financial contrals over financial reporting,
based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. QOur audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reperting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditors judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Parent.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Cver Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, Including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls aver
financial reperting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control ever financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deterjorate.

Basis for Qualified opinion

With respect to Parent, according to the information and explanations given to us and based an our audit, a
material weakness has been identified in the Parent’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with
respect to issue of inventory for production and consequent impact on inventory records. This could potentially
result in a material misstatement in the recording of consumption and year-end inventory account balances
in the Parent’s consolidated financial statements.

A'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Parent has,
in all material respects, maintained adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting as ef 31 March
2021, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”, and except for the possible
effects of the material weakness described in Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above on the achievement
of the objectives of the control criteria, the Parent’s internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as of 31 March 2021.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing,
and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company
for the year ended 31 March 2021, and these material weakness do not affect our epinion on the said
consolidated financial statements ef the Company.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W - 100018)

Satpal Singh Arora

Partner

(Membership No. 098564)
UDIN : 21098564AAAAEL5403

Place : New Delhi
Date : 31 December 2021
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As at
PERLE N MNateNo. 51 march 2021 s mareh Al )
1. ASSETS
Non-current assets
a  Property, plant and equipment 3a 56,75 1,04B.16
b. Capital work-in-progress L} 59.28. 78,83
& Right-of-use asssts 3Ic 52323 489,64
d, Goodwill ko] 2,381,27 2,388.28
& Other Intangible assels 4 52248 594,03
I Intanglble assets under development 23.86 1661
g, Financial assets
{i) Loans [ a.67 119
(i) Dthes financial assats 7 30.78° I8
h: Mancurrent tax assets {nat) a 289,69 384,55
I, Deforred tax assets (net) 3a 276.96 20251
1 Gther non-current pssels - | 771 164,18
Tolal noa=-current assels 5,073.27 5316.04
Current assats
a, lnveniories ] 1,603.04 1,409.97
b, Flnancal asses :
(i) Investments 5 B 1.03
{ll} Trade receivables : B a11.88 ‘B9B.40
{ill) Cash and cash equivalents 12 147 48 23120
{iv) Bank balances other than {iil}] abowe 13 A.00 144
(v} Loans (7] 147 Z.53
[wi) Other financial assets 7 233 11.42
. Other current assets 5 1,021.13 391.31
Total current assets 3,591.03 2,947.39
Total assots 8,663.30 8,263.43
II. EQUAITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a.  Eguity shore copital 4 356,82 356,92
b.  Other eguity 15 (2,012.74) [1,530,58;
Total eguity {1,655.82) {1,173,76)
LIABILITIES
Non-current Hablities
4 Financial ifapilities
{i) Compulsorily convertible preference shards 16 2,855.80 2,548.27
{ii} Baorrowinas 17 Ta 431818
{illy Lease fabillty 4z &7.74 19.87
{iv) Cither Financial jrabilities 2L - 524,38
b, Provigions 18 78.82 78.64
6 Deferred tax liabilities (net) o 34.83 17048
d,  Other non-current labilities 19 - 5093
Tatal non-current fiabilities 303718 771875
Current Rabilities
A.  Financial labifitles
(i} Borrowdngs 17 4,505 87 341.54
(i) Lease fiabifity 42 32,53 2853
{ill) Trade payabies 20
“total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small enterpriscs 297 89 298 60
-total outstanding dues:of creditars other than micro enterprises and srmall 117132 79633
enterorises
{iv) Other financial Habilities i § 1.093.52 72.90
b Provisions 18 13.80 114,75
€ Current tax lrabilties ] 13.33 743
d.  Other current liabilities 19 63.66 G740
Tatal cerrent fiabllities 7,281.93 1,717.44
Total Habilities 10,319.12 9,437.19
Total aquity and |fabilities B,663.30 8,163.43
Ser accompanying notes Lo the consolidated finandial statements 148
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31
{All amounts are in fAs. Millfans, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars ﬁl;te Mo. Forthe yesr ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 piarch 2020
1. Income _
(a) Revenue from cperations 2 5,007.95 590649
(b) Other income 23 356,54 163.58
2. Totalincome 5.364.49 070,07
3. Expenses
{a) Cost of materials consumed 24 2,241.27 12,218.03
(b} Purchases of stack-in-rrade 30111 34375
(¢) Changes in inventaries of finished goods, stock-in-trade and worlein- 25 (206.71) 280.03
progress
(d) Employee benefits expense 26 1, k10,34 1,110.81
(e) Finance costs 27 851.22 76842
{f) Oepreciation and amortisatign expense 28 277.60 408.78
(g) Other expenses 79 1,536:21 1,690.19
4. Total expenses 6,111.04 5,920.01
5, Loas beforetax {(2-4) {746.55) (849.94)
6. Taxexpense '
(a) Currant tax 30A(8) 19.38 56.61
(b) Deferrad tax 20A(8) (220.97) (183.57)
Total tak enpense (210.5%) {126.96)
7. Loss for the year (5-6) (535.98) (722.98)
8. Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will net be reclassified to profit or loss 34
{2) Remeasurement of post employment benefit obfigations 7.3 1.23
(b} Income tax relating to above item (2.13) 10,36}
Items that will be m:laﬂlﬂ_ed to profit or loss
{a) Foreign exchange translation differences 11.49 {L0,54)
{b) Income tax refating to above item (2.68) 2.46
Total ather comprehensive loss 13.99 (7.21)
9, Total comprehensive loss (7+8) (521.97) {730.19)
10, Earnings per equity share 44 )
(3) Basic (in R} (2.03) 3.04)
() Diluted (in Rs.) (2:03) (3.04)
See-arcompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements 11045
In terms of gur report of even date attached
For Delaltte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Gluhend India Private Limited
(FrmsRegistration Mp.: 117366 W/W-100018)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31 March 2621

(All amounts are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance at 1 April 2019 321.23
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Issue of equity shares (Refer note 16D} 35.69
Balance as at 31 March 2020 356.92
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Issue of equity shares .
Balance at 31 March 2021 356.92
b. Other equity

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Tatal
comprehensive
income
Retained earnings Deemed capital Forelgn currency
cantribution teansiation reserve

Balance as at 1 April 2019 (858.30) 36,54 (17.19) (538.95)
Loss for the year (722,98} - - {722.98)
Other comprehensive 16ss, net of Income tax 0.87 . (8.08) (7.21)
Expense recognised during the year Jg46 - 38,46
Balance as at 31 March 2020 (1,580.41) 75.00 (25.27) {1,530.68)
Luss for the year (535.95) - . (535.96)
Other comprehensive income / (less), net of Income tax 5.18 - B.81 13,09
Expense recognised during the year - 39.91 - 33,91
Balance at 31 March 2021 {2;111.19) 114.91 (16.46) (2,012.74)

Ses-accompanying niotes to the consolidated financlal statements
In ketms of our repart of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants _
(Firm Registration Mo, I736_6W!\N-10li{]'1§}

Satpal Singh Arora
Partnar

(Membership No.: 098564)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 31 December, 2021
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Gluhend India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2021

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

For the year
ended
31 March 2020

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax (746.55) (849.94)
Adjustments for:
Interest income (1.27) (9.77)
Finarce costs 851,22 768.42
Depreciation and amortisation expense 277.60 408.78
Pravision for doubtful balances with government authorities 2.58
(Profit}/Loss on fair value of derivative component of CCPS (340.00) 130,00
(Profit)/Loss on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment {1.18) 6.08
Provision for doubtful trace receivables and advances (net) 5.88 B.09
Bad debts/ advances writlen off - 0.77
Provision for enerous contract 79,31
Change in Ffair value of contingent cansideration 15,52
Unrealised fareign exchange loss/{gain) (net) (3.72) (71.84)
Operating profit before working capital changes 41.98 497.10
Adjustments for:
{Increase)/decrease ininventories [(211.37) 158.31
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (262.72) (166.57)
(Increase)/decrease in other financials assets - current 10.73 (3.:89)
{Increase)/decrease in other financials assets - nen - current (1.82) (6.75)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (634.19) 70.06
[Incrcase}fﬂecrease in other non - current assets 157.58 (158:37)
Increasef(decrease) 0 provisions - current (93.64) 0.04
Increase/(decrease) in provisions - nen - currenk 0.18 6.75
increase/(decrease) In other financial liabilities - current 233.76 (4.31)
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 32.59 30,494
Increase/(decrease} In other non - current fiabilities (18.67) 4197
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 729.74 257.35%
Cash used in operations (57.83) 225.03
Income taxes paid (31.01) (32.29)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (46.86) 689.84
Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets including (79.71) (135.33)
capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.00 4,28
Sale of current investrments 1.05 3.74
Loan given to employees 1.B8 (0.17)
Interest received 1.52 0.74
Investments in fixed deposits {1.45) 42.77
Right of use of Asset (24.84) .
Net cash used in investing activities (97.55) (143.27)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from short term borrowings 296,95 341.54
Repayment of short term borrowings (341.54) (608,11)
Preceeds from long term borrowings 242,16
Repayment of long term borrowings (1.02) (0.9;1}
Payment on account of lease liabilities : (18.66)
Procaeds from issue of compulsarily convertible preference shares 647.53 =
Finance charges paid (541.23) (436,23)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities 60.69 (480.24)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (33.72) 65,63
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 231.70 165.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 147.48 231.20
4TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020 - 2021
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Gluhend India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in Rs. Millions, unless ptherwise stated)

Particulars As at

21 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 12)
Cash in hand 0.40 0.15
Balances with scheduled banks:

- in current accounts 147,08

147.48

Notes:

1 The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in actordance with 'Indirect method' as set out in Ind 4S5 = 7 - 'Statement of Cash Flows', as
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules issued thereunder.

2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars As at Cash Flows Nomn-cash As at
31 March 2020 Changes 31 March 2021

Non-current borrowings 4,318.18 (1.02) (4,317.16) .

Current borrowings 341,54 (44.59) 4,298,92 4,595.87

Closing balance of secured loans 4,659.72 (45.61) (18.24) 4,595.87

Particulars _ As at Cash Flows Non-cash As at
31 March 2019 {net) Changes 31 March 2020

Non-current borrewings 3,782.74 241.22 294,22 4,318.18

Current borrowings 290.61 sn.g_a - 341.54

Current maturities of long term borrowings 313,48 (317.50) 4.02 .

Closing balance of secured loans 4,386.83 (25.35) 298.24 4,659.72
See accompanylng notes to the consolidated financial statements 1tn4e
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants. Gluhend India Private Limited
(Firm's Registration No.:117366W/W-100018)
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Giuhend India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in Rs. Milllons, unless otherwise stated)

1

2.2

2.3

General information

Gluhend India Private Limited ('the Company' or 'the Parent') is a Company domiciled in India and was incorporated on 22 December, 2017
under the provisions of the Campanies Act, 2013 ('the Act') applicable In India vide CIN: U74994MH201TFTC303216, Tts debt cecuritles are
listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in India. The Company Is having its registered office at Arsiwala Mansion, Nathalal Parikh Marg, Colaba,
Mumbal - 400005,

The Campany is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of electrical wiring accessories and fittings., The Company mainly caters to
international markets, During the period ended 31 March 2018, Sage Metals Private Limited ('SMPL' - erstwhile Subsidiary Company) got
merged with the Cormpany with effect from appointed date |.e. 13 March 2018,

Sage International, Inc. (‘the Subsidiary Companry’ or 'S11') is a wholly owned sibsidiary of the Company. SII was organised in July 1999, under
the laws of the state of Illinois, USA vide FEIN No D&D600309, The Subsidiary Company has its registered office at 1470 Avenue T #1222, Grand
Prairie, TX 75050, USA . SIlacts an axtended arm of the Cormnpany in the USA to help |n the Storage, Marketing, Distribution and Collection of
products supplied by the Parent In India, S11 acquired business of Trident Components LLP ('Trident') and Jayco Manufacturing ("Jayca') during
the year ended 31 March 2019, The business acguired from Trident relates to trading activities whereas the business acquired from Jaycao is
primarily manufactures and assembles custom metal stamping and fabricated metal products for other manufacturers. Jayco's primary sales and
customer base Is located throughout the southern and western portions of the USA.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Subsidiary Company (collectively referred to as the 'Group') have been prepared
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS*) nefified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules
Issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted |n India.,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially ‘adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use..

Basis of preparation and presentation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments thal are meagured
3t fair values at the end of each reporting perlod, as explained in the accounting policies betow,

Histarical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services,

Fair valug is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whethar that price Is directly observable er estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or fiability If market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, Fafr value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these financial statements is detarmined op such a basis, except for share- -based payment transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 102 Share based payments, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of
Asselts.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measuréments are categarised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
[nputs to the falr value measurements are observable and the slgnificance of the inputs to the fair value mezsurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

« Level 1 inputs are gquoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assats or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

» Lovel 2 inputs are Inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observahle for the asset or liability, either diractly
or Indirectly; and

= Lewvel 3 inputs are unocbservabie inputs for the assets or liabllity.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated financlal statements comprise the financlal statements of the Company and Sublsidiary Company as at 31 March, 2021, The
Company has one wholly owned foreign Subsidiary Company, Sage International, Inc., Control Is achleved when tha Group Is exposed, or has
rights, ta variable returns fram its involvernent with the investee and has the ability to affect thase returns through its power over the investee,
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

a. Pawer over the investee (1.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
h. Exposure, ar rights, to variable returns from Its Invelvement with the investee; and
¢. The ability to use its power over the Investee to affect its returns

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an Investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or mare of the
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included In
the eonsolidated financial statements from the date the Group galns control unkil the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. The
Consolidated financlal statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policles for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances and are presented, to the extent possible, In the same manner as the Company's separate financlal stalements. The accounting
pollcies of the subsidiary are, in all material respects, in line with accounting policies of the Company,

The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company for the purpose of consalidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent
Comnpany, l.&, year ended on 31 March 2021,
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Gluhend India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements forthe year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Consolidation procedures:

a, The financlal statements of the Company and its Subsidiary Company are consalidatad on line-by-line basis adding togather the beok value of
assels, liabilities, equity, income, eXpenses and cash flows of the parent with its subsidiary. For this purpase, income and expenses of the
subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilitiss recongised in the consolidated financial statements as at the acquisition date,

b. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investrment in each subsidlary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary

¢. Eliminate in full, intragroup assets and ilabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating te transactions between entities of the
group (profits or |osses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recongised in assers, such as inventory and property, plant and
equipment, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial
statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies ta temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from
intragroup transactions. '

Profit or loss and each component uf other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to
the non-centrolling interests, even if this results in the non-contralling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting palicies. All Intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, Income, cxpenses and cash Aows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on

Aoy erlislwting

2.4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business as establishad at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than its carrying amount.

2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recagnised once the entity satisfied that the performance obligation and Eontrol are transferrad to the customers,

Sale of products

The Company and the Subsidiary Company derives revenue from Sale of Goods and revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised
goods to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those goods. To recognise
revenues, the Group apply the following five step approach: (1) identify the contract with @ customer, (2) identify the parformance obligations
in the contract, (3) determine the transaction price, {4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5)
recagnise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied

The Group accounts for variable considerations like, volume discounts, rebates and pricing incentives to customers as reduction of revenue on a
systematic and rational basis over the period of the contract The Group estimates an amount of such variable consideration using expected
value method or the single most likely amount in a range of possible consideration depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which we may be entitled

Revenues are shown net of allowances/ returns, goods and services tax and applicable discounts and allowances,
Sale of services
‘Revenue from rendering of services is recagnised. on accrual basis in accardance with the terms of the relevant contracts.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets (including deposits with banks) s recognised using the effective interest rate method on a time
proportionate basis,

Export benefits

Export entitlements are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is
established in respect of exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export
proceeds,
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Gluhend India Private Limited
Motes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All ampounts are in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.6 Leases
The Group as a lessee

The ' Group assesses, whether the cintract is, or containg, a lease. A Contract is, or contains, & lease if the Contract involves:

(a) The use of an identified asset,
(b} The right to obtain substantially all the ecanomic benefits from use of the identified asset, and
(c) The right to direct the use of the identified asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liabllity with respect to all lease arrangements in which it s the lessee,
except for shart-term leases (defined a5 leases with 2 lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets, For these leases, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,

The lease liability Includes the net present value of the following lease payments:

» Fixed payments {(Including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease Incentives and receivable and

= Payments of penalties for terminating the |ease, If the |ease term reflects the Company exercising that option.,

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also Included in the measurement of liability. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, I that rate cennot be readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing ratg, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditiens.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost [s charged to profit or loss over the |esse period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the |lability for each period.

Thie lease liability (s subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by reducing the
carrylng amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the Initlal measurement of the lease liability, any lsase payments made
at or befere the commencement date of the lease less any lease [ncentives recelved, 2ny Initial direct costs and restoration costs,

The right-of-use assets are measured at gast less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-of-use
assels are depreclated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the |ease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company s reasanably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset |s depreclated aver the underlying asset's useful life.

The Company applies Ind AS 36 'Impairment of assets’ to determine whether a right-of use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as specified in note 2,14 of the significant accounting policies,

2.7 Foreign currency transactions and transliations

Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the Company cperates i.€., functional currency,
to be Indian Rupées (Rs.). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Companys functional and
presentation currency’. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest milliens up to two decimal places, if otherwise stated,

Transactions and Balances

Monetary and non-menetary transactions in foreign currencies are nitially recorded in the functional currency of the Company at the exchange
rates at the date of the transactions or at an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transactian,

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled on reporting dats are translated at the ratas of exchange prevailing on
reporting date, Gains/(losses) arising on account of realisation/settlement of foreign exchange transactions and on translation of monetary
foreign currency assets and fiabilitics are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fareign exchange gains / (losses) arising on transiation of foreign currency monetary loans are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on
net basis. However, forelgn exchange differences arising from foreign currency monetary loans to the extent regarded as an adjustment o
borrowing costs are presented in the Statermnent of Profit and Loss, within finance casts,

For the purposes of the consalidated financial statements, Items in the consolidated statement of profit and loss of the businesses far which the
indian Rupees Is not the functional currency, are translated into Indjan Rupees at the average rates of exchange during the year/ exchange
rates as on the date of transaction. The related consolidated balance sheet items are translated inte Indian rupees at the rates as at the
reporting date, Exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the other comprenhensive incorme. On disposal of such entity the
deferred cumulative exchange differences recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is reengnised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial stataments for the year ended 31 March 2021
{All amounts ara in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.8

2.9

Borrowing costs

Berrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying &ssets, which ara assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their Intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest [ncome earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrewing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss In the period in which they are incurred.
Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefit such as salaries, wages and bonus, etc. that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve maonths after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service are recognised as an expense unless another Ind As requires or permit the inclusion of
the benefits In the cost of assets in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reparting pericd and ere measured at an undiscounted
ameunt expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Post-employment benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund u;onldbutién;"mi the appropriate government autherities, The Company has no further payment obligations
onte the contributions have been pald, The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefits expense when they are due or In the year i which actual services are incurred by employees.

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans of the Company comprise gratulty,

The Company has an obligation towsrds gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ‘covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a Jump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment, of an amount bzsed on the
respective employee’s salary and the tenure.of employment; Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The liability recognised In the balance shiet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period, The defined benefit obligation is calculated by actuary using the projected unit eredit method,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by diseounting the estimated future cash outflows by refarence to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligatien,

The net interest cost Is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation, This cost and other cests are
included in employse banefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in "other equity” in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
Balance Sheet,

Changes In the present value of the defined benefit abligation resuiting from settiement or curtallments are recognised Immediately in
‘Staternent of Profit and Loss as past service cost,

Compensated absences

Short-term obligations

Accumulated leaves which Is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months is treated as a short<term employee benefit. The Campany
measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.

Lonu-term oblioations

The |isbilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the end of the period In which the
employees render the related service, They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
senvices provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method, The benefits are discounted using
the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation, Remeasurements as a
result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognisad in prafit or loss. —
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Gluhend India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consalidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts are in Re. Millions; unless otherwise stated)

2.10 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement-of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it
refates to terns recognised In other comprehensive incomea or divectly in equity,

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the texable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
wor recelvable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflacts the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
recelved after considering the uncertainty, if any relating to Income taxes. It s measured using tax rates enacted at the reporting date,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the récognised amounts, ‘and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recq_gnised In respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax agsets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tay
credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that Is probzble that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be
used, Deferred tax assets unrecegnised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is
probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. Significant management judgernent is required to
determine the probability of deferred tax asset.

Deferred tax s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or liability Is settled, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilitles.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT") credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 |s recognised as a deferred tax asset when
it is prabable that future economic benefit asseciated with it in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will flow to the Company
and the asset can be measured reliably, MAT credit entitlement is set off'to the extent allowed in the year in which the Company becomes liable
to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at'each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is
probable that future taxable profits will be avallable against which they can be used, MAT credit entitlement has been presented as deferred tax:
asset in Balance Sheet, Significant management judgement Is required ko determine the probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabllities are offset only if there is 3 legally enfarceable right to offset current tax liabllities and assete
levied by the same tax authorities.

2.11 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Allitems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises: (a) its purchase price, Including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; (b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of cperating in the manner intended by management,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and eguipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate component of
property, plant and equiprment.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any galn or loss arising on dersccanition of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal praceeds and the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment) is included in the Staterent of Profit
and Loss when property, plant and equipment is derecognised. The carrying amount of any component gccounted as a separate component Is
derecoanised, when replaced or when the property, plant and equipment to which the companent relates gets derecognised.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are include& in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate,-only when it is probable that the
future economic benefits associated with expenditure will Flow to the Group and the cost of the [tem can be measured relfably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at the time of incurrence,

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold fand) less their residual values over their useful lives, using
‘the written ‘down valug method. The estimated useful fives, residual values and depreciation method arc reviewed at the end of each reparting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

PR N
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Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Ay

Asset head Useful life in years : -.‘\\
Factory buildings 15-30

Other buildings (other than temporary 60

structure)

Plant and machinery 2-15

Furniture and fixtures 10 i
Camputers 3-4

Leasehold jmprovements 812

Wahicles e o |
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212

2,13

2.14

2158

The useful lives have been determined based on Internal evaiuation done by management and are in line with the estimated useful lives, ko the
extent prescribed by the parl C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the technological obsolescence and actual usage
of the asset, The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset,

Depreciatian Is calculated on'a pro-rata basls for assets purchaser.‘_:jso}d during the year.

Capital work-in-progress
Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use a5 at the reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress,

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired are recognised only if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the Group and the tost of assets can be measured reliably, The other intangible assets are recorded at cost of acquisition
including incidental costs related to acquisition and installation and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and Impairment losses, if
any.

Gain or losses arising from deracognition of an other intangible asset are measured as the differenca between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the gther intangible asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs is capitalised only when It Increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates, All other
expenditure on other intangible assets is recognised in the Staterment of Profit and Loss, as incurred.

Amortisation
The Group's intangible assets are amortised under straight line basis over the following useful lives

Asset head Useful life in yeairs

Computer Software 3-6

Customer Relatlonships 15

Trademarks 5

Favourable lease assets (representing Fair During the balance lease term (2 = 43)

value of lease rights In leaseheld land and
favourable leasehold interest)

Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed at each reportifig date and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Impairment - nan-financial assets

At each reporting date, the management of the Company reviews the carrying amounts of Its non-financial assets to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment, If any such indication of impairment exists, then the assel's recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment
testing, assets are accompanied together into the smallest company of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash generating units (CGUs),

The recoverable-amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of Its value In use and [ts fair valug |éss costs to sell, Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows; discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate thak rafects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss Is recognised If the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

An Impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates Used to datarmine the recoverable amount, Such a reversal is made
only ta the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying ameunt that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation; If no Impairment less had been recognised.

Inventories

Raw Materials and Steres and Spares (including packing material) are vaiued at the Jower of cost and nek realisable value, However, materials
and other jtems held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the fnished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sdld at or above cost, Cost is determined on weighted average basis,

Woark-in-pragress and firished geods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost Includes direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based an normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on weighted average basis,

Net reallsable value Is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the zale.

Stock-in-trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on weighted average basis,

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation,

if the effect of the time value of monesy is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects current miarket
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, thae increase in the provision due to the
- ge of ime is recognised as a finance cost, B R
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2.16

Onergus contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts aré recagnised and measured as provisions. An onergus contract is consldered to exist
where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of mesting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract,

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whase existance will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group, Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated rellably, the obligation is disclosed as @ contingent liability, unlass the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. .

Contingent pssets are possible ascets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence ar non-
occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not whelly within the control of the Group.

Financlal instruments
A financial instrurment is any contract that gives rise to 2 finarcial asset of one entity and a financial llability or equity instrument of another
entity.

A. Financial assats

Recognition and initial measurament

All financial assets are initially recoanised when the Group becdmes & party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets
are injtially measured at fair value plus, In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
altributable to the acquisition of the financlal asset,

Classification and subseq t

Classification

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Group classifies financial assets in following categeries:

+ Financial assets at amortised cost

= Financlal assets at fair value through ether comprehensive income (FYTOCT)

« Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss (FUTPL)

A financial asset being "debt Instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

s The financial asset is held within a business model whose abjective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Princlpal and Tnterest
{SPPI1) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financlal asset being ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the FVTOCI if both of the Following criteria are met:

« The asset s held within the business model, whose objectiva is achieved both by cellecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

» The contractuzl terms of the financial asset glve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding,

A financial asset being equity Instrument 15 measured at FYTPL.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTOCI a5 described abave are measured at FUTPL.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Financial assets carried st amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methad, The arortised
cost Is reduced by impairment losses, If any. Interest income and impalrment are recpgnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets carried at FUTPL

Financial assets carried at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and |osses, Including any Interest income, are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecegnition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the cantractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights
to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred orin which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does nat retain
contrel of the financlal asset. Any gain or lass on derecognition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and [labllities ‘on Initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities, For financial assets which are debt Instruments, a reclassification Is made
only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business maodel are expected to be Infreguent, The
Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the
Group’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties, A change in the business model occurs when the Group elther begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies finandial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which s the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change In business
madel. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (incduding impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Lass (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through
profit or |oss, Loss allowance for trade receivabies with no significant financing component Is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For
all other financial assets, expected credit Josses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from Initial recoanition, In which case those finencial assets are measured at lifetime ECL. The changes (incremental or

reversal) in |oss allowance computed using ECL model; are recognised as an impairment gain or ioss In the Statement of Profit and I,nss.._w
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2.17

B. Financial liabilities
Recognition and initial measurement

All financial liablilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, All financial
lizbilities are initially measured at fair value minus, in the case of financial liabilities not recorded at fair valua through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are atiributable to the liability.

Classification and subsequent measur t
Financial liabilitles are classified as measured at amortised cost or FYTPL.

A financial llabllity |s classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derlvative or it Is designated as-such on Initial recognition,
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interast expanse, are recagnised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Flnancial lizbilities other than classified as FUTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Interest
expense are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition Is also recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial liability when (ts contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire,

The Group also derecognises a financial liabllity when its terms are modified-and the cash flows under the modified Lerms are substantially
different, In this case, @ new financial liability basad on modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms Is recognised in the Staterent of Profit and Loss,

Offsatting of financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabllities are offset and the nek amount presented In the balancs sheat when, and only when, the Group currently
has & legally enforceable right toset off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to redlise the assets and settie the
labilities simultaneously,

C. Hybrid contracts

A hybrid contract Is-a financial instrument that contains both a non-derivative host contract and an embedded derivative. The non-derivative
host contract is classified as financlal liability and initially measured at fair value, Subsequent measurement of the financial liabllity Is dong In
accordance with Ind AS 109,

The derivatives embedded n a host contract that Is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Derlvatives embedded in all
other hosl conlract are separated only If the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the
economile characteristies and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss, Embedded derivatives clesely related to the
host contracts are not separated.

D. Deemad Capital Contribution

Deemed Capital Contribution has been recognised based on the cast of the pramium of the financial duarantee given by the Helding Company to
the lenders of the Company and Subsidiary Campany.

Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its equity shares,

Basic EPS Is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the C'ampany by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit or loss attributable to equity sharehoiders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion te
equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations, Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date, The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for
the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at falr value (he. average market value of the eutstanding shares), Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each periad presented, The number of equlty <hares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted for employee share options and bonus shares, if any, as appropriate.
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2.18 Current - non-current classification
All assets and liabllities are classified inta current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when It satisfies any of the following eriteria:

o it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal operating cycle;

s it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

e it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or

= itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a |iability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current,

Liabilities

A llability is classified as current when [t satisfies any of the fallowing criteria:

« it is expected ta be settled in the Group's normal operating cycle;

« iLis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

« it is due to be settied within 12 manths after the reporting period; er

« the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12 morniths after the reporting period.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current liabifities include the current portion of nan-current financial liabliities, All other liabilitiss are classified as nor-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Based on the
nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and thelr realisation In cash and cash equivalents, the Group
has :ascertained its operating cycle being & perlod of 12 months for the purpose of classification of assets and llabilities as current and non-
current.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques an hand and short-term deposlits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changas in value,

2.20 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using Indirect method, whereby Profit/(loss) after tax reported under Statement of Profit and loss is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recelpts or payments. The cash flows: from
aperating, investing and financing actlvities of the Group are segregated based on avallable Infarmation.

2.21 Expenditure
Expenses are-accoiunted for on the accrual basis and pravisions are made for all known losses and llabilities,

2,22 Segment reporting
The Group determines reportable segment based on information reported to the Chlef Operating Decision Maker {CoDM) for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segmental performance. The CODM evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on
an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. The accounting principles used In the preparation of the consglidated
financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in individual segrments.

2.23 Hofrowings
Borrowings are initlally recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference betwesn the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss over the
period of the borrowings.

Fees pald on the establishment of lean facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the lean to the extent that it is probable that some or alf
of tha facillty will be drawn down, In this case, the fee IS deferred until the draw down occurs, To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the Facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liguidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obllgation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any noncash assets transferrad or lizbilities assumed, is recegnised in Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains/(losses),

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liabllity as
current, If the fender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the consolidated financial statements fnr ii e, | ﬂOt to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach.
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2.24 Use of estimates and critical accounting judge 5

The preparation of consclidated financial statements In conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions: that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, Incame, expenses and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabllities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the years
presented. Actual results may differ from the estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date, Revislions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and future periods affected.,

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical Jjudgements |n applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements are included in the following notes:

Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment (*PPE') and Intangible assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of PPE and Intangible assets at the end of each reporting pericd, The factors
such as changes in the expected level of usage, technological developments and product life-cycle, could significantly impact the economic
useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation and amortisation charge could be revised and thereby
could have an impact on the profit of the future years.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the présent valle of the defined benefit obligation ("DBO’) are based on actuarial valvation using the
projected unit credit methad. An actuarial valuation Invelves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexitias invelvad in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.”

Income taxes

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax Iegislation; developments in case iaw and the patential outcomes of
tax audits and appeals which may be subject ta significant uncertainty.

Therefore, the actual resuits may vary from expectations resulting in adjustmeants to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax
settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Deferred income tax assets and liabllities

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the |evel of future taxable profits. The amount of total deferred tax assets could change If estimates of projected future taxable
income or If tax regulations undergo a change.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitles recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on guoted prices in
active markets, their falr value Is measured using valuation techniques Including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, The inputs ta these
madels are taken from observable markets where possibie, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values, Judgements include cansiderations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments, Refer Note 16 and 32 for further disclosures.

Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill with indefinite life are tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an Indication that the recoverable amount of a
cash generating unit is less than ks carrying amount based on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, future cash flaws
and economic conditions. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less
cost to sell, The goodwill impairment test Is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit which are benefiting from the synergies of the
scquisition and which represents the lowest level at which goodwill Is monitored for interrial management purposes. Market related infarmation
and estimates are used to determine the recaverable amount, Key assumptions on which management has based its determination of
recoverable amount Include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow
projections take into account past experience and represent management’s best estimate about future developments,

2.25 Appiicability of New and Revised Ind AS:

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corparate Affairs ("MCA"} through 3 notification, amended Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013, The

amendments revise Division 1, 11 and 111 of Schedule I and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division II which

relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are ;

Balance Sheat:

(2) Lease labllities should be separately disclosed under the head “financial liabilities”, duly distingulshed as current or ron-current,

(b} Certain additional disciosures in the statement of changes In equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and

restated balances at the beaglnning of the current reporting period.

(€) Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters,

g(:) hSp‘eclﬂed format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset under
velopment.

(&) Ifa company has not used funds for the specific purpose far which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of

details of where it has been used.

() Specific disclosure under “additional regulatory requirement” such as compliance with appraved schemes of arrangements, compliance wil

humber of layers of companies, title deeds of Immovable property not held in name of company, foans and advances to promoters, directors,

Key Managerlal Personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held ete.

Statement of profit and loss:

(3) Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed Income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the

head “additional Information” in the notes forming part of financial statements. )

(b) The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law,
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Gluhend India Private Limited

Mates rorming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amieunts are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3B Capital wotk in Progress{CWIP)

103

Busiidin Plant & Machinery Fum'llmg —— Total
Balance as at 1 Aprdl 2015 1212 8267 = 94,78
Additions 3,35 150.51 1.55 155 a1
Transfer to Property, plant and equipment {15.25) (154.60) (1.52) 1171.37)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 0,22 S8 .03 78.83
Additions 19.58. 6731 1.24 8B.13
Transfer to Property, piant and equipment [0.43) {106:24) (1.02) (10769}
Balance as at 31 March 2021 19.37 39,65 0.26 5938
3C Right-of-use assets (ROU Assets)
Particulars Asg at
31 March 2021
Carrying amounts of :
Buliding 64 38
Plant & Machinary 30.74
Leasehold land 421 03
Vehicle .07
Total 21,45
Building Plant & Machinery Vehicle Leasehald land Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2019 . = . =
Recognition on implementation of Ind AS 116 (Refer note 42) 84.89 - . 442,32 447.37
Additians * = - -
Disposals = & -
Translation difference 7.87 B 5 :
Balance as at 31 March 2020 22,76 E . 442.32 535.08
Additions 3667 707 7813
Dispiosals . 5
Translation difference {(313) - - (3.43)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 126,30 34.39 7.07 442,31 610.08
#cc_urnuiated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2019 - - - E
Depreciation expense 3314 - . 10 66 4380
Elimination on disposals of assets - - =
Trapslabian difference 1.64 -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 — 34.78 B - 108 45,44
Depreciation expense 29 00 4.00 1063 43.63
Eliminatian on disposals of assets: - . -
Translation difference (1.86) (0.35) . (2.21)
Balance as at 31 Marck 2021 61.92 3.65 . Z1.29 86.86
Carrying amaunt (net block)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 64.38 30.74 2.07 421.03 523.22
_Bnlance as at 31 March 2090 57.98 - - 431.66 A89.64
2020 - 2021
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Notes forming part of the c idated financial stat nts for the year anded 31 March 2021
{All amounts are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3D Goodwill

104

Particulars

As at As ag

— 31 March 2022 31 March 2020

Carrying amounts of :

Gabdwill 238127 2,388.38

Tatal 2,381.27 2,388.33
Particulars Amount
Goodwill as 3t 31 March 2019 2,370.24
Effect of foreign corremcy exchange differences 15,14
Goodwill as at 31 March 2020 2,388.38
Effect of foralgn currency exchange differences {7.11)
Goodwill as at 31 March 2021 2,381.27

Impairment assessment of goodwill as at 31 March 2021:
The Group hes three Cash Ganerating Unit {"CGUY) namely SMPL, Trident Compenents and Jayce Manufacturing CGUs,

The Group have performad annual impalrment assesement of the goodwlll by determining the "value In use” of the CGU as an aggregate of prasent value of cash flow
prajections cavering a five year period and the terminal value, Deterrrination of value in use invelves slanificant estimates end assumptions that affect the reporting CGU's

expected future cash flows. These estimates and aﬁ@jﬂﬁﬁfﬁ; primarly include, but are not limited to, the ravenue growth and prafitabliity during the forecast perlod, the
dissount rate and the terminal qrnwm Fate,

Based on the forward looking estimates, the cash Mows are- discounted Lging & post tax dllsﬂnugk rnte of 14.00% (Pravious year & 13, 00%) far SMFL CGU and 7.50%
(Previols year : 6.87%) for Trident Components and 7,50% (Previaus yeaf 6 8?% t'l!rjir(cp Ma.nd!'al:h;rlng CGUs The terminal value of cash generating unlt 1s arrlved at
by extrapolating cash fiows of latess forecasted year to perpetuity using a constant im'[g term growkh rate of Z:00% (Previous year | 4.00%) for 2l three CGUs which is
consistent with the induslry forecasts for the gensric bearing market. E)uanq the year ended 31 Mareh- 2071, the testing did not resuit in any impalrment in the carrying
amount of goodwill,

The management belisues that any reasonably pxsﬂi‘é éﬁsqgu in the ey assurmptions on vdﬂth “recoverable smount is based would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash-generating unik, Based on impairment testing as above, the management belisves that the recoverable
amounts of goodwill are higher than their respective carrylng amounts and fience no amounts are reguired (o be recorded for impalrment n Lthe carrying amourks of
goodwill
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Glubend India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the yoar ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounis are in Rs. Milllons, unless otherwise stated)

4  Other intanaible assets

Particulars As nt
E1 March 2021 31 March 2020

Carrvina value of :

#) Computer Scftware 3,85 5.67
1) Trademarks 30.33 42,95
©) Custemer Relatinnshlps 488.24 545.41
522.48 594.03
Particulars [+ tar F ble lease Trademarks Customer Tatal
Software assets Relationships

Gross carrying amount

Balance at 31 March 2019 7.26 453.50 52.52 550.12 1,063.40
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 . 453,50 - - 453,50
(Refer note 42)

Additions 1.94 - # - 1.94
Disposals 0.02 . 2 - 0.02
Translation difference 0,39 - 4.95 51.81 57.15
Balance at 31 March 2020 9.57 " 57.47 601.93 668.97
Additions 0.57 + - - 0.57
Disposals - - - - .
Translation cifference (0.16) - {1.94) {20.29) (22.39)
Balance at 31 March 2021 9.98 - 55.53 581,64 647,15
Accumulated amortisation

Balance at 31 March 2019 1.31 11.18 2.82 15.34 30.65
Reclassified ori account of sdoption of Ind AS 116 . 1118 : - 11.18
{Refer note 42)

Amartisation expense 246 - 10.68 37.59 50.73
Elimination on disposals of assats 0.01 - - - 0.01
Translation difference 0.14 - 1.02 3,59 4.75
Balance at 31 March 2020 3.90 - 14.52 56,52 74.94
Amartisetion expense 231 = 11.30 39.39 53.00
Elimination on disposals of assets - - - = -
Translation difference (0.08) . {0.68) (2.51) =327
Bajance at 31 March 2021 &.13 - 25.14 93.40 124.67
Carrying value (nat block)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 3.85 - 30.39 488.24 522.48
Balance as at 31 March 2020 5.67 - 42,95 545.41 594.03
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al amounts are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

106

Current tax liabilities
Provision for tax

Tatal

4TH ANNUAL REPORT

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
5 Investments
A. Unquoted investments in equity shares (all fully paid) of Subsidiary Company
Current
Investment in mutual funds (unquoted)
(Carriad at FVTPL)
Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Growth - Face value Rs. 10 per unit = 1.83
Nil units (As at 31 March 2020 : 100,000 units)
Total - 1.03
Aggregate value of guoted investment - i.03
Market value of quotad investmant - 1.03
6 Loans {Unsecured, considered good)
Non-current
Loan to employees 0.67 1.19
Total 0.67 1.18
Curtent
Loan to employees 5 W 2.53
Tatal 1,17 2.53
7 Other financial assets (Unsecured, considered good)
Non-curregnt
(a) Security deposits 30.78 26.31
(b) Deposits with bank with more than 12 months remaining maturity® - 1,11
(c) Interest accrued on deposits = 0.34
Total 30.78 27.76
* Includes deposits under lien as margin money against bank guarantees
Current
(a) Security deposits 0.35 1.04
(b} Interest accrued on deposits 0.08 0.D2
(c} Unbilled revenue - 0.08
(d) Other receivables 1.90 10.28
Total 2.33 11.42
8 Income tax
Non current tax assets
Advarice tax including tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax) 269.69 284.55
Total 289.69 284.55
———

2020 - 2021
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Notas forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(AN amounts are in Rs, Mlllians, unless_ yhemise sla_led)

Particulars

10

i1

ather assets {Unsacured, considered good, uniess otherwise stated})

Nap-gurrent

(a) Capital advances

(b} Balances with government authorities (Refar note (1) below)
(¢) Prepaid expenses

Total

Current

(a) Prepaid expenses

(b) Balances with govarnment authoritles (Rafar nate (1) below)
Less: Provision for doubtful balances

(c) Advances to suppliers

(d) Export banafit receivable

(&) Qther advances

(F) Right to return good assets {Refer note (i) belaw)
Total

As at
31 March 2021

47 .37
857.03
(5.38)

851.65

15.44
S91.57
5.13
9.97
1,021.13

107

As at
31 March 2020

25.81

158,37

15.64
70.35
5.67
1g.34
391,31

=

(i) Balances with government authorities represents, Goods and Sarvices Tax (GST) input credit receivable and GST refund receivable
aggregating to Rs. 851.65 {previous year: Rs. 408.09), net of provision for doubtful balances. in previous year GST refund recelvablc
amounting ta Rs. 158.37 was expected to be received after one year and was accordingly classified as nen cwrent and balance of
Re.255.10 being GST input credit recewable which was expected to be adjusted within ana yaar against future autput tax liability of the
Company was classified as current. For current year, the company expect to receive credit/utilige the entire GST balance within one year

and accordingly is classifed as current,

(i) The right to return goods asset represents the Company’s right to recover products from customers where cuslomers exercise their

right of return.

Inventaries

{a) Raw materials {Refer note 1{i} belaw]
{b) Work-in-progress

{¢) Fintshed goods (Refer note 1{)) below)
(d} Stock-in-trade (Refer note [(in) baiow)
(e} Stores, spares and tools

Total

Hotes:

1. Includes goods in transit.
(i} Raw materials

{ii} Finished goods

(i) Stocknin-trade

11. Cost of inventories recognised as expense during the year

Trade receivables

Cansidered good

(b) Considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful tragde receivables {expected credant 1bss allowance)

Tatal

4TH ANNUAL REPORT

281.58
200,52
825.07
413.87

52.00

1,603.04

11,13
484,49

2,574.73

298.18
280.11
390.6
385.67
64.3

1,409.97

10.38
310,54
12.80

3.182.83

828.45

B98.49

8,18
(8.18)

898.49

2020 - 2021
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Notes forming part of the consolldated Minancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

{All anounts are in Rs. Millions, uniess otherwise state_d )

12

13

Notes:

108

3) The average credit perlod on sale of goods is 0-90 days. No interest s chiarged on any overdue trade receivables,

b} In determining allowance for credit losses of trade receivables, the Group has used the practical expedient by computing the
expected credit joss allowance based on 3 provision matrix. The provision matrix takes inte account Ristorical credit loss experience
and is adjusted for forward looking infarmation. The expected credit loss allowance is based on ageing of the receivables and rates

used in the provision matrix.

The ageing analysis of the receivahles (gross of provision) after considening the credit period extended to customers is as under:

Particulars

Age of receivables

Within crealt peried

1 - 90 days past due

S0 - 180 days past due

Mare than 180 days past due

€) Movement in the expected credit loss allowance

Balance at the beginning of the year
Mavement in expected credit loss allawance
Balance at the end of the year

d} OF the trade receivables balance as at the year end, the Group's largest customers who
represents more than 10% of the total balance of trade receivables are as follows

{Refer nota 31(b}(v) and note 33)

Trade receivables
Customer &
Customer B
Customer C

e} Contract balances

Trade recevables (net balances)
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue}{Refzr note 7)

Contract llabilities (Rdvance from customers){Refer nate 19)

Cash and cash equivalents

(8) Cash on hangd
{b) Balances with banks
= In current accounts

Totsl

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

{&) In deposit accounts
- original maturity mare than 3 months
(b) [ earmarked accounts
- Balances held as margin money against guarantees

Total

4TH ANNUAL REPORT

As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

As at

573,81 731.66
159.78 129.76
21.40 4.93
__70.95 _40.32
825.94 206.67
8.18 4.33
1.03 3.85
9.21 8.18
86,72
83.24
49.37
21933 B
gl1.88 898 49
0.08
13,57 7.00
0.40 0.15
157.08 231.05
147.48 231.20
4.04 1,14
.30
N — L3
2020 - 2021
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Notes forming part of the consalidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021
{All amounts are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars

Asat
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

14 Equity share capital
Authorised shares capital (Refer Mote 16C);
35,692,264 {As at 31 March 2019: 34,373,038) equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights
Add: increase in authorised share capital{31 March 2020: 1,319,226 equity sﬁares of Rs. 10

each)
35,602,264 (As at 31 March 2020: 35,692,264) equity shares of Rs. 10 each with vating rights

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
35,692,264 (As at 31 March 2020: 35,692,264) equity shares of Rs, 10 each [Refere note 16(c)]

A Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting period ;

Balance as at 1st April 2019
Add: Tssue of shares (Refer note 16D)
Balance as at 31 March 2020

Add: Issue of shares
Balance as at 31 March 2021

B Terms and rights attached to equity shares

356.92 343,73
1319
356.92 356.92
356.92 356.62
356.92 356.92

Number of shares  Share capital
32,123,038 321.23
3,568,962 35.60
35,692,000 356.92
35,692,000 356.92

The Company. has only one class of equity shares having & par Value of Re. 10 per share. Each stla'rehulder Is eligible for one vote per share held and dividend as

and when declarad by the Company. Interim dividend is paid a5 and when declared by the Board. Final dividend Is paid after obtaining shareholder's approval, In
the event of liguidation of the Company, hulder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential

amount. The distribution will be in proportion ta the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

C Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder As at

31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Number of shares

Number of shares % holding

Fully paid equity shares with voting rights:

Pelos Sage Holdco Cooperatief U.A., the Holding Company (including 1 32,173,038 32,123,038 90%

share held by nominee)

Ramakrishnan Krishnan 3,569,226 3,569,226 10%
2020 - 2021
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts are in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

15 Other equity

(i'} Retzined earnings (2,111.19) {1,580.41)
{ii} Deemed contribution from parent company 114.91 75.00
{iii) Foreign currency translation reserve (16.46) (25.27)
Total (2,012.74) (1,530.68)
(i) Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,580,41) (858.30)
Add: Loss for the year (535.96) (722.98)
Add: Other comprehensive income / (loss) arising from remeasurement of 5.18 0.87
defined benefit obligation
Balance at the end of the year (2,111.19) (1,580.41)
(i1i) Deemed Equity
Balarice at the beginning of the year 75.00 36.54
Add: Expense recognised during the year 39.91 38.46
Balance at the end of the year 114.91 75.00
(iii) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year (25.27) (17.19)
Add: Other comprehensive loss arising from Foreign exchange translation 8.81 (8.08)
differances
Balance at the end of the year (16.46) (25.27)
Notes:
(a) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the undistributed profits of the Company.
(b) Deemed capital contribution
Delos Sage Holdco Cooperatief U.A (Holding Company) has given a financial guarantee for the Non-convertible Debentures
issued by the Company and financial guarantee for term loans taken by Sage International, Inc. (Subsidiary Company).
Deemed capital contribution of Rs, 114,91 (As at 31 March 2020 : Rs. 75.00) represents year till date cost of the premium
of the financial guarantee received by the Cornpany and the Subsidiary Company.
{c) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Represents exhange gain/(loss) arising on transalation of balances of foreign Subsidiary Company, which is not available for

distribution as dividend.
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Gluhend India Privote Limited
Notes formirg part of the eonsolidated financial statements far the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al amounts are in A= Millions, unless otherwize stated)

ulars R . h = As al Asat
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Pa

18  Compulserily convertible preference shares (ECPS)

Authorised share capital

Compulsorily eonvertible non-cumulative preference shares:

237,196,934 (As at 31 March 2020: 192,196,934) 0. 0001% Class A CCPS of Rs. 10 such 237197 1,921 97
845,547 (As 2t 31 March 20201 845,547) 0.0001% Ciass 8 CCPS ol Bs 10 each hully. paid up LET 846
4,146,147 (As at:31 March 20202 4,146,147} 0.00011% Class © COPS af Ry 140 each fully pald up 4148 41496
23,909,848 {As at 31 March 2020: 21,909,848) 0.000011% Class O CCPS of Rs, 10°each 219.10 219.10

T 2,640.9% 2,190.98
Issued and subscribed capltal

234,189 BOR (A 21 31 March 2020: 192,166,634) 0.0001% Chass A CCPS of A, 10 sach Fally paid up 2,341,940 1,521.97
B4E,547 (AS 3t 31 Morch 201%: 845,547) 0.0000% Class B CCPS of RS 10 each Tully paid up 848 $.46
4,146,147 (As 8l 31 March 2019; 4,196;147) 0.00011% Class € CCPS of Rs, 10 each fully paid up 4146 41 45
21,909,848 (As-at 31 March 2009: Nil) 0 0000315 Class DCCPS of Rs 10 sach Fully paid up 21910 219.10

2,610.92 2,190.99
Add;
Securities premium on issue of CCPS (Refer nole B below) 259 88 3228
(Galn)/Loss an fair valuation of derivative c 1 of CCPS rax insl ol profit and [15.00) izsion
{Refer note FLi) below)

2,855.80 2,548.27

A  Reconciliation of number of CCPS putstanding at the beginning and end of the reparting period
Humber of shares Amount

0.0001% Clags A CCPS
Bolonce a5 at 1 April 2019 192,196,934 1,921.47
Add; Issue of CEPS =
Bakance as at 31 March 2070 102,196,934 3,921.57

Agd: Jeue of COPS
Balance as at 31 March 2021

0.0001% Class B CCPS

Balance as at 4 April 2049 845,547 816
‘Add; Issug ol CCFS - -
Balance asat 31 March 2020 BA5;547 846
Add: Tssue of COPS

Balance as at 31 March 2021 B45,547 8.96
000011 % Clags C CCPS

Balance as at 1 April 2013 4,146,147 4196
Add: asue of CCPS

Balancs as at 31 March 2020 : 4,146,147 a1as
Add:issue ol CCPS

Balanece as nt 31 March 2021 T Aaaeamr
0.00001.1% Class D CCPS

Balance as at 1 April 2019 . )
Add: Issue of CORS (Reter note [ below) 21,909,818 219 10
Balones as at 31 March 2020 T 21,909848 21910
Add: Issue of COPS .

Balance as at 31 March 2021 21,909,848 219,20

B Details of shareholders holding morethan 5% of CEPSin the Company

Particulars Asal As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
NMumber of shares ® holding Humber af shares %o holding

0.0001% Class A CCPS
- Delos Sage Holdco Conperatiol U A, the Holding Company 234,189,696 100% 192,196,974 100%

2.0001% Class B CCPS
- ARILLE 845 547 100% 845,547 100%

800011 % Clwas'C CLPS
= Forlress Maelals LLC 4,145,147 1005 4,046,347 1005

D.000011%s Class D CCFS
- Ramakrishnan Kristinan 21,909,848 100% 21,909,848 100%

C Change in authorised share capital

i} Eptthe yoa
The Board of Directors of the Company In 1S meeting lield on 30 Seplember. 2020 approved Yha increase and reclassification of the authorised share capital of
the Company te Hs. 3128 26 The Increase and reclassification it authorised shars capital was approved by (he in lhe E ¥ General

Meeting of the Company held on T Octaber 2020 Pursuant (o the abave, the Company offered 5 rights issue of compulsarily convestible preference share
sapital to its Equity shareholders

Tha Bozrd of Directors of the Company in ils meeting held on 1 March, 021 approved the increase and reclassification of the authorised share e2pital of the
Company to Rs. 3276.26. The increase and reclassification in aulherised share wapital was approved by the shareholders in the Extraordinary Genaral Meeling
of the Carmpany hield on 5 March, 2021, Pursuas to the above, Lhe Company offered a nghts issue of compulsorily convertible prefarence share mpital 1o its
Eaqulty shareholders,

The revised authurised =quily 4o preference share capllal of e Company as-at 31 March 2021 isas under:

(3} 35,692,264 equity shares af Rs 10 each (Reler note 14)
(b} 237,196,934 Class A campulse rily converlible preference shares of Rs 10 each

{e) 845,547 Class B campuitsarily convertible prefercnce siares of Bs 10 each

Ad} 4,146,197 Class € comp ¥ Lunvertible pref e shares of Hs 10 each

(#):21,909 848 Class O compulyonly conve;hibie prelerence shares of Bs 10 each

48,035,119 Redemmable Optianally Convertdhis Prefitrenre’shares of fe 10 each [Reler note 17)
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{all amounts are in Rs. Millions; unless otherwise stated)

i)

112

Yenr anded 31 March 2020

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 1 Octaher 2019 spproved the increase and reclassification of the autharised

equity and preference share capital of the Company to Rs, 2,856,84, The increase and redassification in suthorised share capital was

appraved by the shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 19 October 7018, Pursuant to the change,

Equity Share capital has been increased and there 1s an increase/decrease and reclassification amang the various classes of preference

share capital, The revised authorised equity and preference share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2020 |s as under!

(a) 35,692,264 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (Refer note 14)

() 192,156,934 Class A compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs, 10 each

(c) 845,547 Class B compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each

(d) 4,146,147 Class C compulsarily convertible preference shares of Rs, 10 each

(e) 21,909,848 Class D compulsoniy convertible preference shares ol s, 10 each

(f) 30,893,134 Redeemable Optionally Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 10 each (Refer note 17)

Duting the current year, the Company has issued 41,992,764 shares of Class A CCPS at a premium of Rs. 5.42 per CCPS: In previous ver, the Company had issued
the fallawing securities to settle the consideration payable to erstwhile SMPL's shareholding arising out of merger/business combination

Particulars i Number of shares Face Value Amount

Equity shares 3,569,226 14 35.69
Class D CCPS 21,909,848 10 21510
Redeamable Optional Convertible Preference Shares (ROCPS) 28,035,419 10 28036
Total 535.15
Ef - Terms of Conversion

The Company entersd inte”an 'Framéwork Agreéement’ with Delos Sage Holdco Cooperatisf U'A, ARZ LLC, Fortress Metals LLC and Ramakrishnan Krishnan on 11
March 2018 which was amendad on 31 January 2020 o incerporate the terms of Class O CCPS and Redeemable Optionally Convertible Preference Shares {ROCFS).
The ‘amended and Restated Framework Agreement’ supersedes the eartier 'Framework Agreement” dated 11 March 2018 entered among the parties and govems the
rights and obligations, matters incidental to and connected with tha issvance of Compulsarily Convertible Preferénce Shares which are as follows:

Terms

Class A

Class B

Class C

|

Class D

(i) Term (Same for all classes of CCPS)

Unless converted in accordance with the Conversion clause (i} below, the term shall not exceed 15 years from Lhe

date of issuance thereol.

(i) Dividend

Man-cumulative 0.0001% p. a

Non-cumulative 0.0001%
p- a

Non-cumulative
0.00011% p- a.

{}li} Conversion

Tha Class A CCFPS shall be
converted Into equily shares at
the time of Liquidity Event,
Additionally, the Class A CCPS
may be convertible into equity
shares, at the eption of the
Board of the Company or at the
option of the halder thereof, at
any time prier to a Liquidity
Event. ' !

The Class B.CCPS shall be
converted into eguity
shares at the time of
Liguidity Event.

The Class € CCPS shall be
converted inte equity
shares st the time of
Liguidity Event.

{iv) Mo. of equity shares issuable upon
conversion ( 5ama for all classes of CCPS)

Nen-cumulative
0.000011% . a.

The Class D CCPS shall be
converted Into enuity
shares at the time of
Liguidity Event,

CCPS shall be convertible into the number of equity shares obtained by dividing {'x_}-.t?e _Sﬁ;;c_rlimo_n Price of CCPS
plus all unpaid dividend as of Lthe conversion date, by (y) the then prevalling Conversion Price of CCPS,

(%) Coversion price

"‘C‘;nversinn Price” with respeck to'Class A CCPS, Class B C-IEFSS‘ Class C CCPS or Class O CCRS, as ﬂﬂ‘.‘)it;:_r]_hl‘e,:r:Eu.n_s
the price at which such Shares are converted inte Equity Shares as deteyminect by the Board based on the then fair

market value of such Shares.

(vi) Automatic conversion l:S“a_l;h—ETBr at
classes of CCPS)

Any CCPS that has not been converted Into Equity Shares in accordance with above shall, if required under
Applicable Law, compulsorily convert inte Equity Shares an the 15th (fifteenth) anniversary of the date of Issuance

thereof

The key definitions and interpretalions of the ‘Framework Agreemient’ are as under:

a. 'GIPL Equity Securities' means equity shares, Class A CCPS, Class B CCPS, Class C CCPS and Class D CCPS,
b. 'Liguidity Event' means (a) an IPO, (b) Third Party Sale, (c) a Liguidation Event, or (d) any Other Liquidity Event:
c. 'Distributable Amounts' means the cash Lhat is distributable to the Shareholders pursuant to any Liguidity Event.

E2 - Distribution of Distributable Amounts post conversion to the holders of GIPL Equity Securities shall be as under

In case of a Liquicity Event that is nat an 1PO or 3 Liquidation Event, Distributable Amounts shall be distributed in the following manner;

Step 1: To the holders of Redeembale Uptionally Canvertibie Preference Shares (ROCPS), payment of any Agreed Return to the extent not aiready paid prior to such

Liguidity Event.

Step, 2! To the halders ui ROCPS, payment u[ the redemption or repurchase amount represented by the sggrégate face value of the sutstanding ROCES, to the
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Step 3: To the holders of all the GIPL Equity Securities; the Remaining Distributable Amounts ke the holders of all the GIPL Equity Securities on a Pro Bata Aasis up

to the following amounts:

- If the Liquidity Event eccurs grior to the fifth Annlversary of the Closing Date; thep an amount at least equal to the respective Investment Amount, or

- 1F the Liguidity Event occurs on or after the fifth Anniversary of the Closing Date, then the respective Investment Amount along with a minimum TRA of 15%.

(For the purposed of step 3 above,
to the Holders of ROCPS).

‘Remalning Distributable Amounts' means an amount equal to {3) the Distributable Amburits minus ( &) the amounts, if any, paid

Step 4: To holders of Class A CCPS, any taxes payable by holders of Class. A CCPS pursuant to the Transfer of Class A CCPS on the difference between (a) the DEHC
Investment Amaunt, and (y) the DSHC Investment Amount, s reduced to the extent of the Intermediate Payment Armournt.

Step 5: If the Distributable Profits |s sulficlent to provide the respactive Relevant Preferred Return to the holders of GIPL Equity Securities pursuant to the lollowing
distribution, then such Distributable Profits shall be distributed to the holders of GIPL Equity Securities in the following manner;

Liquidity Event ->

Before 5'" Anniversary
of Closing Date

After 5™ Anniversary of
Closing Date

Class B LCPS Remaing GIPL Equity Relevant preferred Relevant preferred

Securities holders return return

10%s 90% 2 times of invested Invested aimount plus IRR
armount ol 20%

15% B55% 2.5 times of invested | Invested amount plus IRR
‘amount of 20%

20% B0%o 3 times of invested Invested amount plus IHR
amount of 25%

= 25% = 75% 4 times of invested | Invested amount plus TRR
amount ar more of 32%

For the purposes of Step S above, 'Distributable Prafits' means an amount equal to

the amounts paid to the helders of GIPL Equity Securities.

(a} the Remaining Distributable Amounts minus (i)

Alter conversion of CCPS into equity shares, as agreed between the share-holders, the resulling equity shares allocated to the CCPS
holders will have differential rights and will be entitled to *Distributable Amounts” as specified (n D2 above. This will be notwithstanding

the number af ordinary shares allocated to them.

Carrying amount of financial liability and fair value of derivative component are set out below:

The Compulsory canversian of preference shares into equity shares of the Company as at conversion date has been treated as a financial liability and careied at
amorlised cost, as ther conversion will be In variable number of equity shares,

As per the 'Distribution of Distributable Amounts post conversion Lo the holders of GIPL Equity Securities' (Refer note F2 atove), the distributable amaunts at the
time of liquidity event (post conversion to equity shares) te the CCPS holders will be differeat fram the normal equity distribution Accordingly, the value allocated lo
CCPS aver and above their normal equity distribution is considered as \he smbedded derivative: component in the hybrid financial instrurnent. The ermbedded
derivative has been fair valued using Monte-Carlo simulation medel based on a Geomelric Brownian Motion function. The gainfloss arlsing on fair valuation of
derivative component has been charged to statement of profit and loss account, As enumerated below, fair value of derivative companent using Monte-Carlo

simulation madel as at 31 March 2021 Is Rs. (15.00) (As at 31 March 2020: Rs 325 00)

March 2020

CCPS Categories Class A T Class B Class € Class Total

Total fair value of CCPS. = 7,462.08 T 147558 T 20710 2,855.80
Less : Liability value (at amortised cost) 2,601.08 8.58 42.049 219,10 2,870.80
Fair value (Derivative component) as at 31 (139.00) 13g.00 (3.00) {12.00) (15.00)
March 2021

CCPS Categories Class A Class B Class C Class D Total

Tatal fair value of CCPS 2,083.55 185.58 45.04 T 2340 2,548.27
Less i Liability value (at amortised cost) 1;953.558 B8.58 42.04 219.10 2,223.27
Fair value (Derivative component) as at 31 i30.00 177.00 2.00 15.00 325.00

Subsequent events.

The Company on Novernber 9, 2021 (effective date) entered into a
Caonvertible Preference Shares (CCPS), As per the agreement the C

4TH ANNUAL REPORT
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"Confidential Settlement Agreement and Release Agreement” with holder of class B Compulsary
ompany would buy back the CCPS for a sum of US$30,000 (the "Buy back payment®).
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Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

17 Borrowings (al amortised cost)

Non-current
(a) 6,350, 12.90% Secured, Non-convertible Debentures of Rs. 450,000 each [As at 31 March . 283413
2020 ¢ 6,350 Non-convertible Debentures of Rs, 450,000 each] (Refer note A below)

(D) Term |oan from financial institutions (Refer note D below) . 1,199.43

(¢} Otherloans - vehicle loan 425

(Secured by hypothecation of wehicles and payable in 60 equal monthly installments.
Applicable rate of interest is B.51% to 9.50% per annum}

() 28,035,419, 15%, Secured, Redeamahble Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 : 280,36
each [As at 31 March-2020 : 28,035,419] [Refer note' B below and note 160}

Total . 4,318.18

Current

(a) 6,350, 12.90% Secured, Non-convertible Debentures of Rs. 450,000 each [As at 31 March 2.852.08

2020: 6,350 Mon-canvertible Debentures of Rs, 450,000 each] (Refer note A below)

(b} Loans repayable an demand (Refer note € Im!;m)

- From banks 341.54
(g} Other loans - Vehicle loan
(Secured by hypothecation of wehicles and payable in 60 equal monthly installments. 324
Applicable rate of interest |s 8.51% to 9.50% per annum})
(d) 28,035,419, 15%, Secured, Redeemabla O‘pt‘[:\il_'_la'ﬂ\] Convertible Preference Shares of Rs, 10 280.36
each [As at 31 March 2020 ; 28,035,419] [Refer note B below and note 1607 c
{) Term lgan from financial institutions (Refer note D helow) 1.460.19
Total o 4,595,87 341.54
Notes:
A Mon-convertible Debentures
6,350, 12 90% Mon-convertible Debentures of Rs; 450,000 each 2,857.50 2,857,50
Transachion cost - Opening balance (23:37). (37.64)
Add! Transaction cast amartised during the year 17.95 14.27
Clesing liability 2,852.08 2,834.13

Terms of Dehentures
{1) Debentures are secured by first ranking exclusive fixed charge on:

(a) all its present and future rights, title, Interest and benefit in all'and singular movable assets, including movable plant and machinery, spares, tools
and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles, other fixed assets, movable fixed assets and all other movable assets of the Company whether installed
ar not and whether affixed to thie earth ar not and whether lying loose in.cases or which are lying or are stored in or to be stored in or to be brought
upan any warehouses, stockyards and godewns of the Company or any of Lhe Company's sgents, Afliliales; associates or representatives or at varlous:
wiork sites orat any place or places; wherever else situated or wherever else the same may be, whether now belonging to or that may at any time
during the continuance of this Deed, balonging ta the Company and/or that may at piesent or hereaiter be held by any party anywhere Lo the order
and disposition of the Company, or in the course of transit or delivery, and all replacements thereal and additions thereof, whether by way of
substitution, replacement, conversion, realisation or otherwise, howsoever, tagether with all denefits, rights and incidentals attached therete which
are now or shall at any time hereafter be owned by the Company and all estate, right, title, interest, property, claims and demands, whatsoever, of
the ‘Company unto and upon the same;

() all intangible, tangible and current assets of the Company, both present and future, together with all rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims,
dernands and incidentals in them and attached thereto of the Cormpany;

() all present and future rights, litie, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever ol the Company in, to and under, the Share Purchase
Agreement to the fullest extent permitted vader Applicable Law and the termis of the Share Purchase Agreement,

(d} all its present and future rights, titles, interests, beneflts, claims, demands in the Account Assets; and

{e) all rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Company, whether presently in existence or acquired hereafter, in; to,
under andjor in respect of the Company Receivables, the profits of the Company, whether or not deposited in any Company Account (as maybe
retevant), the book debis of the Company, the opersting cash flows of the Company and all other commissions and revenues and cash of the
Company, both present and fulure,

excluding, in each case, the Escrow Account and any amount standing te the credit of the Escrow Account,

(i) The Debenturss are also guaranteed by the Helding Company {Delos Sage Holdeo L‘onperatiel' (V9.1

{iii} The debentures issued carried an interest rate of 12.90%. Further, all payments to be miade by the Company to the secured p_-arties. under the
debenture document shall be made free and clear of and without any tax deduction Qut of 12 90%, B.00%. shall be payable on a quarterly basis to
the lenders and the balance interest will be deferred and added back to principal amount on guarterly basis.

{iv) Debentures representing 10% of the face value amounting to Rs. 317.50 were redeemed on 12 Septemiber 2019 aleng with proportionate daferred
interect amount The balance principal amount along with deferred interest shall be redeemed on 30 June 2021 and accordingly are classified as
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(V)

Detenture Aedemption Reserve has not been created by the Company as the Company dogs not have zny profits during the carreat/previess period

(vi) Compliancewith Debt Covenants

{vii)

P

w

&

(%)

Ag per the Debenture Trust Deed and loan facility arrangement entered by the Subsidiary Comtpany (Rafer note © below), the Campsny. and Delos
Sage Holdoo Cooperatisf U A, (the "Parent”) are required to ensure the following financial covenants:

(a] the Ratio of Consolidated Net Debt to EBITDA aof the Cornpany as.on 31 March 2021, shall nat be graatér than the ratio 4.00:1. (As
o 31 March 2020 (e said ralio shall not be greater than the ratio 4.00: 17,

(b) The agyregate capitsl expenditure of the Cormpany alang with its subsidiary in respect of financial year énded 31 March 2021 shall
not exceed Rs 60.00 milllan. (far the financiat year ended 31 March 2020 the said expendituree shall not exceed Rs, 60,00 million)

The actual ratio of Consolidated MNet Debt to EBITDA of the Company as at 31 March, 2021 and 31 March 2020 exceeded the ratia a5 mentioned under
clause (a) above. Further, the actual consalidated capital expenditure far the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 exceed=d the amount as
mentioned under clause (b_) abuve. The same has resulted in breach of ‘financial covenams' as enumerated in Lhe Debenlure Trust Deed.

The lenders, in currert year, have agreed not té teke enforcement action due te breach of financial covenants. In previeus year, the lenders had
waived off the breach of ‘financial covenants' with respect to the excess of Consglidated Net Debi to EBITDA angd capital expenditure, Consequently
‘Event of Delault’ as mentioned in Debenture Trust Deed does not get triggered and the debenture facility will not be recalled,

Subsegquent events.

As per the Debenture agresment, NCD's [535@ 12,99 secured, Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 450,000 each] amounting to Rs. 2,852, a8 millions
and accrued interest of Rs, 525,42 millions as at 31 March 2021 respectively were due for re-payment on 30 June, 2021, The Company in September,
2021 has entered into a "Restricturing Term Sheet™ with Iﬁnaers wherein along with other changes / modifications from the original debenture
agreement, the malurity date of MCD's ‘has been extended to 30 Juns 2&]23, with no extension option. As-the Restructuring Term Sheel has been
sxecuted after the reporting period and before Lhe Bnancial statements are appmved for issue the sarme has been dassiligd as current financial
borrowings.

Ferms of Redeemable Optionally Convertibla Breference Shares (ROCPS)

The term of ROCPS shall not exceed 42 (forty-iwo] manths fram the Appainted Date 32 March 2018,

The ROCPS shall carry an annual dividend or simiijiar permissible returns In'such manner such that _Ea'_:'h ROCPS is entitled to get a return equal to @
15% interest on Lhé_ face value thereof. As at 31 March 2021, accrued Interest ameunting to Hs. 15ﬂ_.'51 and due on Oct. 2021 {5 classifizd as other
current financials Liabilities .

Redemplion Terms - ROCPS shall beé redeemed or repiirchased annually within 8 period of 42 (fortytwa) months from the Appointed Date, in such
manner as may be determined by the Company. From he first anfiversary of jssuance of the Final ROCPS, Final ROCPS shall be redeemed or
repurchased, in accardance with Applicable Law, aut ol the grofils of the Company annually in such manner Lhat the pringipal ameunt paid or payable
pursuant to such redemption or repurchase along with the Agreed Annual Return results in payment of a2 minimum of Rs. 50 million (on anannual
basis) to Ramkrishnan Krishnan,

‘Conversion Terms - All oulstanding RQCPS may be convedible into squity shares of the Company if determined by the Board of the Company at the

time of a Liquidity Event that occurs prior to the expiry of the term of the ROCPS; pr’ovlded howeyer, that such conversions shall not adversely. affect
any rights of the holders of ROCPS; provided, further, that such conversion shall take place at the then fair market value of the squity shares of the
Company as may be determined by the Board of the Cormnpany at such time.

Subcseguent events,

The Company subsequent to year end has started Lhe process of renegotiating / restructuring the terms of the RDCPS (including interest thereon) and
the ROCPS holder has confirmed that the amount of ROCPS will not be called for the next twelve months,

Loans repayable on demand

Loan is secured by First charge on the currenl assets of the Company present and fulure and second charge on lixed assets af the Company present

and future The loan is repgyablé on demiand and carries inlerest rate ol 6 10%

4TH ANNUAL REPORT 2020 - 2021



116

Gluhend India Privata Limited
Notes forming pact of the consulidated finencial statements far the year ended 31 March 2021
(AN amounts are In Rs. Millions, un) otherwise stated)

D 12% Loan Facility ) As at As at
71 March 2021 31 March 2020
Laan facilley 1, 463,20 21036
Transaction cost (3.01) (11.93)
Tataj - 1,480.19 1,199.43
On 10 Sepkember 2018, Sage International, Inc. ('SIT or 'Subsidiary Company’) entered into a facility Agreement with SANNE Agensynd 5.L4U (aering
@5 Agent and Security Agent for wiginal lenders), The facility agreement provided foi & sanctioned loan facility for an aggregate principal amount of
$20.00 million, which matures on 30 June 2021, As st 31 Mareh 2021, SIT has drawn $16.00 million (Rs. 1,170,56 million) [As &t 31 March 2024,
drawn $16.00 million (Rs. 1,211 .36 million)] out of the original principal amount sanctioned, SIs obligations under the facility agreamont are
secured by substantially all of its assers and guaranteed by the Company and the Hajding Company. The faciity agreement requires compliance with
certain financial and restrictive cavenants and lists out various events of default, Key finangial covenants include testing and compliance of prescrbed
falio of Consalidared Net Debt ta EBITDA of the Company Group (all as defined and set forth in the facility agresment) and caps on agqreqate (apieal
expendiwre of tha Company Group. (Refer note A(vi) above).The additional $4 Milllon is the laan taken from Delos Investment Fund 1, LP and a
Aromissory note datad 4 June, 2020 has been executed by SII in favour of Delos st an interest at a rate equal to 12,00% per annum (tha "Tntarest
Rata”). compounding annually
Borrowings outstanding under the facility agreement will bear cash interest rate of 5% and PIK interest {Ceferred intarest) rate of 7%, PIK Interest
shall be automatcally capitalized and shall be added to the outstanding principal amount of the Lgans on the 1ast day of each Interest Perind,
Particulars - As at Ag at
31 Merch 2021 31 March 2020
18 Provisions
Bon-current
Pravisian for employse benelhits
= Compensated abpsances 14.10
- Grotuity (Refer note 34} B 64,72
Total 78.52 _
Current
(a) Provision for employee benefics
- Comperisared absences 476
- Gratuity {Refor nots 34) 804
{b) Pravision for Onerous contraces (Refer rote Delow)
Total 13.80
Moke:
Provision for onerous coniracts
Opening balsnce 7931
Provision made dunng the year 78.34
Pravision settled during the year (74.31)
Closing Batance - 79.31

Provislen for oherous contracts represents excess of cost 85 estimated by tne mandgement expedied o be incurred 1o fulfill the obilgation under the sales
vrders over and above the contracted price, has Deen hralised and settied during FY 2021.Fravision for onerous contract crested in previous year was
settied during the vear.
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Pasticulars —— =S Ty
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

19 Other |iabilitias

Nop-cyrrent

Statutory dues payatle y - 50,83
Total - 50,93
Surrent

{3) Advances from custamers

(b) Statutory duzs payabilss

1) Refund llability for axpected salas retum (Rafer note Selow)
Total

Other current liabilities include refund llabllite ralating to customers nght to returnproducts. AU peint of £31€, a Fefund liability and a eorrespanding
adjustment ta revenus |8 reedgnised for those praducts cepected to be returnsd

20 Trade payables

(3] Dutstanding dues to Micro and small et erprises (Rafer nole 17) 297.89 298.68
{b) Outstonding dues of creditars other than micra enterpeises and smnll <iterpeiag 2 ] 796,33
Total 1,469.22  1,095,01
21 Other financial liabliitiss
Mop-current
{a) Interest accruad but nat due on Debentures and term loan {Refer aotes 174 and 170} 430.74
{b) Interest accrued but not due an ROCPS {Fefer note 178) 93 4
Total . 574,38
Currant
(a) Interest acerued buk not due on debentures and kerm Joan (Refer note [ 74 and 170} 755 86 15,33
(b) Interest accrued on trade payables S5.81 .70
(<) Payable for purchase of proparty, lant ang equpment o83 13,72
(d) Withheolding Tax payable 5204
(€] Liahllity for business acquisition {Comtingent consigaration) . 3o.00
(M Security deposits. 1.20 L.78
(q) Gther payables -t Q.36
{n] Payable for Bill giscounting 118,46 ‘
111 Intergst acerued but not dus on ROCPS (Refer note 178) 150.81 -
L ki l03 52 Za.90
E i i
2020 - 2021
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Particulars

For tha year
endead

31 March 2021

118

For_ thé year
ended
31 March 2020

22 Rewvenue from operations

(a) Sale of products
Sale of goods

(b} Sale of services
Job work services
Development charges

(c) Other operating revenue
Scrap sales
Export incentives

Total

4,457.61 5,620.92
374.90
1275 13.00
73.12 80.87
84,57 191,70
5,007.95 5,806,49

(i) Disaggregate revenue information

The Group disaggreg_atei:l the revénue based on geographical lecatigns @nd it is disclosed under note 33 "Segment Reporting”. Applying
the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for

contracts that have original expected duration of one year or less.

{ii} Trade receivables and Contract Balances

The Group classifies the right to consideration In exchange for deliverables as a trade recetvable. A recelvable is a right to consideration
that is' unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue are recognised at a poiat in time when the Group transfers control over the product

to the customer.

Trade receivables are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheel.

(7ii) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract prii:e for sale of goods :

Particulars

Year ended

31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Contract price
Adjustments for:
Discounts

Revenue from szle of goods

23 Cther income

{a) Interestincome from financial assets measured at amortised cast
- on bank deposits
- an security Depasit
- on loan to employees
(b) Profit on sale of Investment
{c) MNetgainan foreign currency transactions and translation
{d) Prefit on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment
{e) Gain on fair valuation of derivative component of CCPS (Refer nota 16)
(f) Miscellanegus income

Total

4,493 86 5,641.05
(36.25) (20.13)
4,457,61 5,620.92
.54 0.4
0.68 0.46
0,05 0.07
0,01
11.29 157.99
1.18
340.00 -
2.79 4.82
356.54 163.58
2020 - 2021
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Particulars

For the year
andad
31 March 2021

For the year
ended
31 March 2020

24 Cost of materials consumead

(a) Inventory at the beginning of the year
(b) Add : Purchases during the year*

{c) Less: Inventary at the end of the year
Total

* including job work charges
24A Purchase of stock=in-trade

(a) Purchase of Stock
Total

25 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and
work-in-progress

Inventory at beainning of the vesr

(a) Stock-in-trade
(b) Work-in-progress
(¢} Finlshed Goods

Inventories at the end of the vear
(a) Stock-in-trade

(b) Work-in-progress

{c) Finished goods

Net (increase) / decrease

26 Employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries, wages and bonus

(b) Contribution to provident Fund
(c) Gratuity expense (Refer note 34)
(d) Staff welfare expense

Total

27 Finance Costs

(a) Interest costs
~ Borrowings
- Lease liability

- Consideration payable to SMPL's shareholder arising out of business

comblination (Refer note 16D)

- Others
{b) Corparate guarantee premiuim expense
{c) Bl discounting charges
(d) Bank charges
Total

4TH ANNUAL REPORT

278.80 358,97
2,243.45 2:237.86
2,522.25 2,586.83
280.98 278,80
2,241.27 2,318.03
140.08 186.78
301.11 343.75
301.11 343.75
96.70 96.64
280.11 338.51
390.69 612.38
767.50 1,047,53
148.62 96.70
200.52 2B0.11
625.07 390.69
974.21 767.50
(206.71) 280.03
1,037.63 1,028.51
18.51 19.82
13.44 13.10
40.76 49.38
1,110.34 1,110.81
768.82 672.71
9,98 2.46
26.05
18,59 11.81
39.91 38.46
9.23 7.89
4.69 9.04
851.22 768.42

2020 - 2021
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Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 34) 181.97 314.25
{b) Depreciation on Right of use assets (Refer note 3C) 42.63 43,80
(c) Amortisation of other Intangible assets (Refer note'4) 53.00 50.73
Total 277.60 408.78

29 Other expenses

{a) Consumption of stores and spares 157.04 150.18
(b} Consumption of packing materials 82.02 90.84
{c) Power and fuel 187.53 200,10
(d} Rent (Refer note 42) 54.42 43.95
{e) Repairs and maintenance :
- Building 23.80 20.07
- Plant and machinary 66.68 F&57T
- QOthers 40.79 52.37
{Fy Rates and taxes 35.65 58.81
(g) Provision for enerous contrack (Refer note 18) - 7931
{h) Travelling and conveyance 10.08 26,56
(I} Leaal and professional fees 434.67 343.54
(i) Insurance 17.45 14 .08
(k) Freight 3BE.79 338.50
(1) Provision for balances with government authorities - 2.68
(m) Provision for doubtful trade receivables and advances (net) 5.88 2.69
(n) Bad debts/ advances written off 2.11 0.77
(o) Loss onsale/ disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.58 6.08
(p) Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR) expenditure (Refer note below) 0.15 0.69
() Loss on fair valuation of derivative component of CCPS (Refer note 16) - 130.00
{r) Change in fair value of contingent consideration 15.52
(s) Miscellaneaus expenses 27.57 35.67
Total 1,536.21 1,690.19
‘Mote:

The Company has spent Rs. 0.15 {previous year : Rs. 0.69) on CSR activities and the unspent CSR liability as at 31 March 2021 15 Rs.
34.48 (As at : Rs. 34.63). The unspent CSR liability represent those of erstwhile Sage Metals Put. Ltd. (SMPL) which got merged with the
company vide NCLT order dated 20 June 2019 with the appointed and effeclive date of 13 March 2018.

Expenditure on CSR
a Gross amount reguired to be spent by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021 is Rs. Nil {Previous year : Rs, Mil)

b: Amounk spent:

Particulars Paid (A) Yet to be paid (B) Total (A+B)

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(-) =) )
(i) On purposes cther than (i) above 0,15 : 015
(0:69) (0.69)
0.15 = 0.15
(D.69) - (0.69)

*Figures in brackel relares to previous period

c. Details of related party transactions:
- Contribution during the period ended 31 March 2021 is Rs: Nil (Previous year Rs. Mil)
- Payable 3s at 31 March 2021 s Rs. Nil (As-at 31 March 2020 Rs. Nil)

Q)
L *
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Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Peviod ended
31 March 2020

30 Income taxes
A Income tax recognised in profit and loss
(a) Current tax

In respect of current year
In respect of prier years

(b) Deferred tax [Refer note 30C)
In respect of current year
In respect of prior years

Total tax expense charged/(credited) in Statement of Profit and Loss

(c) The income tax expense for the year can ba reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Loss before tax
Income tax eéxpense calculated at 29.12% (Previous pericd : 29.12%)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in datermining taxable profit
Adjustrents recognised in the current year in refation to the current tax of prior years
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the deferred kax of prior years
Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change [n income tax rates
Effect of tax rate differences of subsidiary company cperating in other jurisdictions
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

B Income tax recognised in othar comprehensive income

Deferred tax [Refer note 30C]

Arising on Income and expenses recognised in other camprehenslve iIncome
~-Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation
- Foreign exchange translation differences

Total tax expense/{Income) recognised in othar comprehensive income

6,58 43,89
12.80 12.72
19.38 56.61
(229.97) (209.16)
- 25.59
(229,97) (183.57)
(210.59) (126.96)
(746.55) (B49.94)
(217.39) (247.50)
(21.59) 76,98
12.80 12,72
- 25.59
- (24.41)
15.59 29,66
(210.59) (126.96)
(2.13) (0.36)
(2.68) 2,48
(4.81) 2,10

Tax rate used for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 reconcillations above Is the corporate tax rate of 29.12% being the rate at which
tax is payable by corporate entities in India who have ot elected the lower tax rate gn taxable profits under the Indian tax law:
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30 Income Eaxes
€ Movemeant in defarrad tax

(i) For the yaar ended 31 March 2021

Particulars Opening Racog in gnised In Effect of Ciosing balance
Balance profit or loss Other foreign
charge/(credit) comprehensive exchange

charga/(cradit)  differences

Taw affect of ftems constituting deterred tox ablitles

Property, plant and equipment and other intanglble assets (215.77) (10.08) - {0.99) (204.70)
Boodwill (322,81) (322.81) x 2 1
(538.58) (332.89) - (0.99) (204.70)
Tax effuct of ltems constituting defemad tax assets
Provision for employee benefits 34,08 5.82 213 - 26,13
Business loss and unabsorbed depreciation 192.07 {150.03) . 537 335.73
Other iteims 335.46 247,13 .68 1.08 B4.57
561.61 102.92 4,81 7.48 846,43
Deferred tax assets / (liabilitles) (net) 23,03 (229.87) _4.81 6,46 241,73
Disclosed as!
Deferred tax assets. 202,51 276,56
Deferred tax lizbilities 179.48 34,83
Deferrad tax assets / (Habilities) (net) ' 23.03 241,73
(i1) For the year year 31 March 2020
Particulars P g ] din R din Effect of Closing balanca
Balance profit or loss Other foreign
charge/(credit) comprehansive exchange
' Income transiation

charge/(credit) differences

Tai effect o Rems constituting defarred tox Habitities

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels (268.89) (58.73) - 561 {215.77)
Goodwlll (261.58) 61,22 - - (322.81)
(530.48) 2.49 - 5.61 (538.58)
Tax effect of gems constituling deferred Lax pssets
Provigion for employer benefits 38.35 391 0.36 - 34,08
Business loss and unabserbed depreciation 207.92 26.88 - (11,03} 192.07
Other items 115,03 (216.85) {2.48) (1.12) 335.46
361.30 (186.06) (2.10) (12.15) §61.61
Daferrad tax assets / (liabilities) (net) (169.18) (183.57) (2.10) (6.54) 23,03
Disclosed as:
Defarrad tax assets 75,54 202.51
Deferred tax lisbilities 244.72 179.48
Deferred tax assets / (Habilities) (net) (168.18) 23.03

D. The Group does not have any unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits on which deferred tax asset is nat created,

B8 jering Goodwlll acquired frem business cambination is @ deprecisble assat under sdction 32 of the

E. Daferred tax expense for the previous year was

Income Tax Act, 1961. The Finance Bill 2021, ammended whera‘w no dnprer:fatiun an goodwill shall be allowable from April 2020 (le, financlal year 2020+ :1} Acmrdhgm

deferred tax |lability created in earlier y=ar has been reversed in current year.
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31

a)

Financial Instruments

Capital Management

The Company's management reviews the capital structure of the Group on periodical basis, As part of this review, the management considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group monitors the capital structure using gearing ratio which is determined as
the prapertion of net debt to total equity.

The cabil-.s_f structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in note 17 and offset by cash and bank balances In notes 12 and 13)
and total capital (including Compulsorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares) of the Group

The Group sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans.

The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation, non-current and current borrowings. The Group's policy Is to
use non-current and current borrowings to meet anticipated funding reguirements,

Geari ng ratio

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting perind was as follows

Particulars ‘As at As at
— 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Debt
Borrowings- non current (Refer note 17) 4,318,18
Borrowings- current (Refer note 17) 4,595.87 341.54
4,595.87 4,659.72
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 12) 147.48 231.20
Bank balances (Refer note 13) 4.0 1,44
151.48 232.64
Net debt 4,444,389 4,427.08
Total equity (1,655.82) (1,173.76)
Compulsorily Convertible Preference share capital (Refer note 16)* 2,855.80 2,548.27
Total capital 1,199.98 1,374.51
Net debt to equity ratio 370.37% 322.08%

* As CCPS will mandatorily be converted Inko equity shares, accordingly the same has been considered as part of total capital and not debt for the
purposes of camputation of net debt to equity ratio.
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31 Financial Instruments (cont'd.)
(b) Risk management frameworl
The Group Is exposed to market risk (Including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The objective of the Group's risk manpagement framewaork is to marage the above risks and aims to
- improve financial risk awareness and risk transparency

- Identify, control and monitor key risks

- provide management with reliable information on the Company's risk exposure

- improve financial returns

(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Fair value of financial instrument will Muctuate because of change in market price. Market risk comprises of - Interest risk, forelgn
currency, other price risk (such as equity price risk) and credit risk,

The Group's activities expose it primarily to interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk. The financial Instruments affected by
market risk includes : Fixed deposits, current Investments, borrowings and other current financial liabilities.

(it} Liquidity risk
The Group requires funds both far short-term operational needs as we!l as for long-term Investment needs.
The Group remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening the balance sheet, The maturity profile of the

Group's financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of balance sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The figures
reflect the contractual undiseounted cash obligation of the Group.

As at 31 March 2021

=1 year 1-3 Years >3 Years Total
Non current
- Lease liability 67.74 67.74
Current
- Borrowings 4,595.87 . . 4,5895.87
- Lease liability ‘32,53 - - 32,53
- Trade payahles 1,469,232 . 1,469,22
- Other financial liabilities 1,093.52 * 1,093.52
Total 7,191.149 67.74 - 7,258.88

The Company has access to fund based facilities of Rs. 350.00, out of which Rs. 350 00 were undrawn as al 31 March 2021, Also refer note 17(A)(vil) and
17(B){v) w.rt restructuring of debentures and extention of ROCPS,

As at 31 March 2020

<1 year 1-3 Years >3 Years Total

mNoen current -
- Borrowings 4,314.18 4,318.18
- Lease liability . 19,87 19.87
- Other financial liabilities . 524.38 X 524.38

Current
- Borrowings 341.54 . . 341.54
- Lease liability 28,93 - 28,93
- Trade payables 1,095.01 - 1,095.01
- Other financial liabilities 72,90 = - 72.90

Total 1,538.38 ~ 4,862.43 = 6,400.81

The Company has access te fund based facilities of Rs. 350.00, cut of which Rs. B.46 were undrawn as at 31 March 2020,
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(ili) Farelgncurrency rigk

Foreign exchange risk comprises of risk that may arise to the Group because of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates may have an Impact on the Statement of Profit and Lass, As at the year end, the Group was exposed to forelgn exchange risk arising from fareign

currency payables and receivables.

The carrying amounts of the Group foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:!

Particulars

Trade receivables

Trade payables

Borrowings (include accrued Interest)

* Amount less than Rs. 0.01 millian

currency

usD
Equivalent INR

usp
Equivalent INR

usp
Equivalent INR

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets Financial liabilities Financial assets Financial liabilities
4,13 - 7.46 -
303,52 = 564,27 -

Note: the above fareign currency recelvable & payable were unhedged as at year end.

0.75
55.25

23,90
1,464.87

0.0
0.30

17.31
1,310.44

The results of Group’s aperations may be affected by fluctuations in the exchange rates between the Indian Rupee against the US dollar, The foreign exchange
rate sensitivity is calculated by the aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure with a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift In the

currencies by 1% against the functional currency of the Group,

For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, every 100 basis points depreciation/ appreciation in the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and U.5,
dollar will decrease/increase the Group's losses before tax by Rs. 2.48 (31 March 2020 : Rs. 5.63).

() Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interesl rate risk on current and non-current borrowings and fixed deposits outstanding as at the year end, The Group's policy is to
maintain a balance of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings and the proportion of fixed and floating rate debt Is determined by current market interest rates,
The borrowings of the Group are principally denominated in Indian Rupees. The US dollar detit representing the buyers credit facllity availed by the Company is
composite of fixed and floating rates (linked to US dollar LIBOR). These exposures are reviewed by appropriate levels of management on @ monthly basis. The
Group Invests In fixed deposits to achieve the Group's goal of maintaining liquidity, carrying manageable risk and achieving satisfactory returns.

The exposure of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021 to interest rate risk is as follows:

Current
- Borrowings

= Flxed deposits

Welghted average (nLerest rate (Der annum)
Loans repayable on demand
Term loan facllity
Debenutres

ROCPS

4TH ANNUAL REPORT

Floating rate Fixed rate Total
- 4,595.87 4,595.87
- 4,595.87 4,595.87
4.00 - 4.00
Floating rate Flxed rate
6.10% -
- 12.00%
- 12,90%
- 15.00%
e
fox e
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(v)

(vi)

Tha axposure of the Group’s financial llakilities as at 31 March 2020 to interest rate risk is as follows:

Floating rate Fixed rate Total
Non current
Borrowings = 4,318.18 4 31B.18
Current
Borrowings* 341.54 - 341.54
341.54 4,318.18 4,659.72
Fixed deposits - 225 - 2,25
Welghted average interes) rate (per anpum) Fioating rate Fixed rate
Leans repayable on demand 6.10% -
Term loan facillty = 12.00%
Debenutres o 12.90%
ROCPS 15.00%

* including current maturities of long term bonu"winns
Interest rate sensitivity analysis on borrowings:

If interest rates had been 100 basis polnts higher/lower and all cther variables were held constant, the Group's losses before tax for the year ended 31 March
2021 would increase/decrease by Rs. 45.96 (Period ended 31 March 2020+ Rs. 46.60). This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its
variable rake borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis on fixed deposits:

If interest rates had bean 100 basis points higher/lower and all other varlables were held constant, the Group's losses before tax for the year ended 31 March
2021 would decreasefincrease by Rs. 0.04 (Perlod ended 31 March 2020: Rs. 0.02), This Is mainly attributable ta the Group’s exposure to Interest rates on its
variable rate borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group was exposed to price risks arising from fair valuation of Group's Investment In mutual funds. The Investments In mutual fund were held far short term
purposes. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting year,

If prices had been 100 basis points higher/lower, loss before tax for the year ended 31 March 2021 would decrease/increase by Rs. Nil (for the period ended 31
March 2020: Rs. 0.01) as a result of the changes in falr value of these investments which have been designated as at FVTPL.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that & counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group's exposure to credit
risk primarily arises from trade receivables, balances with banks and security depesits. The credit risk on bank balances s limited because the counterparties are
hanks with good credit ratings, Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of
accounts receivable. The Group's policles on assessing expected credit losses is detailed In notes to accounting policies (Refar nota 2.16). For detalls of exposure,
default grading and expected credit loss as on the reporting year [Refer note 11(b)].

Apart from the customers as disclosed In note 11(d), the Group does not have significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty. Concentration of credit
risk as specified in note 11({d} did nok exceed 50% of gross monetary asgets at the end of reporting period.
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32

Fair value measurement

(a) The following tables presents the carrying value and fair value of sach category of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March

2020:
As at 31 March 2021
Financial assets Measured at Measured at Measured at Tatal carrying
amortised cost FVTOCI FVTPL value
Cash and cash equivalents 147.48 - - 147 .48
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4,00 = 4,00
Trade receivables B811.88 - - B11.88
Loans - current 117 = = 1,17
Loans - non-current 0.67 - 0,67
Other financial assets - non-current 30.78. - 30,78
Other financial assets - current 2.33 - 2,33
998.31 - - 298.31
Financial liabilities Measured at Measured at Measured at  Total carrying
amortised cost FVTOCI FVTPL value
Compulsorily convertible preference shares - 2,855.80 2,855,80
Borrowlings - current 4,595.87 4,595.87
Lease liability - non-current 67.79 . 67.74
Lease liability - current 32,53 - 32.53
Trade payables 1,469,232 1,469.22
Other financial fiabilities - non-current - -
Other financial liabilities - current 1,093,52 - s 1,093,52
7,258.88 - 2,855.80 10,114.68
As at 31 March 2020
Financial assets Measured at Measured at Measured at Total carrying
amortised cost FVTOCK FVTPL value
Cash and cash equivalents 231.20 - 231.20
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1.44 - 144
Trade receivables B898.49 = 898.49
Loans - current 2,53 - 2.53
Loans - non-current 1.19 - 1.19
Investments in mutual funds - - 1.03 1.03
Other financial assets - non-current 27.76 - 27.76
Other financial assets - current 11.42 - - 11.92
1,174.03 - 1.03 1,175.06
Financial Habilities Measured at Measured at Measured at  Total carrying
amortised cost FVTOCK FVTPL vailue
Compulsorily convertible preference shares - - 2,548.27 2,548.27
Borrewlngs - non-current 4,318.18 4,318,182
Barrowings - current 341.54 - - 341.54
Lease liability - noni-current 19.87 - = 19.87
Lease liability - current 28.93 - % 28.93
Trade payables 1,095.01 - - 1,095,01
Other financial liabilities - non current 524.38 - - 524.38
Other financial liabilities - current 72.90 - - 72,90
6,400.81 - 2,548.27 B,949.08

Carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities are approximation of their respective fair values.
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(b) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial Instruments that are {a) recognised and
measured at falr value and (b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an Indlcation
about the refiability of the inputs used in determining falr value; the Group has classifled its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under
the accounting standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quotad prices, This includes listed equity Instruments that have quoted price.
The fair value of all equity Instruments which are traded In the stock exchanges Is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Lewvel 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an Instrument are
observable, the instrument is Included in level 2,

Level 3: If ane or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securitizs, security deposits included in level 3.

Particulars Level As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Financial assets
Investments in mutual funds Level 2 - 1.03

Financial liabilities
Compulsorily convertible preference shares Level 3 2,855.80 2,548.27

Notes:

(1) Fair value of unguoted mutual funds is based of Net Assets Value (NAV) at the reporting date.

(ii) Fair value of the CCPS Is estimated based on discounted cash flow projections using Monte-Carlo simulation mode! based on a Geomatric Brownlan
Motion function.

kay inputs for the level 3 financial liabllities as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are (I} Discount rate (WACC), (1i) Growth rate for long term cash
flaw projectians, (ili) Future cesh flow projections and (iv) Volatility.
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33

Segment reporting

The Group Is principally engaged in the business of manufacturing of electrical wiring accessorles and fittings. The Board of Directors of the
Company, which has been identified as being the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM), evaluates the Company's performance, allocates
resources based on the analysls of various performance indicators of the Group ‘s a single unit, Therefore, there Is no reportable segment for
the Group, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - ‘Operating Segments Reporting' notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

a. Geographical Segments

The Company Is domiclled in India. The amount of its revenue from operations fram éxternal customers broken dewn by location of customers
is stated below:

For the year ended For the year

31 March 2021 ended
31 March 2020
India 225.84 243.61
Outside India 4,782,11 5,662.88
Total 5,007.95 5,906.49
b. Information regarding geographical non-current assets* is as follows:
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
India 3,580.47 3,673.34
Outside India 1,170.66 B822.75
Total 4,751.13 4,496.09
* Non-current assets exclude non current-financial assets and non-current tax assets (net).
€. Customers contributing to more than 10% of revenue :
Particulars For the year ended For the year
31 March 2021 ended

31 March 2020

Customer A 33170 465,54
Customer B 273,93 447.44

There are no other customer who contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue individually.
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34 Employee benefit plans

(i)

(i)

a)

Defined contribution plans
The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifiing employees, The Company's

contribution to the employees provident fund Is deposited with the regional provident fund commissioner, Under the scheme, tha Company s required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scherme ta fund the benefits.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs, 18.51 milllon (Previous year | Rs. 19.82 million) for prevident fund.
Defined benefit plans

Gratuity plan

Gratulty labifity arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation, and death of an employee, The aforesaid liabillty is calculated on the basis of 15 days
salary (l.e. last drawn salary plus dearness allowance) for each completed year of service or part thereof In excess of & months, subject to a maximum
of Rs. 2.00, Vesting occurs upon completion of 5 years of service,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost are measured using the Projected Unit Cradit method with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date,

The gratuity plan typlcally exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liabllity; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in
the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk The prese_n_i:_ value of the defined benefit p!an'lla!'_:liitir" |s calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of
plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan’s liability,

Salary inflation risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabllity is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants.
As such, an increase In the salary of the plan participents will increase the plan's liability.

in respect of the plan in India, the most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at 31 March
2021 by Willis Towers Watsan, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of Indla. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current
service costand past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method,

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

Particulars Valuations
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Discount rate(s) 6.70% 7.60%
Expected rate(s) of salary Increase 8.00% B.00%
Retirement age (years) 58 58
Mortality Table Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Martality Lives Mortality
2006-08 2006-08

Withdrawal rates In% In %
20 years to 24 years 5.00 5.00

25 years to 29 years 3.00 3.00

30 years to 34 years 2.00 2.00

35 years to 49 years 1.00 1.00

50 years to 54 years 2.00 2.00

55 years ta 58 years 3.00 3.00

The following tables set cut the unfunded status of the defined benefit scheme and amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020:
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b

£}

d)

e)

q)

h} The estimates of future salary increases considered takes ints account the inflation, seniority,

i} The grataut

1 Amaunts recognised (n Stalement of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follews:

Particulars For the year

ended
31 March 2021

For the year
ended
31 March 2020

Service cost
= Current service cost

754 .56
Met interest expense 5.50 6.54
Components of defined benefit costs recoanised in profit or loss 13.49 13.10
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability
- Actuarial {gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions . 5.03
Actuarial {gains) / losses arising from experience adjustments (7.31) (6.25)
Companents of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (7.31) (1.23)
Total 6.13 11.87

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans |5 as follows.

Particulars Asat

31 March 2020

31 March 2021

Present value of defined henefit obligation
Net liability arising fram defined benefit obligation

7376
73.76

96.76
'96.76

Movement of defined benefit oblination:
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit abligation over the year are as follows:

Particulars For the year

ended
31 March 2020

Far the year
ended
31 March 2021

Qoening defined benefit obligation

%9.76 91.76
Currenl service cost 7.94 B.56
Interest cost 5.50 6.54
Remensurement (gains)/losses:
- Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments = 5.0
- Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from) experience adiustments (7:31) (6.25)
Benefits paid (29.14) (6.87)
Clasing defined benafit obligation 73.76 96.76
Current portion of the above [ 30 96
= Non current portion of the above Bl f2 6580

Sensitivity analysis

Signifcant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mort
analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
while halding all other assumptions constant.

ality. The_s_enﬁixiv"lty
the respective assurnptions occuriing at the end of the feporting poriad,

i) 1 the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs 6.95 (increase by Rs. §.24) [Previtus
year o decrease by Rs. 7.00 (increase by Rs. 8.29)]
i) If the expected salary growth decreases (Increases) by 1.00

Ya, the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs, 594 (increase by Bs: 8.05)
[Previous year : decrease by Rs: 6.37 (increase by Rs, 8.10)]

i} 1f the withdraw! rate decreases {increases) by 1,00%, the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs 9:32 (increase by Rs. 8.29

1 [Previgus
year ; decrease by Rs: 9.14 (increase by Rs. B.14)]

The sensitivity analysis presente

; d above may not be representative of the actual thange in the defined benefit alilioation as it is unlikely that the change
in assumptions would occur in is

clation of one another as same of the assumptions may be correlated.
The average duration of the benefit obiigation represents average duration for active members at 31 March 2021: 10 years {Previous period : 8 years).

Tha disedunt rate is generally

based upan the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a ferm that matches that of the
Immbilities,

promotion and other relevant factors.

phan is unfunded




132

Gluhend India Private Limited
Motes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All ameunts are in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

25  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts For which there were any material foreseeable losses.

36  There weare no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

37 Disclosures under Micro; Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)

The Ministry of Micrn, Small and Medium Enterprises had jssued an Offlce Memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondenca with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated alter filing of the
Memarandum. Based an information received and available with the Company, there are no amounts paysble te Micre and Small Enterprises as at 31
March 2021 except as follows ;-

5 |Particulars As at As at
No. 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

1 |The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
accounting year.

- Principal amaunt 297.89 298.68
- Interest thereon 231.57 270
2 |The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16, of the Micro Small and Medium 0.92

Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier|
beyond the appointed day during the year

3 |The amount of interest due and payable fur I:he period of delay in making payment (which have > -
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the yesr) but without adding the interest
specified. under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

4 |The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the-end of ach accounting year, and 231.57 2.70

5 |The amaunt of Turther interest remaining duerand payable even in the succeeding years; until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extenl such parties have been identified on the basis of infermation collected by the
Management. This has been relied upen by the auditors.

38 Related party disclosures

1. List of related parties

a. Ultimate Holding Entity
Pelos Investment Fund 11, LP

b. Holding Company
Delos Sage Holden Cooperatief U.A

c. Firm exercising significant influence on the Group
ARZ LLC

d. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Vatzal Manoi Solanki {upte 31 March 2021) - Managing Director
Madhur Angja (w.e.f 25 February 2021) CEQ.

Michae! Rakiter Director

Sanjay Kumar Sanghoee Director

Matthew Constantine Director

Satsh Kumar Rustgi Director

Pratibhia Priya Mysore Raghuveer (from 1 June 2020 to 31 March 2021) Director

isha Gupta Company Secretary
Sandeep Chotia (w.e.f. 1 August 2020) Chief Financial Officer
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38 Related party discl -
{Flgures in brackets relate to previous period)
Particulars Helding Firm exerclsing Elp Management Grand total
Company significant Personnal (KMP)
influence on tho
Group
I1I. Transactions/ tanding bal. with related parties during the year
A, Transactions during tha year
I. Tssue of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Class A 647.53 . - 647.53
) (=) ] r
li, 1ssue of Cempulsary Convertible Freference Shares - Class B = . - -
) (=) 15 =
{ii. Corporate guarantee commission expense 39.9_1 . . 39,91
(3B.48) (-} (6] (38.46)
Iv, Loss on fair vaiue of derivative instruments (Refer nate 18) = . = -
(129.00) (-} {-} (129,00)
v. Gain on fair value of derivative instruments (Refer note 16) 270.00 38.00 - 308.00
= (=17) {) (-17)
vi; Legal and professional fees - 53.65 - 53.65
7 (81,18) - (81.19)
vil, Remuneration paid
Vatsal Mang) Solanki - - 1.32 1.32
) ) (1.32) (1.32)
Satish Kumar Rustgi = = 4,09 4,09
=) ) (2.05) (205}
Rupal Jain S = . 5
=) {=) (0,08} (0.04}
Isha Gupta = - .82 0.62
) -} {0.46) (0.48)
Shashi Kumar Nayar - 2 = x
) (-} {4.01) (4.01)
Suraj Jaiswal - - - -
=) () (0.34) (0.34)
Sandesp Kumar Chotla - - 5.92 5.92
(=) -} - (-
Madhur Angja - - 1.76 1.76
) () Q] i)
Total - B 13,74 13.71
(= (-1 (B.21) (B.21)
B. Outstanding balances at year and
I. Equity share capital is6.9z2 5 - 356,92
(356.92) <) (-} (321.23)
i Compuisory converiible preferance shares - class A 2,462,08 - . 2,462.08
(2,083.55) =3 (3 (2,083.55)
ill. Compuisory convertible preference shares - class B - 147.58 - 147,58
(5] (185.58) (-} (185,58)
Iv. Trade payables - 4223 - 42,23
(&) (0.40) (5] (0.40)

V. Debentures lssued amounting to Rs. 2,857.50 (Previous year : Rs. 2,857.50) are also guaranteed by the Holding Company (Delus Sege Holdco Cooperatief U.A.)
(Refer nota 17}

vi The Company and the Holding Company had granted a cofporate guarantee of US $20.00 mililon for 2 term loan taken from lenders by wholly ownad Subsidiary
Company, Sage International Inc., USA. As at 31 March 2021, S1I has drawn $16.00 million (Rs. 1,170.56 milllon) [As at 31 March 2020, drawn $16.00 milfion
(Rs. 1,211.36 million)] out af the original principal amount sanctioned,
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39 The Group had closed all its manufacturing plants and offices with effect from 24 March 2020 following countrywide lockdown due to Covid-
19, Subsequently, the Group has gradually resumed its operations across all the plants adhering to the safety norms prescribed by the
Government of India.

The Group has assessed the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on Its business operations and has considered relevant internal and external
information avallable up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, in determination of the recoverability and carrying
value of property, plant and equipment, goodwill, Inventories, and trade receivables, Based on current estimates, the Group expects the
carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. Further, the management of the Company believes that there may not be significant
impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the financial position and performance of the Group, In the long-term. The Group will continue to monitor
any material changes to future economic conditions.

40 Commitments

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 5.18 17.57
provided for (net of advances)

41 Contingent liabilities

a. Claims against the Company dlisputed and not acknowledged as debts: 0.59 (31 March 2020- 1.08)

b. Contribution to provident fund under the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous provisions Act, 1952

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, there are various interpretation issues and thus management is in the process of
evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgement in relation to non-exciusion of certain allawances from the definition of *basic
wages” of the relevant employees for the purpose of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees Provident Fund &
Miscellaneous provisions Act, 1952. Pending Issuance of guidelines by the regulatory authorities on the application of this ruling, the Impact
on the Company, If any, can not be ascertalned.

¢. Claims towards non-compliances with laws and regulations, the amounts for which iz presently unascertainable. (Refer nota 45 and 46)
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az

)

(i)

Leasas

Effective 1 April 20019, the Group has adopted Ind AS 118 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2009 wsing the
modified retrasgective method by recognising a lease lability at the date of Initial application ot the present walue of the remaining lesse payments,
discounted wsing the Group's incremenlal borrowing rale and recognising a Right-of-use assels 2t @an @anount gqual Lo the fgase Mabllity, adlusteg hy the
amount of any prepaid or accrued |[Ease payments relating to that lease recagnised in the balance sheet immediately before the date of (nitial application
Comparatives as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019 have nat been retrespectively adjusied and therefore will continie to be reported Under the
accounting pollcies included 55 pare of the consaolldated financlal staterments for the year ended 31 March 2019,

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted | recednition of *Right-of-use assets’ of Rs. 527 21 fram the reclassification of favourable lease

assetz under othar intangible assets and recogition of "Rigt -of-Use assals and lease Eabiftiss of Rs £9. 14 {rom kases which ware aarlier classified as
‘operating lzases’ under the principles of Ind A5 17, Leases,

The following is the summary of practica| avpediants alectad on initial application:

(3} Applied a single Mscount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assats in sfmilar economic envirgnment with 3 similar end date:

(b} Relying on previous assessments on whether (eases are onerous as an alternative Lo performing an Inipsinmert review - there were ro onergus
tontracts as at 1 spnl 2019

(¢} Applled the exemption act to recagnise right-of Use aasels and llabllities for Icases with less than 12 months of lease term on Lhe date of initial
application.

(d)  Ewcluded the inltial direct casts from the messyrement of kha right-of-use asset at the gate of initial application,
ey Jsing hingsight in determining the lease term where the contract containg oplions to sxtend or terminate the ease
The Group has also elected not to reassess whether 8 contract |5, or contains a lease at the date of Inikial application. Insteacd, for contracts entered into

before ktha transitlon date the Group relied an its assesement mads applying Ind AS 17 zrd Appendix C to Ind AS 17, Determlning whether an
Arrangement contains o Lease,

Extension and termination options

Exmension and tecmination options are |ncluded in a number of proparty ana equipment leases acress the Company. These are used [ maximise
opergtional Aexibilily in terms of managing the assets uded in the Company’s operations,

The majorily of extensian and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and nol hy the respective lessor,

value g T
Ta optimise lease costs during the contract period, the Group may sometimes povide residual valve quaiantens in relation Lo property leases, There was
no Impact, in respect thereof on the financlal staternents.

Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended:

ROU assests are amortised on straight line basis over the jgass term. Lease term is 3-5 years. The aggregate depreeciation expense on ROU sssels is
included undel degreciaticn sxpense |n the Statement of Profit and Loss:
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(it}

(v}

{w)

(i)

Mowement in lease Hablltiss:

136

Yearended  Year ended
Partlculars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Batance as at 1 April 48,80 -
Transition impact of Ind AS 116 - 7660
Additions: 85.49 .
Finance costs acerued durlng the perlod 10.03 2.46
Payment of lease liabllities (3513) (30.26)
Adjustment on account of change In present Value factor (7.52)
Forex movement (1.40) -
Balance as at 31 March 100,27 48,80
Braak-up of current and non-current lease Habllitias;

’ Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Currant 32.53 28.33
MNon ~ current 67.74 19,87
Balance as at 31 March 100.27 48.80
Contractuai maturities of lensa llabilities on #n undiscounted basis:

Partlculars Yanr ended Yaar anded

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Less than one year 32.53 28.93
One to five years 67.74 19,87

More than five years

The Group does not fzez a significant liquidity Hsk with regard to (ts lease liabllitles as the current assets are sufficlent to meet the obligations related to

lease liabilities as and when they fall due.
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43

QOperationai Outiook

The Group has incurred loss of Rs. 521.97 (previous year Rs, 730.18) during the year ended March 31, 2021 snd has-accurnulated losses of Rs: 2,111.19
(previous year Rs. 1,580.41) as of that dace resulting In complete erosion of the net worth of the Company Further as at 31 March; 2021, the Company's
current [labllities exceeds its current assets by Rs. 3,690.90. These conditions cast a significant doubt on the Company's ahility to continue as a going
concern and the Company may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the narmal course of business, The ability of the Company to
continue 35 @ going concern is dependent en the improvement of the Company's future operations, continued financizl suppert fram Delos Investment Fund
11, LP, the Ultimate Holding Entity and deferment of borrowing.

Howaver, the financial staterments of the Company have been prepared as going concern as ;

(a)
()

o}

(d)

Delos Investment Fund 11, LP, the Ultimate Holding Entily, has confirmed to provide financial support as and when the need arises:

Current liabilities as at 31 March 2021 includes NCD's amounting to Rs. 2,852.08 millians (as at 31 March 2020 Rs, 2,834.13 millions and includad
under non current borrowings), Redeamable Dptionally Convertible Prefeence Shares (ROCPS) amounting to Rs. 280.36 millions (as at 31 March 2020
Rs. 280.36 millions and included under non current borrowings) and interest on NCD's and ROCPS amounting to Rs, 525.42 millions and 150.81
millions respectively (as at 31 March 2020 Rs. 335.07 millions and Rs. 93.64 millions respectively included in other current and non current liabilities)
Subsequent to year end, for the NCD's autstanding (including inkerest), the Company has entered Into a restructuring term sheet with lenders wherein
along with other changes / modifications from the original debenture agreement, the maturity date of NCD's has been extended to 30 June 2023, with
no extension option, Further, the Company has also commenced the process of renegotiating the terms of the ROCPS (indluding Interest) with the
ROCPS holder and the ROCPS holder has confirmed that the amount of ROCPS will not be called for the next twelve months. [Refer note 17{A)(vii) and
t#{BY(v)

Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to Rs. 2,855 80 millions (as at 31 March 2020 Rs. 2,548.27 millions) disclosed as non
current financial liability in the standalone financial results will be converted into equity share capital in the future; and

Based on future projections, the management of the Company s confident of generating profits in the near future;

Accordingly, the financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or to the
classification of liabilities that might be necessary, should the Company be unable te continue as a going cancern.
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44

a5

(a)

Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Particulars For the year For the year o
ended ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) (4/8) (2.03) (3.04)
Difuted earnings per share (in Rs.) (A/8) {2.03) [3.04)

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

Loss used In-the calculation of baslc and diluted earnings per share (A) (535.96) (722.98)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of computation of basic and 35,692,264 33,371,292
diluted earnings per share (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

Weighted average number of potential equity-shares (CCPS) 228,864,833 204,065,085
Weighted average number of e-q-uﬁ::.i shares and potential equity shares (CCPS) 264,557,097 237,436,37?"

used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share (8)

Regulatory Compliances

Pursuant to section 96 of the Companies Act; 2013 the Company had ebtalned extenslon te held its Apnual General Meeting ("AGM”)
upto 31 December 2019 for the year ended 31 March 2019. The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2018 could not be presented at the AGM held on 31 December 2019, Consequently, the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019, were presented in the adjourned Annual General Meeting held on 20 July 2020. On 16 December, 2020 the
Company had filed 2 petition under section 441 of lhe Companies Act, 2013, for compounding of offences before the National
Company Law Tribunal which was subsequentyly cancelled due to defects or incompleteness noted in the application.

Further, for the year ended 31 March 20290, the Company was required to hold AGM by 31 December 2020 (as per the provision of
Section 96 of the Companies Act 2013 and further as extended by ROC order No. ROC/Delhi/AGM Ext./2020/11538 dated 08
September, 2020). The Company was not able te hold the meeting within the prescribed time. The financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020, were presented in the Annual General Meeting held on 05 April, 2021.

The Company s in process of filing petitions under sectian 441 of the Companies Act, 2013, for compounding of above offences for
the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 before National Company Law Tribunal.

(b) The Company is in non-compliance with respect to submission of standalone audited financial results for the years ended 31 March

46

2020 and 31 March 2021 and standalone vnaudited financial results for the six months ended 30 Seplember 2019 and 30 September
2020 to stock exchange within the prescribed time pursuant to Regulation 52 of the 5EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI LODR'), as amended: The Company had submitted the standalone audited financial results
for the year ended 31 March 2020 and standalone unaudited financial results for the six months ended 30 September 2019 on 31
March 2021,

Accordingly, the Company could be liable o certain penal provisions for the aforesaid non compliances under the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI (Listing Qbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended. The tonsequential impact of these
non- compliances, including the liability for penal charges, if any, on the consolidated financial statements Is presently net
ascertainable and have accordingly not been recorded in the consolidated financial statements,

As at 31 March 2021, the Company has received / Issued debit and credit notes in foreign turrency amounting te Rs. 11.28 milliens
and Rs. 4.69 millions respectively which are outstanding as at year end, for which the Campany will need to get regulatory approvals
under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999. The consequential impact of this matter, including liability for penal charges, if
any, on the standalone financial stalements is presently not ascertainable and have accordingly not been recorded in the consolidated
financial statements.
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48 The figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

49 The consolidated finandal statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for

issue on 31 December 2021,
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GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U74994MH2017FTC303216)

NOTICE OF THE 4™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Gluhend India
Private Limited will be held on 31 of December 2021 at 8.00 PM IST through Video Conferencing
(‘VC’) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
To receive, consider and adopt:

a) The Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 315t March 2021,
including the Audited Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2021, the Statement of Profit & Loss and
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date and reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March 2021, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

By Order of the Board
For GLUHEND INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Date: 31.12.2021

Place: Delhi Sdi-
SATISH KUMAR RUSTGI
CHAIRMAN
(DIN - 08574594)
NOTES:

1. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its circular
dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA
Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the
physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR
Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC.

2. In terms of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a member of a Company entitled to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint another person as a proxy to attend and vote instead of
himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to
the MCA Circulars through VC, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form
and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

3. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or
governing body Resolution/Authorization etc. at compliance.gluhend @gmail.com, authorizing its representative
to attend and vote at the AGM through VC on its behalf.

4. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are
requested to write to the Company on or before the Annual General Meeting through email on
compliance.gluhend@gmail.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

5. Members attending the AGM through VC shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under
Section 103 of the Act.

6. Since the AGM will be held through VC, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

7. Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC by logging through the invite link (i.e. through Google
Meet) sent to the respective shareholders at their registered e-mail ids.

8. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Mrs. Isha Gupta at the designated mail
id compliance.gluhend@gmail.com.
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